
  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   2/19/2021 
 

 

THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Platteville 
shall be held on Tuesday, February 23, 2021 at 7:00 PM in the Broske Event Center, 1155 N 2nd Street, 
Platteville, WI. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II.    ROLL CALL 

 
III. PRESENTATION – Tourism Report – Wayne Woodarz, Executive Director of the Chamber of 

Commerce 
 
IV. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR – The following items may be approved on a single 

motion and vote due to their routine nature or previous discussion. Please indicate to the Council 
President if you would prefer separate discussion and action. 

A. Council Minutes – 2/9/21 Regular 
B. Payment of Bills 
C. Appointments to Boards and Commissions 
D. Licenses – One-Year and Two-Year Operator License to Sell/Serve Alcohol 

 
V. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS and PETITIONS, if any – Please limit comments to no more 

than five minutes. 
 

VI. REPORTS  
A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes (Council Representative) 

1. Community Safe Routes Committee (Artz) 9/21/20, 1/18/21, 1/25/21 
2. Water & Sewer Commission (Daus, Kilian, Shanley) 12/9/20 
3. Museum Board (Nickels) 12/16/20 
4. Parks, Forestry, & Recreation Committee (Artz) 12/21/20 
5. Library Board (Cline) 1/6/21 
6. Airport Commission (Kopp) 1/11/21 

 
VII. ACTION 

A. Sidewalk Policy [2/9/21] 
 

VIII. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
A. Contract 2-21, Business 151 Sidewalk 

 
IX. WORK SESSION – PAA/Bugles Fire Department Comprehensive Analysis 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

  
 



  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   2/19/2021 
 

 

This meeting will be held in-person at the Broske Event Center, 1155 N 2nd Street, due to the Fire Department 
Comprehensive Analysis Presentation. To attend via Zoom, please email cityclerk@platteville.org with your 
request to obtain the meeting link. The request must include your Name, Street Address, Email Address and 
Reason for Wishing to Attend.  Registration would be required by 3 pm on Tuesday, February 23, 2021. 

 
 

If your attendance requires special accommodation, write City Clerk, P.O. Box 780, Platteville, WI  53818 or 
call (608) 348-9741 Option 6. 

mailto:cityclerk@platteville.org


THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
PRESENTATION 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 III. 

TITLE: 
Annual Tourism Report 
 

DATE: 
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
None 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

 

Description: 
A copy of the Platteville Regional Chamber of Commerce Tourism Entity Report will be provided to each 
Council Member for their review.  Chamber of Commerce Executive Director Wayne Wodarz will briefly 
present the Annual Tourism report. 
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 IV. 

TITLE:  
Council Minutes, Payment of Bills, Appointment to Boards 
and Commissions, and Licenses 
 

DATE: 
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Candace Klaas, City Clerk 

 

Description:  
The following items may be approved on a single motion and vote due to their routine nature or previous 
discussion. Please indicate to the Council President if you would prefer separate discussion and action. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
 “I move to approve all items listed under Consent Calendar” 
 

Attachments:   

• Council Minutes 

• Payment of Bills 

• Appointment of Boards and Commissions 

• Licenses 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

PLATTEVILLE COMMON COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

February 9, 2021 

 

The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Platteville was called to order by Council 

President Daus at 7:00 PM. Due to COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting was conducted by digital means via 

Zoom. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present:  Barbara Daus, Ken Kilian, Isaac Shanley, Eileen Nickels, Kathy Kopp, and Jason Artz. 

Excused: Robin Cline (Cline was present during the Closed Session) 

 

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion by Kilian, second by Artz to approve the consent calendar as follows: Council Minutes – 1/26/21 

Special and Regular; Payment of Bills in the amount of $2,859,985.33; Financial Report – January; 

Appointment to Boards and Commissions, None; Resolution 21-03 Creating the Taskforce of Inclusion, 

Diversity, and Equity (TIDE). Motion carried 6-0 on a roll call vote. 

 

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS AND PETITIONS, if any.  

James Nelson, resident at Dodge House Apartments talked about having an option for a compost bin at 

apartments throughout the City.  

Council Alderperson Ken Kilian reported on snow and ice complaints on sidewalks throughout the city as 

a result of the Platteville Streets Department plowing from the road and pushing snow and ice on to 

sidewalks.  

 

REPORTS 

A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes – Tourism Committee and Redevelopment Authority 

Board.  

B. Other Reports – Water and Sewer Financial Report – January, Airport Financial Report – January, 

and Department Progress Reports.  

 

ACTION 

 

A. Ordinance 20-02 – Correction to Annexation Legal Description – 275 W Business Highway 151 – 

Motion by Nickels, second by Kilian to approve the amendment to Ordinance 20-02 Annexation 

of 275 W Business Highway 151. Motion carried 6-0 on a roll call vote. 

 

B. Ordinance 21-01 Repealing and Recreating Section 2.03 – Polling Places – Motion by Kopp, 

second by Kilian to approve Ordinance 21-01 Repealing and Recreating Section 2.03 – Polling 

Places. Motion carried 6-0 on a roll call vote.  

 

C. Lot Consolidation and Sale of City Land – Lots 39 through 43 of Platteville Industrial Park 7 – 

Lawrence McCormack, representative of Cummins, announced that the company who intends to 

operate in the premise as Cummins Corporation. City Staff, PAIDC, and the Plan Commission all 

recommend approval of the lot consolidation and land sale. Motion by Shanley, second by Kopp to 

approve both Action Items C and D together under one motion contingent upon the following: 

a. The buyer shall provide a Certified Survey Map that shows the lot consolidation as 

described above, and that meets the requirements of Section 236.34 of Wisconsin Statutes. 

b. The CSM shall be recorded with the Grant County Register of Deeds, and a copy shall be 

provided to the City. 

Motion carried 6-0 on a roll call vote. 

 

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

A. Sidewalk Policy – Community Development Director Joe Carroll explained that the desire for a 

Sidewalk Policy resulted from discussions with members of the Community Safe Routes 

Committee and Plan Commission related to the code requirements for sidewalks that are installed 

during development and redevelopment projects. There is a desire to have a policy that will help 

guide specific code requirements, future CIP and budget planning, and other potential initiatives. 

Option 2 was presented as a revised version of the policy that was based on Plan Commission and 

Community Safe Routes Committee joint meetings that were held in the fall and previously 

presented to the Council. Option 3 was also presented as a version being proposed by the 

Community Safe Routes Committee and is based on additional discussions that group held in 

January.  

 

B. Inclusivity, Diversity, Equity Update – City Manager Adam Ruechel presented an update. Council 

President Daus appointed members to TIDE. The first meeting is scheduled for Friday, February 

26, 2021 at 4:00 P.M. A Bias Reporting Discussion took place on January 28, 2021. City Staff meet 

with UW-Platteville Staff and with Platteville School District Staff to share/discuss bias reporting 

and matters of inclusivity, diversity, and equity. The City is looking to both organizations to 

determine best practices they have utilized in the past for a form to report bias incidents. The next 

meeting will be towards the end of February. Council President Daus and City Manager Ruechel 

met with Carla Wages and Frank King from UW-Platteville to discuss how the City of Platteville 

could work/partner with student organizations and organizations such as Black Platteville 

Community Network. City Staff will be continuing this dialogue and working with TIDE to 

determine next steps.   

 

C. COVID-19 Municipal Update – City Manager Adam Ruechel gave an update for the status of 

COVID-19 responses within the City. 

 
CLOSED SESSION – Motion by Nickels, second by Shanley to go into closed session. Motion carried  

6-0 on a roll call vote. Per Wisconsin Statute 19.85(1)(e) - Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of 

public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever 

competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session – Economic Development Potential. Motion by 

Kopp, second by Nickels to come out of closed session. Motion carried 6-0 on a role call vote.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Kopp, second by Nickels to adjourn.  Motion carried 6-0 on a roll call vote.  The meeting was 

adjourned at 9:21 PM. 

 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

  

       Candace Klaas, City Clerk  



2/5/2021 Void 69680 (150.00)$                         
2/12/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 5678-5681 45,706.03$                      
2/12/2021 Schedule of Bills 71729-71731 4,243.58$                        
2/12/2021 Payroll (ACH Deposits) 158656-158759 113,977.76$                    
2/17/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 5682-5713 348,056.84$                    
2/17/2021 Schedule of Bills 71732-71795 2,944,161.44$                 
1/29/2021 Payroll (ACH Deposits) 158554-158655 -$                                $

(129,201.80)$                  
(27,760.06)$                    

      Total 3,299,033.79$                 

SCHEDULE OF BILLS

MOUND CITY BANK:

(W/S Bills amount paid with City Bills)
(W/S Payroll amount paid with City Payroll)



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

5678

02/21 02/12/2021 5678 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  F PR0206211 1 10,711.58 10,711.58

02/21 02/12/2021 5678 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0206211 2 9,922.53 9,922.53

02/21 02/12/2021 5678 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0206211 3 9,922.53 9,922.53

02/21 02/12/2021 5678 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0206211 4 2,320.55 2,320.55

02/21 02/12/2021 5678 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0206211 5 2,320.55 2,320.55

          Total 5678: 35,197.74

5679

02/21 02/12/2021 5679 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0206211 1 2,165.00 2,165.00

02/21 02/12/2021 5679 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0206211 2 893.96 893.96

          Total 5679: 3,058.96

5680

02/21 02/12/2021 5680 WI DEPT OF REVENUE STATE INCOME TAX  STA PR0206211 1 7,350.25 7,350.25

          Total 5680: 7,350.25

5681

02/21 02/12/2021 5681 WI SCTF CHILD SUPPORT  CHILD  PR0206211 1 99.08 99.08

          Total 5681: 99.08

5682

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 1 1,520.50 1,520.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 2 95.00 95.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 3 122.70 122.70

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 4 124.90 124.90

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COMMUNITY PLANNING  01/05-02/01/ 5 180.00 180.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 6 56.04 56.04

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 7 19.99 19.99

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 8 66.88 66.88

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 9 244.00 244.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 10 560.70 560.70

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 11 33.82 33.82

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 12 1,451.26 1,451.26

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 13 8.95 8.95

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 14 542.42 542.42

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 15 125.60 125.60

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 16 10.00 10.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 17 14.00 14.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE STREET DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 18 259.97 259.97

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SENIOR CENTER CHARG 01/05-02/01/ 19 1,111.39 1,111.39

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SENIOR CENTER CHARG 01/05-02/01/ 20 9.48 9.48

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FINANCE CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 21 79.92 79.92

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COMMUNICATION SPECI 01/05-02/01/ 22 14.99 14.99

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MAINTENANCE CHARGE 01/05-02/01/ 23 11.70 11.70

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ADMINISTRATION CHAR 01/05-02/01/ 24 190.00 190.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ADMINISTRATION CHAR 01/05-02/01/ 25 28.47 28.47

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 26 125.99 125.99

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 27 5.00 5.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 28 205.30 205.30

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 29 563.95 563.95

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 30 77.67 77.67

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 31 201.51 201.51

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 32 260.88 260.88

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 33 247.14 247.14

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 34 36.48 36.48

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE PARKS CHARGE 01/05-02/01/ 35 194.03 194.03

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE PARKS CHARGE 01/05-02/01/ 36 81.91 81.91

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 37 242.67 242.67

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 38 199.91 199.91

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 39 72.98 72.98

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CLERK CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 40 33.00 33.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE FINANCE CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 41 36.42 36.42

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE WATER DEPT SUPPLIES 01/05-02/01/ 42 25.71 25.71

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 01/05-02/01/ 43 25.70 25.70

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CITY MANAGER CHARGE 01/05-02/01/ 44 864.00 864.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CITY MANAGER CHARGE 01/05-02/01/ 45 142.58 142.58

02/21 02/17/2021 5682 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ADMINISTRATION CHAR 01/05-02/01/ 46 90.00 90.00

          Total 5682: 10,615.51

5683

02/21 02/17/2021 5683 WI DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX-AIRPORT JANUARY 20 1 504.60 504.60

02/21 02/17/2021 5683 WI DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX-POLICE DEP JANUARY 20 2 6.51 6.51

02/21 02/17/2021 5683 WI DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX-LIBRARY JANUARY 20 3 7.10 7.10

02/21 02/17/2021 5683 WI DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX-SHELTER RE JANUARY 20 4 5.15 5.15

02/21 02/17/2021 5683 WI DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX-EVENT CENT JANUARY 20 5 407.47 407.47

          Total 5683: 930.83

5684

02/21 02/17/2021 5684 BADGER WELDING SUPP REFILL OXYGEN-PD 3632987 1 2.79 2.79

          Total 5684: 2.79

5685

02/21 02/17/2021 5685 COMELEC SERVICES IN POLICE DEPT CHARGE 473334-IN 1 2,845.00 2,845.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5685 COMELEC SERVICES IN POLICE DEPT CHARGE 473348-IN 1 232.44 232.44

02/21 02/17/2021 5685 COMELEC SERVICES IN BATTERIES - POLICE DE 473381-IN 1 615.50 615.50

          Total 5685: 3,692.94

5686

02/21 02/17/2021 5686 COMPUNET INTERNATIO OFFICE 365 45686 1 1,636.00 1,636.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5686 COMPUNET INTERNATIO PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 45686 2 7,182.00 7,182.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5686 COMPUNET INTERNATIO OFFICE 365 45687 1 1,636.00 1,636.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5686 COMPUNET INTERNATIO PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 45687 2 7,182.00 7,182.00

          Total 5686: 17,636.00

5687

02/21 02/17/2021 5687 DAVY LABORATORIES SEWER DEPT CHARGES 20H0407 1 174.00 174.00

          Total 5687: 174.00

5688

02/21 02/17/2021 5688 DEWEYS TIRE REPAIR SEWER DEPT CHARGES 010769 1 694.00 694.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 5688: 694.00

5689

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-CITY 210 1 70801 1 51.95 51.95

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-SEWE 210 1 70801 2 25.97 25.97

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-WATE 210 1 70801 3 25.98 25.98

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-CITY 210 2 70801  1 881.60 881.60

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-WATE 210 2 70801  2 440.80 440.80

02/21 02/17/2021 5689 DIGGERS HOTLINE INC PREPAY LOCATES-SEWE 210 2 70801  3 440.80 440.80

          Total 5689: 1,867.10

5690

02/21 02/17/2021 5690 DROESSLER, ANDREA TRAINING REIMB-POLIC 02.10.2021 1 33.78 33.78

          Total 5690: 33.78

5691

02/21 02/17/2021 5691 ENVIRONMENTAL CONS WWTP ACUTE & CHRONI 4388 1 1,525.00 1,525.00

          Total 5691: 1,525.00

5692

02/21 02/17/2021 5692 ESRI INC ARCGIS ONLINE 93984561 1 1,610.04 1,610.04

02/21 02/17/2021 5692 ESRI INC ARCGIS DESKTOP BASIC  93984561 2 1,610.05 1,610.05

02/21 02/17/2021 5692 ESRI INC ARCGIS ONLINE 93984561 3 1,610.04 1,610.04

          Total 5692: 4,830.13

5693

02/21 02/17/2021 5693 FROISETH, MATTHEW TRAINING REIMB-POLIC 01.27.2021 1 9.68 9.68

02/21 02/17/2021 5693 FROISETH, MATTHEW JURY TRIAL TRAVEL EXP 01.29.2021 1 7.80 7.80

          Total 5693: 17.48

5694

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-LEE, C 17109761 1 67.38 67.38

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC POLICE DEPT CHARGES 17117832 1 40.73 40.73

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-PURKA 17191132 1 109.61 109.61

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-LEE, C 17202164 1 190.02 190.02

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-LEE, C 17215369 1 17.37 17.37

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ALLOWANCE-S 17222830 1 246.60 246.60

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-BARTEL 17222830 2 13.50 13.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC POLICE DEPT CHARGES 17222830 3 4.76 4.76

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-LEE, C 17229766 1 114.27 114.27

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-MURPH 17237526 1 13.74 13.74

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-REHLIN 17576268 1 301.59 301.59

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-AUZ, NA 17576268 2 184.50 184.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC UNIFORM ITEMS-KNOER 17576268 3 313.16 313.16

02/21 02/17/2021 5694 GALLS LLC POLICE DEPT CHARGES 17576268 4 35.96 35.96

          Total 5694: 1,653.19

5695

02/21 02/17/2021 5695 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-LIBRARY IN13206046 1 177.00 177.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 5695: 177.00

5696

02/21 02/17/2021 5696 IVERSON CONSTRUCTIO WATER DEPT CHARGES 5100012040 1 899.75 899.75

          Total 5696: 899.75

5697

02/21 02/17/2021 5697 J & R SUPPLY INC SEWER DEPT CHARGES 2015418-IN 1 605.00 605.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5697 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER DEPT CHARGES 2101210-IN 1 883.00 883.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5697 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER DEPT CHARGES 2102028-IN 1 1,196.00 1,196.00

          Total 5697: 2,684.00

5698

02/21 02/17/2021 5698 KEMIRA WATER SOLUTI PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL  9017702203 1 5,588.44 5,588.44

          Total 5698: 5,588.44

5699

02/21 02/17/2021 5699 MCKINLEY, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB 02/10/2021 1 148.40 148.40

          Total 5699: 148.40

5700

02/21 02/17/2021 5700 MONROE TRUCK EQUIP SEWER DEPT CHARGES 5449881 1 257.50 257.50

          Total 5700: 257.50

5701

02/21 02/17/2021 5701 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC SEWER DEPT CHARGES 450184 1 874.25 874.25

          Total 5701: 874.25

5702

02/21 02/17/2021 5702 NEW HORIZONS SUPPLY  SEWER DEPT CHARGES 402600 1 48.00 48.00

          Total 5702: 48.00

5703

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS SEWER DEPT CHARGES 02.08.2021 1 15.98- 15.98-

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS WATER DEPT CHARGES 2324-456000 1 20.91 20.91

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS SEWER DEPT CHARGES 2324-456088 1 21.98 21.98

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS WATER DEPT CHARGES 2324-456561 1 13.06 13.06

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS SEWER DEPT CHARGES 2324-456580 1 21.98 21.98

02/21 02/17/2021 5703 OREILLY AUTO PARTS SEWER DEPT CHARGES 2324-456615 1 3.33 3.33

          Total 5703: 65.28

5704

02/21 02/17/2021 5704 REILLY PLUMBING & HEA REPAIRS-POLICE DEPT 10054 1 315.94 315.94

02/21 02/17/2021 5704 REILLY PLUMBING & HEA REPAIRS-POLICE DEPT 10060 1 512.25 512.25

          Total 5704: 828.19

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

5705

02/21 02/17/2021 5705 RURAL EXCAVATING LLC WATER DEPT CHARGES 13906 1 480.00 480.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5705 RURAL EXCAVATING LLC WATER DEPT CHARGES 13932 1 850.00 850.00

          Total 5705: 1,330.00

5706

02/21 02/17/2021 5706 SOUTHWEST OPPORTU JANITORIAL SERVICES-P 23218 1 1,707.50 1,707.50

          Total 5706: 1,707.50

5707

02/21 02/17/2021 5707 STRAND ASSOCIATES IN WATER SYSTEM COMPR 168102 1 419.02 419.02

02/21 02/17/2021 5707 STRAND ASSOCIATES IN RISK AND RESILIENCE A 168103 1 2,026.73 2,026.73

          Total 5707: 2,445.75

5708

02/21 02/17/2021 5708 TRICOM INC/RADIO SHA SEWER DEPT SUPPLIES 10407483 1 219.50 219.50

          Total 5708: 219.50

5709

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC POLICE VEHICLE 39050 1 10,545.00 10,545.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC WORKERS COMP INSUR 39050 2 1,548.00 1,548.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC VEHICLE INSURANCE-FI 39050 3 7,629.00 7,629.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC STREET DEPT INSURAN 39050 4 10,663.00 10,663.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC MUSEUM INSURANCE 39050 5 31.00 31.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC VEHICLE INSURANCE-SE 39050 6 626.00 626.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC PARKS DEPT INSURANC 39050 7 1,850.00 1,850.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC BUILDING MAINTENANC 39050 8 860.00 860.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC INSURANCE 39050 9 2,740.00 2,740.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC PROPERTY/LIABILITY IN 39050 10 91,546.00 91,546.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC WORKERS COMP INSUR 39050 11 77,925.00 77,925.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC BOND INSURANCE 39050 12 274.00 274.00

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC UMBRELLA INSURANCE 39053 1 2,042.50 2,042.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC UMBRELLA INSURANCE 39053 2 2,042.50 2,042.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC WORK COMP AUDIT-WAT 39053 3 9,180.32 9,180.32

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC WORK COMP AUDIT-SEW 39053 4 10,694.68 10,694.68

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC LIABILITY INSURANCE A 39053 5 10,819.50 10,819.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC LIABILITY INSURANCE A 39053 6 32,458.50 32,458.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC VEHICLE INSURANCE-W 39053 7 4,600.50 4,600.50

02/21 02/17/2021 5709 TRICOR INC VEHICLE INSURANCE-SE 39053 8 6,496.50 6,496.50

          Total 5709: 284,572.00

5710

02/21 02/17/2021 5710 WEBER PAPER COMPAN SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT D104078 1 134.50 134.50

          Total 5710: 134.50

5711

02/21 02/17/2021 5711 WESTPHAL & COMPANY I SEWER DEPT CHARGES 22525 1 484.03 484.03

          Total 5711: 484.03

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

5712

02/21 02/17/2021 5712 WOOD LAW FIRM LLC LEGAL FEES-POLICE DE 3176 1 1,155.00 1,155.00

          Total 5712: 1,155.00

5713

02/21 02/17/2021 5713 WORD SYSTEMS INC CONFIGURED NEW VOIP IN33085 1 765.00 765.00

          Total 5713: 765.00

69680

02/21 02/05/2021 69680 MORSEHEAD, RANDY CARRIAGE DRIVER 12/13/19 1 150.00- 150.00- V

          Total 69680: 150.00-

71729

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-CITY  02.12.2021 1 19.25 19.25

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-FIRE  02.12.2021 2 1,002.73 1,002.73

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-EME 02.12.2021 3 6.30 6.30

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 02.12.2021 4 104.48 104.48

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STO 02.12.2021 5 378.00 378.00

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-MUS 02.12.2021 6 1,559.49 1,559.49

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-PAR 02.12.2021 7 370.74 370.74

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-POO 02.12.2021 8 13.75 13.75

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-WATER 02.12.2021 9 43.86 43.86

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L GAS/HEATING-WATER 02.12.2021 10 86.31 86.31

02/21 02/12/2021 71729 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-SEWER 02.12.2021 11 87.67 87.67

          Total 71729: 3,672.58

71730

02/21 02/12/2021 71730 VANTAGE TRANSFER AG ICMA DEFERRED COMP   PR0206211 1 25.00 25.00

          Total 71730: 25.00

71731

02/21 02/12/2021 71731 WPPA/LEER UNION DUES  POLICE U PR0206211 1 546.00 546.00

          Total 71731: 546.00

71732

02/21 02/17/2021 71732 A-C SERVICE PLATTEVIL REPAIRS-WWTP 02.04.2021 1 157.88 157.88

          Total 71732: 157.88

71733

02/21 02/17/2021 71733 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 02.17.2021 1 42.35 42.35

02/21 02/17/2021 71733 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 02.17.2021 2 88.10 88.10

02/21 02/17/2021 71733 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-PAR 02.17.2021 3 49.20 49.20

02/21 02/17/2021 71733 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-EVE 02.17.2021 4 417.89 417.89

02/21 02/17/2021 71733 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-WATER 02.17.2021 5 27.69 27.69

          Total 71733: 625.23

71734

02/21 02/17/2021 71734 ANDERSON WELDING &  SEWER DEPT CHARGES 35661 1 39.35 39.35

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     7

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 71734: 39.35

71735

02/21 02/17/2021 71735 BENNETTS AUTO CLINIC  TOW TO IMPOUND-POLI 3204 1 75.00 75.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71735 BENNETTS AUTO CLINIC  TOW TO IMPOUND-POLI 3210 1 150.00 150.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71735 BENNETTS AUTO CLINIC  TOW TO IMPOUND-POLI 3277 1 525.00 525.00

          Total 71735: 750.00

71736

02/21 02/17/2021 71736 CAPITAL NEWSPAPER SEWER DEPT CHARGES 01/31/2021 1 458.78 458.78

          Total 71736: 458.78

71737

02/21 02/17/2021 71737 CARDMEMBER SERVICE WATER DEPT CHARGES 12/25-01/26/ 1 37.18 37.18

02/21 02/17/2021 71737 CARDMEMBER SERVICE WATER DEPT CHARGES 12/25-01/26/ 2 94.32 94.32

02/21 02/17/2021 71737 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 12/25-01/26/ 3 1,187.47 1,187.47

02/21 02/17/2021 71737 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 12/25-01/26/ 4 9.90 9.90

          Total 71737: 1,328.87

71738

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK ADMIN PHONE CHARGE 02/03/2021 1 271.62 271.62

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK POLICE DEPT CHARGES 02/03/2021 2 695.51 695.51

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK MUSEUM DEPT PHONE C 02/03/2021 3 72.51 72.51

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK LIBRARY PHONE CHARG 02/03/2021 4 34.47 34.47

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK AIRPORT PHONE CHARG 02/03/2021 5 230.75 230.75

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK WATER DEPT PHONE CH 02/03/2021 6 265.40 265.40

02/21 02/17/2021 71738 CENTURYLINK SEWER DEPT PHONE CH 02/03/2021 7 195.96 195.96

          Total 71738: 1,766.22

71739

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK AIRPORT LONG DISTANC 200340094 1 .16 .16

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK CITY MANAGER LONG DI 200340094 2 14.91 14.91

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK CITY CLERK LONG DISTA 200340094 3 14.91 14.91

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK ENGINEERING LONG DIS 200340094 4 .08 .08

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK LIBRARY LONG DISTANC 200340094 5 7.55 7.55

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK POLICE DEPT LONG DIST 200340094 6 28.21 28.21

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK SENIOR CENTER LONG  200340094 7 .45 .45

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK WATER LONG DISTANCE 200340094 8 .20 .20

02/21 02/17/2021 71739 CENTURYLINK SEWER LONG DISTANCE 200340094 9 .20 .20

          Total 71739: 66.67

71740

02/21 02/17/2021 71740 CINTAS CORPORATION # MATS-LIBRARY 4075208582 1 72.42 72.42

          Total 71740: 72.42

71741

02/21 02/17/2021 71741 CORE & MAIN LP WATER DEPT CHARGES N629789 1 659.31 659.31

02/21 02/17/2021 71741 CORE & MAIN LP WATER DEPT CHARGES N692976 1 441.86 441.86

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     8

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 71741: 1,101.17

71742

02/21 02/17/2021 71742 DAVE JONES INC QTLY FIRE SPRINKLER I 63857 1 110.00 110.00

          Total 71742: 110.00

71743

02/21 02/17/2021 71743 DONNIE'S TIRE & AUTO TOW TO IMPOUND LOT 142014 1 65.00 65.00

          Total 71743: 65.00

71744

02/21 02/17/2021 71744 DORNER COMPANY SEWER DEPT CHARGES 155990-IN 1 40.00 40.00

          Total 71744: 40.00

71745

02/21 02/17/2021 71745 DUBUQUE HARDWOODS  GRINDING, TRUCKING 232255 1 15,000.00 15,000.00

          Total 71745: 15,000.00

71746

02/21 02/17/2021 71746 EHLERS INVESTMENT P MANAGEMENT FEES-CE 01.31.2021 1 9.21 9.21

02/21 02/17/2021 71746 EHLERS INVESTMENT P MANAGEMENT FEES-WA 01.31.2021 2 43.29 43.29

02/21 02/17/2021 71746 EHLERS INVESTMENT P MANAGEMENT FEES-SE 01.31.2021 3 43.30 43.30

          Total 71746: 95.80

71747

02/21 02/17/2021 71747 EJ METALS INC REPAIR OF VEHICLES - F 1-9407 1 168.71 168.71

          Total 71747: 168.71

71748

02/21 02/17/2021 71748 EMMI ROTH USA INC PAY AS YOU GO FINANCI 02.17.2021 1 69,102.48 69,102.48

          Total 71748: 69,102.48

71749

02/21 02/17/2021 71749 ERSCHENS FLORIST FLOWERS-SUNSHINE FU 12.23.2020 1 44.95 44.95

          Total 71749: 44.95

71750

02/21 02/17/2021 71750 FOUR SEASONS LANDS SNOW & ICE REMOVAL 02.03.2021 1 306.00 306.00

          Total 71750: 306.00

71751

02/21 02/17/2021 71751 GFC LEASING WI COPIER LEASE-SEWER  I00636991 1 41.38 41.38

02/21 02/17/2021 71751 GFC LEASING WI COPIER LEASE-WATER D I00636991 2 41.38 41.38

          Total 71751: 82.76

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     9

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

71752

02/21 02/17/2021 71752 GRANT COUNTY CSZD WPDES PERMIT 02.12.2021 1 18,373.12 18,373.12

          Total 71752: 18,373.12

71753

02/21 02/17/2021 71753 GRANT CTY CLERK DOG LICENSES JAN JAN 2021 D 1 238.00 238.00

          Total 71753: 238.00

71754

02/21 02/17/2021 71754 GRANT CTY REGISTER O RECORDING FEES 02.05.2021 1 30.00 30.00

          Total 71754: 30.00

71755

02/21 02/17/2021 71755 GRANT CTY TREASURER TAX SETTLEMENT TAXES 2020 1 693,454.00 693,454.00

          Total 71755: 693,454.00

71756

02/21 02/17/2021 71756 GRANT CTY TREASURER MATCHING FUNDS-STRE 02/17/2021 1 2,000.00 2,000.00

          Total 71756: 2,000.00

71757

02/21 02/17/2021 71757 INSPIRING COMMUNITY I WI HUMANTIES GRANT 159 1 930.00 930.00

          Total 71757: 930.00

71758

02/21 02/17/2021 71758 IWI MOTOR PARTS STREET DEPT CHARGES 1803487 1 613.34 613.34

02/21 02/17/2021 71758 IWI MOTOR PARTS SUPPLIES-POLICE 1805162 1 185.84 185.84

02/21 02/17/2021 71758 IWI MOTOR PARTS SUPPLIES-POLICE DEPT 1809682 1 153.36 153.36

          Total 71758: 952.54

71759

02/21 02/17/2021 71759 JACOBSON, MARTIN EXPENSE REIMBURSEM 01.25.2021 1 86.51 86.51

          Total 71759: 86.51

71760

02/21 02/17/2021 71760 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAF FIRE DEPT CHARGES IN125988 1 1,019.78 1,019.78

02/21 02/17/2021 71760 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAF FIRE DEPT CHARGES IN126191 1 931.42 931.42

          Total 71760: 1,951.20

71761

02/21 02/17/2021 71761 JOHNSON CONTROLS MAINTENANCE CONTRA 22099891 1 477.22 477.22

          Total 71761: 477.22

71762

02/21 02/17/2021 71762 LAFAYETTE CTY LAND C WPDES PERMIT 02/12/2021 7 1 368.77 368.77

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     10

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 71762: 368.77

71763

02/21 02/17/2021 71763 LC PRODUCTIONS MUSEUM CHARGES 1351 1 2,000.00 2,000.00

          Total 71763: 2,000.00

71764

02/21 02/17/2021 71764 LEAGUE OF WI MUNICIP STUDY ON LEAF MANAG 82412 1 1,000.00 1,000.00

          Total 71764: 1,000.00

71765

02/21 02/17/2021 71765 MENARDS MAINTANENCE DEPT CH 79342 1 90.13 90.13

02/21 02/17/2021 71765 MENARDS MUSEUM CHARGES 79845 1 5.99 5.99

02/21 02/17/2021 71765 MENARDS FIRE DEPT CHARGES 79915 1 105.88 105.88

02/21 02/17/2021 71765 MENARDS SEWER DEPT CHARGES 80206 1 22.48 22.48

          Total 71765: 224.48

71766

02/21 02/17/2021 71766 MOLO PETROLEUM LLC STREET DEPT CHARGES 15866-IN 1 1,745.17 1,745.17

          Total 71766: 1,745.17

71767

02/21 02/17/2021 71767 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ENVELOPES-WATER DE 45250 1 262.25 262.25

02/21 02/17/2021 71767 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ENVELOPES-SEWER DE 45250 2 262.25 262.25

          Total 71767: 524.50

71768

02/21 02/17/2021 71768 MORTON SALT INC ROAD SALT 5402246836 1 12,386.66 12,386.66

          Total 71768: 12,386.66

71769

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 847638 1 12.82 12.82

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT 847797 1 12.49 12.49

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 847903 1 40.16 40.16

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT 848093 1 72.64 72.64

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT 848838 1 12.49 12.49

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT AIRPORT CHARGES 849032 1 16.32 16.32

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 849036 1 81.68 81.68

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT AIRPORT CHARGES 849053 1 97.97 97.97

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-PARKS 849115 1 75.57 75.57

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 849190 1 18.04 18.04

02/21 02/17/2021 71769 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT AIRPORT CHARGES 849191 1 25.78 25.78

          Total 71769: 465.96

71770

02/21 02/17/2021 71770 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  SUBSCRIPTION-POLICE  03.02.2021 1 40.00 40.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71770 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-FREUDEN 10199 1.31.2 1 26.00 26.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71770 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-LIBRARY 263379 1 110.50 110.50

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     11

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 71770: 176.50

71771

02/21 02/17/2021 71771 PLATTEVILLE REGIONAL  ROOM TAX 4TH QTR 20 1 20,104.97 20,104.97

          Total 71771: 20,104.97

71772

02/21 02/17/2021 71772 PLATTEVILLE UNITED ME CO-SPONSORSHIP OF F 02/15/2021 1 250.00 250.00

          Total 71772: 250.00

71773

02/21 02/17/2021 71773 POMPS TIRE SERVICE IN TIRES-WATER DEPT 370171794 1 1,309.24 1,309.24

          Total 71773: 1,309.24

71774

02/21 02/17/2021 71774 QUILL LLC OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATE 14241142 1 101.79 101.79

          Total 71774: 101.79

71775

02/21 02/17/2021 71775 REGISTRATION FEE TRU LICENSE PLATE RENEW 173RWN 202 1 105.00 105.00

          Total 71775: 105.00

71776

02/21 02/17/2021 71776 REGISTRATION FEE TRU CERTIFIED RECORD 02.03.2021 1 2.00 2.00

          Total 71776: 2.00

71777

02/21 02/17/2021 71777 RICOH USA INC LEASE COPIER-CITY CLE 104587697 1 30.00 30.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71777 RICOH USA INC LEASE COPIER-CITY CO 104587697 2 15.00 15.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71777 RICOH USA INC LEASE COPIER-CITY MA 104587697 3 146.00 146.00

          Total 71777: 191.00

71778

02/21 02/17/2021 71778 SCENIC RIVERS ENERG ELECTRICITY-STREET LI 1426600 02. 1 377.26 377.26

02/21 02/17/2021 71778 SCENIC RIVERS ENERG ELECTRICITY-TRAIL LIGH 1426600 02. 2 56.22 56.22

          Total 71778: 433.48

71779

02/21 02/17/2021 71779 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF P TAX SETTLEMENT TAXES 2020 1 1,829,125.47 1,829,125.47

          Total 71779: 1,829,125.47

71780

02/21 02/17/2021 71780 SCOTT IMPLEMENT SEWER DEPT CHARGES 58879 1 52.36 52.36

          Total 71780: 52.36

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     12

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

71781

02/21 02/17/2021 71781 SHERWIN WILLIAMS MUSEUM SUPPLIES 2815-7 1 22.79 22.79

02/21 02/17/2021 71781 SHERWIN WILLIAMS MUSEUM SUPPLIES 945-0 1 66.76 66.76

          Total 71781: 89.55

71782

02/21 02/17/2021 71782 SOLENIS LLC SLUDGE CHEMICALS-SE 131716969 1 3,576.50 3,576.50

02/21 02/17/2021 71782 SOLENIS LLC SLUDGE CHEMICALS-SE 131762265 1 3,592.51 3,592.51

          Total 71782: 7,169.01

71783

02/21 02/17/2021 71783 SOUTHWEST TECHNICA TAX SETTLEMENT 2020 TAXES 1 238,277.54 238,277.54

          Total 71783: 238,277.54

71784

02/21 02/17/2021 71784 SPEE-DEE FREIGHT-WATER DEPT 4165610 1 78.60 78.60

02/21 02/17/2021 71784 SPEE-DEE FREIGHT-WATER DEPT 4174839 1 14.64 14.64

          Total 71784: 93.24

71785

02/21 02/17/2021 71785 SW WI COMM ACT PROG  CDBG MONTHLY EXPEN 8328 1 150.95 150.95

          Total 71785: 150.95

71786

02/21 02/17/2021 71786 TELEGRAPH HERALD HUMAN RESOURCES AD 202705 1 333.34 333.34

          Total 71786: 333.34

71787

02/21 02/17/2021 71787 THOMPSON WOOD FLO SAND, SEAL & FINISH FL 21-011 1 11,000.00 11,000.00

          Total 71787: 11,000.00

71788

02/21 02/17/2021 71788 TRUCK COUNTRY OF IO REPAIRS-WATER DEPT R102086862: 1 658.94 658.94

          Total 71788: 658.94

71789

02/21 02/17/2021 71789 UNEMPLOYMENT INSUR UNEMPLOYMENT - MUSE 10600365 1 1,078.73 1,078.73

          Total 71789: 1,078.73

71790

02/21 02/17/2021 71790 VERONA SAFETY SUPPL GLOVES-WATER DEPT 41901 1 36.42 36.42

          Total 71790: 36.42

71791

02/21 02/17/2021 71791 VON BRIESEN & ROPER  LEGAL FEES 345012 1 3,687.50 3,687.50

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     13

Check Issue Dates: 2/4/2021 - 2/17/2021 Feb 17, 2021  01:10PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 71791: 3,687.50

71792

02/21 02/17/2021 71792 W L CONSTRUCTION SU FIRE DEPT CHARGES 27668 1 619.99 619.99

          Total 71792: 619.99

71793

02/21 02/17/2021 71793 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE RECORD CHECKS - POLI L2205T 01.3 1 14.00 14.00

          Total 71793: 14.00

71794

02/21 02/17/2021 71794 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 112178910 1 120.00 120.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71794 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 112178911 1 120.00 120.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71794 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 112178912 1 120.00 120.00

02/21 02/17/2021 71794 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 112178914 1 120.00 120.00

          Total 71794: 480.00

71795

02/21 02/17/2021 71795 ZAHN, GRETA REFUND PARKING TICKE 1580FP3FFF 1 30.00 30.00

          Total 71795: 30.00

          Grand Totals:  3,342,017.89

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



 
 

 

 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS VACANCIES LIST    
As of 2/11/21 

 

Board of Appeals (ET Zoning) Alternate (3 year term ending 4/1/22) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (partial term ending 10/1/21) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (3 year term ending 10/1/22) 
Community Development Board (2 - 3 year terms ending 10/1/22) 
Platteville Public Transportation Committee (partial term ending 9/1/21) 
Solid Waste and Recycle Task Force (1- term ending 6/30/21) 
 
 
UPCOMING VACANCIES – March 2021 
 
None 
 
 
 
Application forms for the City of Platteville Boards and Commissions are available in the 
City Clerk’s office in the Municipal Building at 75 N Bonson Street, Platteville, WI or online at 
www.platteville.org.  Please note that most positions require City residency. 

 
 

http://www.platteville.org/


PROPOSED LICENSES 
February 23, 2021 

 
 

 
Two Year Operator License 

- Adam T Guilette 
- Riley M Hutzenbuehler-Harrop 
- Heidi L Reed 
- Brendon W Reifsteck 
 

 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
REPORTS 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 VI. 

TITLE:  
Board, Commission, and Committee Minutes 
 

DATE: 
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
None 

PREPARED BY:  Colette Steffen, Administrative Assistant II 

 

Description: 
Approved minutes from recent Boards and Commissions meetings. Council representative may give a 
summary of the meeting. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 

Attachments:   

• Community Safe Routes Committee 

• Water & Sewer Commission 

• Museum Board  

• Parks, Forestry, & Recreation Committee 

• Library Board 

• Airport Commission 
 



COMMUNITY SAFE ROUTES COMMITTEE 

Monday, September 21, 2020 6:00 PM 

MEETING HELD VIA ZOOM 

Meeting Minutes 

 
CSRC Attendees: Kristina Fields, Cindy Tang, Maureen Vorwald, Robin Fatzinger, Danica 
Larson, David Ralph, Jason Artz 
 
Staff Attendees: Howard Crofoot, Luke Peters, Lauree Aulik, Adam Ruechel 
 

1. Call to order at 6 pm 

 
2. Approval of Minutes: August 17 meeting – motion to approve Robin, second by Dave, 

motion passed unanimously. 
 
3. Citizen Comments, Observations, & Petitions 

a. Dave Ralph said that the clock is ticking regarding the Casey’s development 
and how can this situation be avoided.  

 
4. New Business 

a. Joint Meeting with CSRC and Plan Commission:  There will be another joint 
meeting on October 5 to review the Sidewalk Policy.  There was a concern 
regarding whether the new Policy or Ordinances would have required the 
redevelopment of the former Southwest Supply property on Valley Road.  The 
short answer is No.  They were regrading the area south of Valley Road, not 
building new or expanding the existing building. 

b. Grant County Community Development Block Grant money:  Howard provided 
a copy of the submission requesting funding from Grant County for sidewalks 
on Bus 151 west of Water St. 

c. City of Platteville Strategic Plan:  The Agenda had the link to the City website 
for the citizen survey. 

d. Condition of gravel trail.  It was noted that due to recent rains, there is rutting on 
the gravel trail in two places.  Howard said that crews will repair the rutting. 

 
 
5. Old Business 

a. Updates:  Business 151 project:  Howard noted that the Chamber of Commerce 
is still recommending that the sidewalk and crossing at Staley be reconsidered. 

b. Bus 151 sidewalks and plowing of trail proposal.  There was discussion about 
this and the fact that businesses were promised that the trail would not be 
plowed in the winter.  Some businesses use the trail as snow storage for 
plowing their parking lots. 

c. City Project Review Process:  Not Discussed 

d. CSRC Project List:  Not discussed 

 
6. Adjourn at 7 pm – motion by Robin, second by Dave, passed unanimously. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted:  Howard B. Crofoot 

 



 

 

OPTION 3 ‐Revisions by the Community Safe Routes Meetings on 1/18/21 and 1 25 21 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE SIDEWALK POLICY  

(A)  PURPOSE AND INTENT.  The purpose of this section is to establish requirements to guide and  

coordinate the installation of sidewalks necessary to serve new development and redevelopment in  

the City of Platteville.  It is the goal of the City to provide a variety of transportation options for all  

residents, including sidewalks, for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.   

The standards established by this section are intended to ensure the installation of sidewalks  

associated with development and redevelopment is compatible with surrounding land uses,  

contributes to the unique character and aesthetics of the City, does not have a significant adverse  

fiscal impact on City infrastructure or services, and promotes the general health, safety and welfare  

of the community.  

 

The City recognizes sidewalks play a vital role in city life.  As conduits for pedestrian and bicycle  

movement and access, they enhance connectivity and promote non‐auto transportation.  As public  

spaces, sidewalks serve as the front steps to the community, activating streets socially and  

economically.  Safe, accessible, and well‐maintained sidewalks are a fundamental and necessary  

investment for the City.    

 

Guiding policy principles:  

1) Sidewalks are necessary to provide safe, convenient, and efficient pedestrian travel  

throughout the City for all ages and abilities.  

2) Sidewalks should be installed to minimize conflicts between pedestrians and other 

modes of travel and improve the pedestrian network.  

3) Sidewalks are used by all residents and members of the community, so the cost of  

installation and maintenance of sidewalks should be shared by all to the greatest extent  

possible.    

4) Sidewalks should be considered an important component of development and street  

reconstruction projects.  

5) Sidewalks should be provided on all existing and future streets where appropriate and 

safe, for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.    

 

(B)  PLAN FOR COMPLETING THE SIDEWALK NETWORK.  The City embraces the ideal that a walkable  

community enhances livability and the welfare of its residents and will strive to repair and install  

new sidewalks where street reconstruction or property development is not anticipated within five  

years.  Recognizing the expense of this effort and limited City resources, the Community Safe Routes 

Committee  

and City Plan Commission will collaborate to create and implement a Sidewalk Plan and Map to  

guide the identification and prioritization of sidewalk improvement projects.  The  

map shall be approved by the Common Council, maintained by the Department of Public Works, and  

shall be used to assist with the development of the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and annual City  

budget.    



 

 

(C)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR STREET PROJECTS.  All properties adjacent to street  

reconstruction projects shall include sidewalk repair and replacement where existing sidewalk is  

unsafe, defective, or insufficient, and/or where sidewalk grades no longer match new street grades.   

Additionally, where no sidewalk exists, properties adjacent to street reconstruction projects shall be  

reviewed for sidewalk installation by the Director of Public Works and the Community Safe Routes 

Committee who will use the Sidewalk Plan and Map to help determine the status/location of 

sidewalks.    

 

(D)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR DEVELOPMENT/REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS.  The  

requirements for sidewalks in this section apply to any project specified below that is located on  

property that does not have a public sidewalk within the public right‐of‐way along the frontage(s) of  

the property.  All applicable projects shall include the construction of a sidewalk along the  

frontage(s) of the property.  For all projects, the property owner shall maintain the terrace area free  

of landscaping or other improvements, including retaining walls, that would inhibit the installation 

of sidewalks.    

 

1) Commercial, and Multi‐Family Development on Existing Lots  

a. Construction.  Projects on previously undeveloped land that include the construction of 

new principal commercial buildings and/or new multi‐family buildings (3 or more 

dwelling units).    

b. New Construction to Replace Existing Buildings.  Projects on previously developed 

property when a building is removed and replaced with a newly‐constructed principal 

commercial building or multi‐family building (3 or more dwelling units).  

c. Expansion of Existing Buildings.  Projects that involve building additions to commercial 

and multi‐family buildings (3 or more dwelling units) that are more than fifty percent 

(50%) of the existing building floor area.  

d. Installation Timing.  Sidewalks shall be installed prior to occupancy of a new or 

significantly expanded building.  Those structures completed and/or receiving 

temporary occupancy permits between November 1st and May 30th of the following 

year shall install the required sidewalk no later than June 30th of the succeeding year.  

 

2) New Subdivisions 

a. Residential Subdivisions.  Sidewalks are required in all new residential subdivisions.    

1. Sidewalks are required in all new residential subdivisions. Sidewalks shall be 

located on both sides of public streets except where such installation may 

involve significant grade and/or ground preparation issues (such as rock layers 

that may require blasting and/or other significant removal methods). Sidewalks 

may be located on only one side of a street terminating in a cul-de-sac, provided 

that the distance between the center of the cul-de-sac and the entrance to the 

street does not exceed 300 feet. 

2. Sidewalks shall be installed when any one of the following conditions has been 

met:  



 

 

i. Sidewalks shall be constructed for each individual lot within the 

subdivision before an occupancy permit will be issued for said lot. 

ii. All sidewalks within the subdivision shall be completed within three 

years of the streets being installed or the date included in an approved 

development agreement.  If the sidewalks are not installed by this date, 

the City may have the sidewalks installed and recover said costs from 

the bond or letter of credit provided as required by the development 

agreement.    

3. Planned Unit Developments.  The location and installation of sidewalks for 

projects that are part of an approved Planned Unit Development shall be 

determined by the approved site plan and/or development agreement.  The 

intent is that projects include private and public sidewalks as necessary to 

provide adequate connectivity.    

 

3) Industrial Park. The location and installation of sidewalks for projects that are part of an 

approved development shall be determined by the approved site plan and/or development 

agreement.   

 

(E)  SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.  All sidewalks constructed within City of Platteville street  

right of way shall be constructed to the most current ADA accessibility guidelines, the applicable  

requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, the current standards of the City of  

Platteville and the following.   

1) Sidewalks shall meet current Pedestrian Right‐of‐Way Accessibility Guideline (PROWAG) 

standards.  

2) Sidewalks shall be constructed of concrete.   

3) Sidewalks shall be a minimum 4 inches thick.  Sidewalks shall be installed through 

driveway sections to provide a uniform walking section and appearance.  Thickness of 

the sidewalk through the driveway section shall be a minimum of 6 inches thick.   

4) Sidewalks shall be installed so that the side furthest from the curb is located on the 

right‐of‐way line. The Director of Public Works may allow a different location when it is 

in the public interest.   

The following criteria will help guide location decisions:  

a. A number of large healthy trees would be injured or require removal.  

b. Sidewalk alignment within a block would be different from existing walks within 

said block.  

c. Severe grade problems would result. 

d. Construction of a sidewalk would impact stormwater management. 

e. If the installation of the sidewalk at the right‐of‐way line would violate PROWAG 

standards. 

5) Sidewalk grades associated with new subdivisions or major redevelopment projects 

shall be determined by the developer with approval by the Director of Public Works 



 

 

prior to development of the project.  It is the responsibility of the property owner to 

install a driveway with a section for a public sidewalk.  

6) All curb ramps shall meet current PROWAG standards. 

 

(F)  EXCEPTION TO SIDEWALK INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS.  The purpose of this policy is to guide  

the installation of sidewalks and the allocation of City resources and development activities to  

create a connected community that enables all residents to access community resources,  

businesses, and services in a safe and healthy manner.  In situations where the installation of  

sidewalks would be significantly more difficult due to a physical characteristic of the proposed  

sidewalk location, an appeal may be made for an exception to the sidewalk installation  

requirements.   

 

Application for an exception shall be made on a form provided by the City and shall be accompanied  

by the applicable fee.  The request shall be submitted to the Director of Public Works and shall be  

accompanied by an explanation of the characteristics present that impact the ability to install the  

sidewalk, and a cost estimate of the proposed installation.  The Director of Public Works shall  

present the request to the Community Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission for input, and  

then make a recommendation to the Common Council.  The Council shall determine if the sidewalk  

shall be installed.    

 

The following criteria shall be used to determine if an exception is warranted: 

1) Lack of available space in the public right‐of‐way, or other physical constriction does not 

allow for the construction of sidewalks to the current accessibility requirements or 

guidelines.  

2) Obstructions such as large utility facilities (i.e. power poles), retaining walls, culverts, 

large signage, etc.  

3) High construction costs due to technical challenges associated with topography and 

water drainage patterns.  

4) The area is a low-priority sidewalk area as identified by the Sidewalk Plan and Map. 

5) The Common Council, after receiving input from the Director of Public Works and the 

Community Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission, may take the following 

action:  

1. Deny the exception and require the sidewalk to be installed on one or both sides of 

the street. 

2. Approve the exception.  

3. Allow for a delayed sidewalk installation as a part of a development agreement.  

4. Allow for the payment of a fee‐in‐lieu of sidewalk installation as a part of a 

development agreement.  The fee will be used for the future installation of 

sidewalks in the vicinity of the property owned by the applicant.    

5. For subdivisions, the Council may allow for sidewalk to be installed on only one 

side of a street.  



 

 

If an exception is approved, the property owner shall still maintain the terrace area free 

of landscaping or other improvements that would inhibit the future installation of 

sidewalks.   

 
 



COMMUNITY SAFE ROUTES COMMITTEE 

Monday, January 25, 2021  

6:00 PM 

Minutes 

This meeting was held via Zoom. 

Anticipated Attendees: Kristina Fields, Cindy Tang, Maureen Vorwald, Robin Fatzinger, Danica 

Larson, David Ralph, Jason Artz  

Staff Attendees: Howard Crofoot, Luke Peters, Lauree Aulik  

1. Call to order at 6 pm 

2. Old Business  

a. Sidewalk Policy edits were made, see Option 3. Kristina motioned to approved 

Option 3 for the sidewalk policy (see attached), second by Danica. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

3. Adjourn at 6:47 pm – motion by Kristina, second by Adam. Motion passed unanimously. 



WATER & SEWER COMMISSION MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, December 9th, 2020 

4:00 PM 
 

Water and Sewer Commission President Shanley called the Regular Meeting of the City of Platteville Water and 
Sewer Commission to order on Wednesday, December 9th at 4:00 pm via Zoom. 
 
W/S Commission members present: Barb Daus, Bill Holder, Chris Wilson, Ken Kilian, Mark Meyers, Isaac 
Shanley. 
W/S Commission members excused/absent: Brian Laufenberg, 
City Staff present: City Manager–Adam Ruechel, Administration Director–Nicola Maurer, Director of Public 
Works–Howard Crofoot, Utility Superintendent–Irv Lupee.  
City Staff excused:  
Others present: Brett Ingli (student) 

 
Citizens’ Comments – None 
 
The Consent Calendar was presented for consideration. Motion by Daus, second by Meyers to approve the 
Consent Calendar with corrections to the November 4th Minutes as discussed: November 4th, 2020 Minutes, 
November Financial Report, November Bank Reconciliation and Investments Report, Payment of Bills (11/04/2020–
12/02/2020), November Water Quality Report. Motion carried.  
 
ACTION ITEMS:  
Chemical bids –   After discussion about the total cost of chemicals, including deposits and delivery charges, the 
Commission asked that this be brought back to a special meeting next week. Motion by Daus, second by Kilian to 
table approval of Chemical Bids for 2021 until additional information is available. 
 
ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:  
Emmi Roth follow up – Crofoot and Ruechel talked about the November 3rd Zoom meeting with Emmi Roth 
representatives. Emmi introduced a new plant manager, Don Barnard. Staff discussed looking at phasing in the rate 
increases over time. We discussed the possibility of partnering between Emmi and the City to request EDA 
(Economic Development Administration) grants to improve capacity at the Wastewater Plant. Emmi offered their 
influence with local farmers for future Water Quality Trading efforts. Ruechel talked about improved communication 
and a reset in expectations on both sides. 
 
WS Revenue Bond Series 2020C Sale Day Report – Maurer went over the Sale Day report. There were five bidders. 
The low bidder being BOK Financial Securities with a TIC (True Interest Cost) of 1.4567%. Originally, the revenue 
bond was sized at $1,495,000 but due to favorable costs and financer premium, the amount borrowed was only 
$1,420,000. There were additional graphs from Ehlers showing how the new borrow impacts the utility’s financial 
standing.  Maurer noted the S&P report keeping our rating at AA-. This report says that our financial picture is very 
stable and is unlikely to change, barring a major economic boost or downturn. 
 
Motion made by Kilian, second by Meyers to adjourn. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:40 pm.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Howard B. Crofoot, P.E. 
Director of Public Works  



Platteville Museum Board Minutes 
December 16, 2020   
 
Board Members Present: Eileen Nickels, Mike Hahn, Mark Stead, Deb Rice, Deb Jenny, Jennifer 
Collins, meeting held on the Zoom online meeting platform  
Others Present: Erik Flesch (Board Liaison)  
 
Call to order at 4:46 by Eileen Nickels  
 
Minutes of November 8, 2020 Museum Board meeting approved on motion by Mark Stead. Seconded 
Deb Jenny, unanimous approval. 
 
Director’s Monthly Report 

• Upcoming events 
o Prepare for next year – 45th anniversary of reopening of Bevans Mine and 40th 

anniversary of opening of Rollo Jamison 
• WI Humanities Grant  

o Submitted for 10K grant 
 Hope to use for interpretation and study of Native American tools 

• DBQ Racing Association 
o Grant had been closed due to COVID, however is reopening and Erik will resubmit grant 

by Friday.  Monies to be used for virtual and in-person field trips next year. 
• Horse drawn Carriage Rides 

o 57 of 60 total slots reserved 
• Holiday Lighting 

o Added LED lighting outside museum – suggestion by board member to tap into ‘Focus 
on Energy’ for reimbursement 

• Winter Lyceum Planning 
o Underway.  Will take place Sundays in Feb/March on Zoom 

• Building and Grounds 
o Hanmer-Robbins - City voted 17-0 to approve block grant submission, received $331,430 

to cover expenses for new roof 
o Circle K Polar Express widow decorating took place – although we didn’t win was 

successful project 
o Historic Preservation Commission Planning 

 To be used for long-term building maintenance  
• Education Task Force 

o Will resume in spring 
• Strategic Plan Update 

o Working on pulling together ‘walking script’ 
o Continue to participate in UWP Freshman Scavenger Hunt 
o Reconnecting with local schools and districts and expanding outreach 
o Working on putting items in collections around town – have updated those at SW Health 

and Chamber 
o Stewardship 

 Trying to reduce overcrowding and get much more organized, interns are making 
headway 

o Interns 
 Have been very engaged in several projects and grant funding will fund them 

through 2022  



o Look to expand relationship with James Hibbard and SW Wisco Room at UWP 
o Funding 

 City Manager extended CIP budget and have 15K extra to put toward staffing 
needs, however this is not a permanent funding strand 

o Continuing work on creating ‘fun and engaging experiences’  
 Refreshing spaces and opening previously closed areas, refreshing exhibits, 

increasing interactive components,  
 CLOPAS (?) – contacted by local video game company to work on interactive 

‘game’ so folks can interact with artifacts and spaces within the museum 
o Continued work to grow capacity by focusing on capital campaign 
o Will continue to cultivate and recruit talented locals to serve as Board Members 
o Continued work on strengthening the brand with marketing strategies 
o Direct email list continues to grow 
o Being work on renovation o lower level of the Rock School 

 
Collections Monthly Report 

• No accessions/deaccessions 
• Collection crew working on ‘way finding diagrams’ and relocating and rearranging items  
• Relocated large collected of art 

o Pegboard wall in Rock School to house art 
• Rearranged wood and glass display cabinet 

 
Friends of The Mining and Rollo Jamison Museum Report – Deb 

• Moving forward, finances square and can move on into 2021 
 
Old business 

• 2021 City Budget 
o Maintain levels as in previous years + 15K for staffing 

 
New business 

• none 
 
Adjournment at 5:25 p.m. on motion by Mark, second by Deb. The next meeting will be held on 
Wednesday January 20.  
Submitted by Jen Collins, Board Member 
 



PARKS, FORESTRY, & RECREATION COMMITTEE 

Monday, December 21, 2020 Minutes 
 

The regular meeting of the Platteville Parks, Forestry, and Recreation Committee of the City of Platteville was called to order by 

Jason Artz at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom. 
 

ROLL CALL  

Present: Jason Artz, Don Francis, Erin Ihm, Suraya Strobl, Brian Whisenant, Cindy Tang, Jennifer Ginter-Lyght  

Others in Attendance: Luke Peters and Adam Ruechel 

 

Welcome to New Members: Brian Whisenant, Suraya Strobl 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  A motion was made by Don Francis to approve the amended minutes from November 16, 2020, seconded 

Erin Ihm. Motion carried. 
 

STAFF UPDATE: 

a. Pickleball 
b. Bicycle Pump Track 
c. Ash Tree Removal 
d. Broske Center 

NEW BUSINESS 

a. Trust Fund Review / Fundraising Ideas – With several new members on the Committee, Luke Peters provided an overview 

on the various Trust Funds and Endowment Funds held by the Parks, Forestry, and Recreation Departments. He also asked 

the Committee to think about any fundraising opportunities that they feel may be effective.   

OLD BUSINESS 

a. Pool Concession Stand – Discussion continued regarding options for the Pool Concession Stand. It was decided that staff 

would continue to explore the options of working with the existing vendor, running the stand in-house, and closing the 

stand to allow carry-ins. The Committee was not in favor of recruiting a new vendor at this time.  

 
 

NEXT MEETING – January 18, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom. 

 

Motion to adjourn by Brian Whisenant , seconded by Erin Ihm. Motion carried. Meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m.  

 

Minutes by Luke Peters  



 
The Platteville Public Library Board of Trustees Board Meeting 

Wednesday, January 6, 2021  6:00p.m. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82131940663 
Meeting ID: 821 3194 0663 

Join by Phone:  +1 312 626 6799  
   
 

Minutes 
I. CALL TO ORDER by President Reimann 6:10p 

Board Members Present: Kyle Reimann, Carla Wages, Emily Zachery, Robin Cline, Lacy Taylor 
Board Members Absent: Cheryl Schober, Nikki Klein 
Staff Present: Director Lee-Jones, Karina Zidon, Erin Isabell, Cheryl Phillips 
Others Present: None 
 

 
II. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA -- The following items may be approved on a single motion and vote 

due to their routine nature or previous discussion. Please indicate to the Board President if you would prefer 
separate discussion and action for any item.  1st by Cline.  2nd by Wages. Motion passed. 

 
A. Meeting duly posted  
B. Acceptance of Agenda 
C. Approval of Minutes from December 2, 2020 
 

III. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS and PETITIONS, if any 
Comments shall be limited to those by/from community members and shall be limited to no more than 5 
minutes. 

President Reimann brought up that some people’s cards are expiring and that he was not aware of this 
as standard procedure. Director Lee-Jones assured that it is routine to assure that the patrons’ information is 
updated on a regular basis.  

 
IV. REPORTS 

A. Municipal Financial report  
B. Library Board Financial report 
C. Director’s report  
D. City Council report 
E. Foundation report 
F. SWLS report 

 
V. ACTION 

A. Approval of January bills  1st by Reimann. 2nd by Zachery. Motion passed. 
B. COVID service level Motion to continue the current phase we are in, using policies as they stand, 

with the intent to review again at the February meeting. 1st by Reimann. 2nd by Taylor. Motion 
passed. 

C. 2021 Library goals 1st by Taylor. 2nd by Cline.  Motion passed. 
 

VI. INFORMATION and DISCUSSION -  Nothing noted. 
 
ADJOURNMENT at 7:20pm  1st by Wages. 2nd by Zachery. Motion passed. 

Next Regular Library Board Meeting:  Wednesday, February 3, 2021 at 6p.m. 
 

 
NOTICE: If your attendance requires special accommodation, please write the Platteville Public Library, 225 West Main 
Street, Platteville, WI  53818, or call (608) 348-7441 (option #5). 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82131940663
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1FOBI5aMTNjZPZEly4WNSVB9jXTYztgqse00RiXV0T38/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/15QBpLVLtXK1zql4tH3YaNIpOKythYuSkYToFp0si-z0/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AW_teSp6EqZGDKkWureqisUCY106u8N7/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1YMmLTbv0oX502fuPIII1XcmjAXk4vPbeQAALX-YYkqQ/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1R1wWOPLU7fSpIEmZf_UpXIhPnzqvMv3T949hLzF2ifI/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/16xFOZpw2ItP_9z-bH1kZD0fdETRoH_jYdaDAeQm2mwM/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1U4yar8KXP8yZc7mHIftq4awadgE0wYO3VtQXIKAVpyc/edit?usp=sharing


 

 

Approved Minutes of January 11th, 2021 
As Approved at the Feb. 8th, 2021 meeting. Submitted by Doug Stephens, Feb. 8th, 2021 
Meeting was held via Zoom.  Please see documented access information at the end of these minutes. 
 

Airport Commission Meeting 
January 11th, 2020, 6:00 pm 
Meeting held via Zoom  

 
I.    Commission Meeting Call to Order: by Cooley, Chairman @ 6:01 pm 
 

a. Quorum achieved 
b. Attendance, Commission Members: Dennis Cooley (P), Doug Du Plessis (P), Kathy Kopp (P, City 

of Platteville Common Council, Airport Representative) (P), Chuck Runde (P), Joe Sener (P), Doug 
Stephens (P), Danny Xiao (A). Others: Alaine Olthafer‐Lange (A&A Aviation, Airport 
Management), Nicola Maurer (City of Platteville Administrative Director), Adam Ruechel 
(Platteville City Manager), Josh Holbrook (Airport Development Engineer, Wisconsin Department 
of Transportation, Bureau of Aeronautics). 

 
II.   Approval of Minutes, Dec. 14th, 2020: Stephens, Secretary  

a. Motion to approve the Dec. 14th minutes by Runde, 2nd by Sener. Passes unanimously. 

 
III.   Citizen’s Comments, Observations and Petitions: Cooley, Chairman 

a.   None. 

 

IV. Sub‐Committee Meetings for January: Cooley, Chairman 

       a.   Setup of meetings (bring calendars): On Jan. 28th the following meetings are scheduled: 

o 10:00 ‐11:00 AM will be the PMAC Budget Group mtg.,  

o 1:00 PM will be PMAC Projects Group mtg.,  

o 2:30 ‐3:30 will be the Marketing Group mtg.  

b.   Back Room Refurbish Project Update: 

o Olthafer‐Lange stated that the furniture has been purchased.  The carpet fit well. Things 

were kept under budget. 

c.   High school aviation distance learning partnership with CESA 3: 

o Cooley spoke about Jamie Nutter (Fox Valley Aviation Program) and will put Olthafer‐Lang in 

contact with him. Nutter had said very positive things about Olthafer‐Lange/A&A Aviation. 

o Olthafer‐Lange spoke about CESA 3 (Cooperative Educational Services Agencies, with District 

3 being Southwest Wisconsin) and Fox Valley Technical College (physically located in CESA 

District 6), and the concept of integrating an aviation program into a high school curriculum. 

There are 31 schools in the CESA 3 District. Fox Valley Tech is interested in expanding their 

concepts. Spoke about a pilot program online through CESA 3, by Fox Valley Technical 

College. Southwest Wisconsin Technical College may be interested in the program. Fox 

Valley Tech is engaged in the mechanical side. 

d.   Quarterly BOA financial update 

 



 

 

V.  Airport Masterplan and Hangar Project Update: Cooley, Chairman 

a. Design, Location, Quantity: Cooley stated that the contract was signed earlier this month. 

b. VALE Program (FAA’s Voluntary Airport Low Emissions Program), alternative energy sources: 

Holbrook stated that the airport will not be able to get funding for solar panels, as solar panels 

are outside the scope of the VALE Program. 

c. Potential hangar sizes were discussed, including Erect‐A‐Tube Inc. hangar model 10‐unit t‐

hangar with a 60’x60’ box hangar. 

 

VI. CARES Act Submittal: Manager 

a.   One‐time reimbursement: Olthafer‐Lange spoke about doing a one‐time submission for Airport    

      Management for salary, which would be $30,000. Holbrook stated that the Airport should not 

count upon more CARES Act funding in the future. 

 

VII. Strategic Planning/Visioning Session Recap: Cooley, Chairman 

 Progress on Relationship Building 

 

VIII. Treasurer’s Report, December 31, 2020: Du Plessis, Treasurer 

 Du Plessis report noted Treasurer’s Cash of $202,571.72 and Total Assets of $335,336.61 

and an existing hangar loan balance of $48,010.70 

a. Monthly Income, from Financial Report:      $56,911.99 

b. Monthly Expense, from Financial Report:     $24,995.52 

c. Monthly Invoice Payments:           $12,611.88 

d. Status of Project Payments: Hangar loan balance of $48,010.70. Will have balance paid off in 

2024. 

e. Annual revenue only missed by 5%, which was really good. 

f. Maurer mentioned the Alliant Bill, and that there may be some other bills coming in soon. Du 

Plessis asked if the Airport accrues prior‐year invoices at year end, and Maurer said yes. 

Olthafer‐Lange stated there will be a few more payments coming in as revenue for fuel.   

g. Olthafer‐Lange stated that to complete the back room renovation, she needed to purchase few 

things from IKEA. Because the Airport doesn’t have an account with IKEA, the Airport will need 

to reimburse Olthafer‐Lange.  

e.    Motion by Du Plessis to approve the Treasurer’s Report and pay the vouchers. 2nd by Runde. 

Passes unanimously.  

 

 IX. Manager’s Report: A&A Aviation Olthafer‐Lange, Manager 

 General Airfield Operations: December was a good month. Winter weather is starting to impact 

operations, as expected. Ending the year well, and overall. Even with no EAA in 2021 it was a 

good year in terms of airport operations. Agricultural spraying was busy, and the volume of 

flights helped a lot. 



 

 

 The most‐recently received crop land rental payment was higher, due to corn prices being 

higher. Corn prices are up 5%, and this resulted in the received rental payment being higher by 

approx. $11,000. This helped the Airport. 

 A Wounded Warrior Flight came through the Platteville Airport.  

 Runde complimented Olthafer‐Lange regarding the back room, noting that it is really nice. 

 Du Plessis asked about video/data projection in the back room. We don’t have that 

capability/equipment yet. Olthafer‐Lange will check into it. 

 Cooley asked Maurer and Ruechel about future City annual commitments of $15,000 to the 

Airport, through the City budget. Maurer noted that it did pass through the Council, and would 

be $15,000 annually, for the purpose of the Airport’s annual matching funding requirements for 

projects. $15,000 will come from the City to the Platteville Airport in 2021. The Airport will 

record this in the Airport budget.   

 Airport Committee meetings will be January 28th.  The University Engineering Senior Design 

group will have their presentation at 1:00 PM on Jan. 28th. Discussed having the presentation 

from 12:30 ‐1:00 then the Project Group meeting from 12:30 ‐2:00 PM. 

 Olthafer‐Lange noted that the Airport will receive a big credit from the fuel farm concrete pad, 

as this was worked on in the runway project. We will end up paying in about $80,000. Cooley 

asked Holbrook about when projects will be closed. Holbrook stated that they would be closed 

right after the last bill comes in. Holbrook is currently working with other airports as their 

entitlements come in. 

 Kopp asked about Travis Tranel’s visit to the Airport. Olthafer‐Lange responded that the visit 

went well, and they did a Discovery Flight. 

 

 Flight Operations:  

Flight Activity Dec. 2020  Flight Activity Dec. 2019 

Total Flights 1250  Total Flights 494 

Personal 234  Personal 76 

Business 60  Business 38 

Instruction 956  Instruction 380 

 Fuel Sales: 

Fuel Sales Dec. 2020  Fuel Sales for Dec. 2019 

100LL 1043 Gallons  100LL 777 Gallons 

JetA   1119 Gallons  JetA   1163 Gallons 

 Fuel Purchased and Current Price (Dec. 2020): 



 

 

Fuel Type  Quan. Purchased   Current Price 

100LL  0  $4.05 

JetA  0  $3.00 

 

d.    Marketing Update: None/previously covered in this meeting. 

 

X. Adjournment: Cooley, Chairman 
a. Motion to adjourn by Stephens, 2nd by Du Plessis. Passes unanimously. Adjourned at 6:46 PM 

 
Access information from Jan. 11th, 2021 Meeting Agenda: 
To join the Airport Commission Meeting via Zoom please visit: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7658241452?pwd=c3hxa1l4azBXY3IxVm9UM0liTU1jUT09 
Meeting ID: 765 824 1452 
Passcode: 848076 
Or connect by phone: 877‐853‐5257 US Toll‐free or 888‐475‐4499 US Toll‐free 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
ACTION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VII.A. 

TITLE:   
Sidewalk Policy 
 

DATE:   
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Joe Carroll, Community Development Director 

 
Description:   
The desire for a Sidewalk Policy resulted from discussions with members of the Community Safe Routes 
Committee and Plan Commission related to the code requirements for sidewalks that are installed during 
development and redevelopment projects.  There is a desire to have a policy that will help guide specific code 
requirements, future CIP and budget planning, and other potential initiatives. 
 
Attached is the proposed Option 2 – Revised, which is the version of the policy that was based on Plan 
Commission and Community Safe Routes Committee joint meetings that were held in the fall and previously 
presented to the Council.  The revisions to the document are a result of comments that were made at Council 
meetings when the draft policy was discussed. 
 
Also attached is a proposed Option 3, which is a version being proposed by the Community Safe Routes 
Committee and is based on additional discussions that group held in January. 
 
Per the request of the Common Council, the Fire Department has provided the following information: 
The Fire Department would desire a lane width of 12 feet as you must consider the street widths during winter 
when there are snowbanks and vehicle parking.  It must also be considered that in most cases, a fire engine 
must park in the middle of the road to allow access to the compartments and hose on the sides of the 
apparatus.  In many cases, this is limited space especially on roads with parking on both sides. 
 
When reference to any cul-de-sac areas, most of the Fire Department vehicles have a 50 degree inside cramp 
angle and need a minimum 36 feet wall to wall turning radii which puts the tires on both curbs to turn through 
a cul-de-sac.  The aerial truck requires 48 feet wall to wall turning radii.  This equates to cul-de-sacs must be 
larger to accommodate fire apparatus.  We currently must back out of most residential streets that are dead 
ends with just a cul-de-sac at the end of them. 
 
The Fire Department has included a chart of each apparatus’ dimensions for your reference. 
 
Budget/Fiscal Impact:   
There are no direct budget impacts.  The policy may impact budget amounts for future street repair and 
sidewalk installation projects. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Community Safe Routes Committee and the Plan Commission worked on this policy with Staff.  There was 
consensus at a joint meeting on October 5th to recommend it to the Council.     
The Community Safe Routes Committee provided additional recommendations as provided in Option 3. 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“Motion to approve the proposed Sidewalk Policy.” 



 
Attachments:   

• Draft Sidewalk Policy Option 2 Revised – dated December 16, 2020 

• Draft Sidewalk Policy Option 3 – revised January 18, and January 25, 2021 

• Street Width Map and photos 

• Fire Department Apparatus Dimensions 
 
 



 

 

OPTION 2 ‐ Revised    Draft:  December 16, 2020  

 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE SIDEWALK POLICY  

 

(A)  PURPOSE AND INTENT.  The purpose of this section is to establish requirements to guide and  

coordinate the installation of sidewalks necessary to serve new development and redevelopment in  

the City of Platteville.  It is the goal of the City to provide a variety of transportation options for all  

residents, including sidewalks, for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.   

The standards established by this section are intended to ensure the installation of sidewalks  

associated with development and redevelopment is compatible with surrounding land uses,  

contributes to the unique character and aesthetics of the City, does not have a significant adverse  

fiscal impact on City infrastructure or services, and promotes the general health, safety and welfare  

of the community.  

 

The City recognizes sidewalks play a vital role in city life.  As conduits for pedestrian and bicycle  

movement and access, they enhance connectivity and promote non‐auto transportation.  As public  

spaces, sidewalks serve as the front steps to the community, activating streets socially and  

economically.  Safe, accessible, and well‐maintained sidewalks are a fundamental and necessary  

investment for the City.    

 

Guiding policy principles:  

1) Sidewalks are necessary to provide safe, convenient, and efficient pedestrian travel  

throughout the City for all ages and abilities.  

2) Sidewalks should be installed to minimize conflicts between pedestrians and other modes of  

travel and improve the pedestrian network.  

3) Sidewalks are used by all residents and members of the community, so the cost of  

installation and maintenance of sidewalks should be shared by all to the greatest extent  

possible.    

4) Sidewalks should be considered an important component of development and street  

reconstruction projects.  

5) Sidewalks should be provided on all existing and future streets where appropriate and safe, 

for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.    

 

(B)  PLAN FOR COMPLETING THE SIDEWALK NETWORK.  The City embraces the ideal that a walkable  

community enhances livability and the welfare of its residents and will strive to repair and install  

new sidewalks where street reconstruction or property development is not anticipated within five  

years.  Recognizing the expense of this effort and limited City resources, the Safe Routes Committee  

and City Plan Commission will collaborate to create and implement a Sidewalk Plan and Map to  

guide the identification and prioritization of sidewalk improvement projects.  The PAIDC Board shall  

be given an opportunity to provide comments on sidewalks proposed for the industry park.  The  

map shall be approved by the Common Council, maintained by the Department of Public Works, and  

shall be used to assist with the development of the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and annual City  

budget.    

 



 

 

(C)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR STREET PROJECTS.  All properties adjacent to street  

reconstruction projects shall include sidewalk repair and replacement where existing sidewalk is  

unsafe, defective, or insufficient, and/or where sidewalk grades no longer match new street grades.   

Additionally, where no sidewalk exists, properties adjacent to street reconstruction projects shall be  

reviewed for sidewalk installation.  The installation of sidewalks that can connect to and extend the  

existing sidewalk system is a higher priority than the installation of isolated sidewalk sections.   

 

(D)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR DEVELOPMENT/REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS.  The  

requirements for sidewalks in this section apply to any project specified below that is located on  

property that does not have a public sidewalk within the public right‐of‐way along the frontage(s) of  

the property.  All applicable projects shall include the construction of a sidewalk along the  

frontage(s) of the property.  For all projects, the property owner shall maintain the terrace area free  

of landscaping or other improvements that would inhibit the installation of future sidewalks.    

 

1) Commercial and Multi-Family Development on Existing Lots 

a. New Construction.  Projects on previously undeveloped land that include the 

construction of new principal commercial buildings and/or new multi‐family buildings (3 

or more dwelling units).    

b. New Construction to Replace Existing Buildings.  Projects on previously developed 

property when a building is removed and replaced with a newly‐constructed principal 

commercial building or multi‐family building (3 or more dwelling units). 

c. Expansion of Existing Buildings.  Projects that involve building additions to commercial 

and multi‐family buildings (3 or more dwelling units) that are more than fifty percent 

(50%) of the existing building floor area.  

d. Installation Timing.  Sidewalks shall be installed prior to occupancy of a new or 

significantly expanded building.  Those structures completed and/or receiving 

temporary occupancy permits between November 1st and May 30th of the following 

year shall install the required sidewalk no later than June 30th of the succeeding year.  

 

2) New Subdivisions 

a. Residential Subdivisions. Sidewalks are required in all new residential subdivisions.    

1.  Sidewalks shall be located on both sides of public streets except where such installation  

may involve significant grade and/or ground preparation issues (such as rock layers that  

may require blasting and/or other significant removal methods).  Additionally, sidewalks  

may be considered for cul‐de‐sacs but shall not be required.    

2.  Sidewalks shall be installed when any one of the following conditions has been met:  

i. Sidewalks shall be constructed for each individual lot within the subdivision before 

an occupancy permit will be issued for said lot 

ii. All sidewalks within the subdivision shall be completed within three years of the 

streets being installed or the date included in an approved development agreement.  

If the sidewalks are not installed by this date, the City may have the sidewalks 

installed and recover said costs from the bond or letter of credit provided as 

required by the development agreement.    

 



 

 

3) Planned Unit Developments.  The location and installation of sidewalks for projects that are part 

of an approved Planned Unit Development shall be determined by the approved site plan 

and/or development agreement.  The intent is that projects include private and public sidewalks 

as necessary to provide adequate connectivity.    

 

(E)  SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.  All sidewalks constructed within City of Platteville street  

right of way shall be constructed to the most current ADA accessibility guidelines, the applicable  

requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, the current standards of the City of  

Platteville and the following.   

 

1) Sidewalks shall meet current Pedestrian Right‐of‐Way Accessibility Guideline (PROWAG)  

standards.  

2) Sidewalks shall be constructed of concrete.  

3) Sidewalks shall be a minimum 4 inches thick.  Sidewalks shall be installed through driveway 

sections to provide a uniform walking section and appearance.  Thickness of the sidewalk 

through the driveway section shall be a minimum of 6 inches thick.   

4) Sidewalks shall be installed so that the side furthest from the curb is located on the right‐of‐way 

line. The Director of Public Works may allow a different location when it is in the public interest.  

The following criteria will help guide location decisions:  

a. A number of large healthy trees would be injured or require removal. 

b. Sidewalk alignment within a block would be different from existing walks within said 

block.  

c. Severe grade problems would result. 

d. Construction of a sidewalk would impact stormwater management. 

e. If the installation of the sidewalk at the right‐of‐way line would violate PROWAG 

standards.  

5) Sidewalk grades associated with new subdivisions or major redevelopment projects shall be  

determined by the developer with approval by the Director of Public Works prior to  

development of the project.  It is the responsibility of the property owner to install a driveway  

with a section for a public sidewalk.  

6) All curb ramps shall meet current PROWAG standards.  

 

(F)  EXCEPTION TO SIDEWALK INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS.  The purpose of this policy is to guide  

the installation of sidewalks and the allocation of City resources and development activities to  

create a connected community that enables all residents to access community resources,  

businesses, and services in a safe and healthy manner.  In situations where the installation of  

sidewalks would be significantly more difficult due to a physical characteristic of the proposed  

sidewalk location, an appeal may be made for an exception to the sidewalk installation  

requirements.   

 

Application for an exception shall be made on a form provided by the City and shall be accompanied  

by the applicable fee.  The request shall be submitted to the Director of Public Works and shall be  

accompanied by an explanation of the characteristics present that impact the ability to install the  

sidewalk, and a cost estimate of the proposed installation.  The Director of Public Works shall  



 

 

present the request to the Community Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission for input, and  

then make a recommendation to the Common Council.  The Council shall determine if the sidewalk  

shall be installed.    

 

The following criteria shall be used to determine if an exception is warranted:  

1) Lack of available space in the public right‐of‐way, or other physical constriction does not allow 

for the construction of sidewalks to the current accessibility requirements or guidelines.  

2) Obstructions such as large utility facilities (i.e. power poles), retaining walls, culverts, signage, 

etc.  

3) High construction costs due to technical challenges associated with topography and water 

drainage patterns.  

4) The inability to provide connectivity due to the lack of sidewalks on adjacent properties or in the 

vicinity.   

 

The Common Council, after receiving input from the Director of Public Works and the Community  

Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission, may take the following action:  

 

1) Deny the exception and require the sidewalk to be installed.  

2) Approve the exception.  

3) Allow for a delayed sidewalk installation as a part of a development agreement.  

4) Allow for the payment of a fee‐in‐lieu of sidewalk installation as a part of a development  

agreement.  The fee will be used for the future installation of sidewalks in the vicinity of the  

property owned by the applicant.    

5) For subdivisions, the Council may allow for sidewalk to be installed on only one side of a  

street.  

 

If an exception is approved, the property owner shall still maintain the terrace area free of  

landscaping or other improvements that would inhibit the future installation of sidewalks.   



 

 

OPTION 3 ‐Revisions by the Community Safe Routes Meetings on 1/18/21 and 1 25 21 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE SIDEWALK POLICY  

(A)  PURPOSE AND INTENT.  The purpose of this section is to establish requirements to guide and  

coordinate the installation of sidewalks necessary to serve new development and redevelopment in  

the City of Platteville.  It is the goal of the City to provide a variety of transportation options for all  

residents, including sidewalks, for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.   

The standards established by this section are intended to ensure the installation of sidewalks  

associated with development and redevelopment is compatible with surrounding land uses,  

contributes to the unique character and aesthetics of the City, does not have a significant adverse  

fiscal impact on City infrastructure or services, and promotes the general health, safety and welfare  

of the community.  

 

The City recognizes sidewalks play a vital role in city life.  As conduits for pedestrian and bicycle  

movement and access, they enhance connectivity and promote non‐auto transportation.  As public  

spaces, sidewalks serve as the front steps to the community, activating streets socially and  

economically.  Safe, accessible, and well‐maintained sidewalks are a fundamental and necessary  

investment for the City.    

 

Guiding policy principles:  

1) Sidewalks are necessary to provide safe, convenient, and efficient pedestrian travel  

throughout the City for all ages and abilities.  

2) Sidewalks should be installed to minimize conflicts between pedestrians and other 

modes of travel and improve the pedestrian network.  

3) Sidewalks are used by all residents and members of the community, so the cost of  

installation and maintenance of sidewalks should be shared by all to the greatest extent  

possible.    

4) Sidewalks should be considered an important component of development and street  

reconstruction projects.  

5) Sidewalks should be provided on all existing and future streets where appropriate and 

safe, for the benefit of the health, safety, and welfare of its constituents.    

 

(B)  PLAN FOR COMPLETING THE SIDEWALK NETWORK.  The City embraces the ideal that a walkable  

community enhances livability and the welfare of its residents and will strive to repair and install  

new sidewalks where street reconstruction or property development is not anticipated within five  

years.  Recognizing the expense of this effort and limited City resources, the Community Safe Routes 

Committee and City Plan Commission will collaborate to create and implement a Sidewalk Plan and 

Map to guide the identification and prioritization of sidewalk improvement projects.  The  

map shall be approved by the Common Council, maintained by the Department of Public Works, and  

shall be used to assist with the development of the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and annual City  

budget.    

 



 

 

(C)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR STREET PROJECTS.  All properties adjacent to street  

reconstruction projects shall include sidewalk repair and replacement where existing sidewalk is  

unsafe, defective, or insufficient, and/or where sidewalk grades no longer match new street grades.   

Additionally, where no sidewalk exists, properties adjacent to street reconstruction projects shall be  

reviewed for sidewalk installation by the Director of Public Works and the Community Safe Routes 

Committee who will use the Sidewalk Plan and Map to help determine the status/location of 

sidewalks.    

 

(D)  INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALKS FOR DEVELOPMENT/REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS.  The  

requirements for sidewalks in this section apply to any project specified below that is located on  

property that does not have a public sidewalk within the public right‐of‐way along the frontage(s) of  

the property.  All applicable projects shall include the construction of a sidewalk along the  

frontage(s) of the property.  For all projects, the property owner shall maintain the terrace area free  

of landscaping or other improvements, including retaining walls, that would inhibit the installation 

of sidewalks.    

 

1) Commercial, and Multi‐Family Development on Existing Lots  

a. Construction.  Projects on previously undeveloped land that include the construction of 

new principal commercial buildings and/or new multi‐family buildings (3 or more 

dwelling units).    

b. New Construction to Replace Existing Buildings.  Projects on previously developed 

property when a building is removed and replaced with a newly‐constructed principal 

commercial building or multi‐family building (3 or more dwelling units).  

c. Expansion of Existing Buildings.  Projects that involve building additions to commercial 

and multi‐family buildings (3 or more dwelling units) that are more than fifty percent 

(50%) of the existing building floor area.  

d. Installation Timing.  Sidewalks shall be installed prior to occupancy of a new or 

significantly expanded building.  Those structures completed and/or receiving 

temporary occupancy permits between November 1st and May 30th of the following 

year shall install the required sidewalk no later than June 30th of the succeeding year.  

 

2) New Subdivisions 

a. Residential Subdivisions.  Sidewalks are required in all new residential subdivisions.    

1. Sidewalks are required in all new residential subdivisions. Sidewalks shall be 

located on both sides of public streets except where such installation may 

involve significant grade and/or ground preparation issues (such as rock layers 

that may require blasting and/or other significant removal methods). Sidewalks 

may be located on only one side of a street terminating in a cul-de-sac, provided 

that the distance between the center of the cul-de-sac and the entrance to the 

street does not exceed 300 feet. 

2. Sidewalks shall be installed when any one of the following conditions has been 

met:  



 

 

i. Sidewalks shall be constructed for each individual lot within the 

subdivision before an occupancy permit will be issued for said lot. 

ii. All sidewalks within the subdivision shall be completed within three 

years of the streets being installed or the date included in an approved 

development agreement.  If the sidewalks are not installed by this date, 

the City may have the sidewalks installed and recover said costs from 

the bond or letter of credit provided as required by the development 

agreement.  

   

3) Planned Unit Developments.  The location and installation of sidewalks for projects that are 

part of an approved Planned Unit Development shall be determined by the approved site plan 

and/or development agreement.  The intent is that projects include private and public sidewalks 

as necessary to provide adequate connectivity.    

 

4) Industrial Park. The location and installation of sidewalks for projects that are part of an 

approved development shall be determined by the approved site plan and/or development 

agreement.   

 

(E)  SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.  All sidewalks constructed within City of Platteville street  

right of way shall be constructed to the most current ADA accessibility guidelines, the applicable  

requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, the current standards of the City of  

Platteville and the following.   

1) Sidewalks shall meet current Pedestrian Right‐of‐Way Accessibility Guideline (PROWAG) 

standards.  

2) Sidewalks shall be constructed of concrete.   

3) Sidewalks shall be a minimum 4 inches thick.  Sidewalks shall be installed through 

driveway sections to provide a uniform walking section and appearance.  Thickness of 

the sidewalk through the driveway section shall be a minimum of 6 inches thick.   

4) Sidewalks shall be installed so that the side furthest from the curb is located on the 

right‐of‐way line. The Director of Public Works may allow a different location when it is 

in the public interest.   

The following criteria will help guide location decisions:  

a. A number of large healthy trees would be injured or require removal.  

b. Sidewalk alignment within a block would be different from existing walks within 

said block.  

c. Severe grade problems would result. 

d. Construction of a sidewalk would impact stormwater management. 

e. If the installation of the sidewalk at the right‐of‐way line would violate PROWAG 

standards. 

5) Sidewalk grades associated with new subdivisions or major redevelopment projects 

shall be determined by the developer with approval by the Director of Public Works 



 

 

prior to development of the project.  It is the responsibility of the property owner to 

install a driveway with a section for a public sidewalk.  

6) All curb ramps shall meet current PROWAG standards. 

 

(F)  EXCEPTION TO SIDEWALK INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS.  The purpose of this policy is to guide  

the installation of sidewalks and the allocation of City resources and development activities to  

create a connected community that enables all residents to access community resources,  

businesses, and services in a safe and healthy manner.  In situations where the installation of  

sidewalks would be significantly more difficult due to a physical characteristic of the proposed  

sidewalk location, an appeal may be made for an exception to the sidewalk installation  

requirements.   

 

Application for an exception shall be made on a form provided by the City and shall be accompanied  

by the applicable fee.  The request shall be submitted to the Director of Public Works and shall be  

accompanied by an explanation of the characteristics present that impact the ability to install the  

sidewalk, and a cost estimate of the proposed installation.  The Director of Public Works shall  

present the request to the Community Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission for input, and  

then make a recommendation to the Common Council.  The Council shall determine if the sidewalk  

shall be installed.    

 

The following criteria shall be used to determine if an exception is warranted: 

1) Lack of available space in the public right‐of‐way, or other physical constriction does not 

allow for the construction of sidewalks to the current accessibility requirements or 

guidelines.  

2) Obstructions such as large utility facilities (i.e. power poles), retaining walls, culverts, 

large signage, etc.  

3) High construction costs due to technical challenges associated with topography and 

water drainage patterns.  

4) The area is a low-priority sidewalk area as identified by the Sidewalk Plan and Map. 

 

The Common Council, after receiving input from the Director of Public Works and the 

Community Safe Routes Committee and Plan Commission, may take the following action:  

 

1. Deny the exception and require the sidewalk to be installed on one or both sides of 

the street. 

2. Approve the exception.  

3. Allow for a delayed sidewalk installation as a part of a development agreement.  

4. Allow for the payment of a fee‐in‐lieu of sidewalk installation as a part of a 

development agreement.  The fee will be used for the future installation of 

sidewalks in the vicinity of the property owned by the applicant.    

5. For subdivisions, the Council may allow for sidewalk to be installed on only one 

side of a street.  



 

 

If an exception is approved, the property owner shall still maintain the terrace area free 

of landscaping or other improvements that would inhibit the future installation of 

sidewalks.   

 
 



ROW Street Parking Driving Lane 

Street Name Width Width Parking Width Lanes Width

Greenwood Ave (Hickory to Bradford) 20 20 None 0 2 10

Second St (Pine to Furnace) also 4th 33 23 1 8 1 15

Third St (Pine to Furnace) 33 23 1 7 2 8

Furnace (Water to Chestnut) 40 28 None 0 2 14

Dewey St (Water to Elm) 45 32 1 8 2 12

Jefferson (Cedar to Lewis) 45 20 1 6 2 7

Madison (Water to Fourth) 45 34 2 8 2 9

Water St (Main to S of Stevens) 45 30 None 0 2 15

Cedar St (near Chestnut St) 46 28 1 8 2 10

Pine St (Water to Cora) 49 34 2 7 2 10

Camp St (Fourth to Lancaster) 50 36 2 8 2 10

Cornerstone Circle 50 30 2 6 2 9

Elm St(Pine to Furnace) 50 36 2 8 2 10

Lutheran St( Furnace to Madison) 50 32 2 7 2 9

Philips Road 50 40 None 0 3 13

Preston 60 24 None 0 2 12

Perry  (Parking will be in the grass off the street) 60 22 2 0 2 11

S. Court St  (Harrison to S. end) 60 36 2 8 2 10

Hickory St (Main to Cedar) 60 40 2 8 2 12

Golden Heights (Pioneer, Cadillac, etc) 60 36 2 8 2 10

Knollwood (Knollwood & Oakhaven) 60 36 2 8 2 10

Broadway (Main to Madison) 60 40 2 8 2 12

Lancaster St (Adams to N of Camp) 66 44 2 8 2 14

Vision Dr (Philips to Enterprise) 70 40 2 8 2 12

Virgin Ave 78.5 40 2 8 2 12

Lancaster St (Washington to Ridge) 80 36 None 0 2 18

Lancaster St (N of Camp to Washington) 90 36 None 0 2 18

Business 151 (Eastside Road) 110 40 Shoulder 8 2 12

Business 151 (Staley) 120 40 Shoulder 8 2 12

Business 151 (Staley) (after the Bus 151 work) 120 40 None 0 3 12

Business 151 (Valley) 130 40 Shoulder 8 2 12

Sample Street Widths



Hospital

Harrison Park

Swiss Valley Park

Water Tower

Avista Ubersox Chrysler
Ashley's Market

Menards Goodwill

Hibbet Sports

Walmart

High School

Moundview Park

OutlotOutlot

Incubator

Signs to Go
O'Reilly Car Wash

First Capital
Farm & Fleet

Radio Shack

U-Haul
Pioneer Lanes

4 Seasons SW Logistics

First Supply

Pioneer Ford Woodward
Runde Mtrs Wunderlin

Stonemans Mill

Emmi Roth

Smith Park Legion Field

Middle School

Miners Field UWP BP

Museum
Street Dept

Highland Park

Eastman

Grimes

High Vibe

OE Gray School

UWP

City Park

Mound City

Westview Park

UWP

Greenwood Cemetery

UWP

Calvary Cemetery

Las Palmas

Walgreens
Honey Well

Fastenal

UWP
Napa

CulversDQ
UWP

Hillside Cemetery
Pizza Hut Super 8

Unos AnnxDodge House

Outlot

Leibfried
K & K

Medical Assoc

City of Platteville - Street Widths

Landmark Names

2/15/2021, 11:32:25 AM
0 0.4 0.80.2 mi

0 0.65 1.30.33 km

1:24,000



Greenwood Ave. at Bradford looking west. 

 

 

Second St at Main St looking north. 

 

  



 

Third St at Pine St looking north. 

 

 

Furnace St at Chestnut St looking east 

 

  



Dewey St. at Jefferson St looking west 

 

 

Jefferson St at Cedar St looking north 

 

 

  



Madison St. at Second St looking east 

 

 

Water St. at Mineral St looking north 

 

  



Cedar St. at Chestnut St. looking east. 

 

 

Pine St. at Cora St. looking west 

 

 

  



Camp St at Fourth St looking west 

 

 

Cornerstone Circle east connection to Keystone Parkway 

 

 

 

 



Elm St. at Pine St. looking north 

 

 

Lutheran St. at Stevens St looking north 

 

  



Philips Road at Bus 151 looking south 

 

 

Preston Dr. Looking east 

 

  



Perry Dr looking west 

 

 

S. Court St. at Harrison Ave looking south 

 

  



Hickory St at Main St looking north  

 

 

Golden Heights Cadillac Dr at Reddy Dr looking west 

 

 

  



Knollwood Way at Oakhaven Ct. looking east 

 

 

Broadway at Main St looking northeast 

 

  



Vision Dr at Enterprise looking west 

 

 

Virgin Ave. at Bus 151 looking north 

 

 

  



Lancaster St at Short St looking northwest 

  

 

Lancaster St at Camp St looking northwest 

 

  



Lancaster St at Ridge Ave looking southeast 

 

 

Bus 151 at Staley looking east 

 

  



Bus 151 at Valley Road looking east 

 

 

Bus 151 at Eastside Road looking east 

 

 

 



Fire Department Apparatus Dimensions 

Truck # Year Manufacturer/Chassis Type Length Width Height 

E1 2019 Pierce Enforcer Pumper 35' 9' 10" 10' 9" 

T2 2011 Pierce Tender 24' 9' 5" 10' 1" 

E3 2007 E-One Pumper 33' 7" 10' 2" 9' 10" 

T4 1997 GMC Tender 27' 6" 8' 8" 9' 6" 

5 2018 Ford F-450 Quick Attach Brush 24' 9' 3" 8' 5" 

S6 2009 Pierce Saber Squad 32' 3" 9' 11" 9' 8" 

7 2008 Polaris 6-wheel UTV 14' 6' 6" 8' 10" 

E8 1995 Darley Pumper 33' 6" 9' 7" 10' 10" 

E9 2017 Pierce Enforcer Pumper 35'  9' 10" 10' 9" 

Tower 1 2001 Sutphen 95' Aerial 48' 2" 10' 1" 10' 10" 

10 2011 Ford F-350 4x4 Crew Support 21' 5" 9' 6" 8' 3" 

11 2018 Ford Police Interceptor Support 16' 6" 8' 3" 7' 4" 

TRL 1 2008 Trail and Sport Trailer 20' 3" 9' 8" 9' 6" 

 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
INFORMATION & 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VIII.A. 

TITLE:   
Award of Contract 2-21, Business 151 Sidewalk 
 

DATE 
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Howard B. Crofoot, P.E., Director of Public Works 

 

Description:    

This project is to install a sidewalk from the intersection of Water Street along the south side of Business 
Highway 151 to the David Canny Rountree Branch Trail at Valley Road.   There were 7 bidders on this project.  
The low bidder is G-Pro Excavating with a bid of $70,929.50. 

 

Project costs increased slightly due to unanticipated storm sewer work.  Drainage from parking lots and 
existing storm sewers needed to be connected and adjusted.  Due to recent work at the Culver’s property 
where they installed a concrete driveway, this project will not need to reconstruct this portion.  We will cut 
openings in the curb to allow the sidewalk to pass through.  In other areas, the driveways will need to be 
rebuilt. 

 

Since this is a five-foot-wide concrete sidewalk and not a ten-foot-wide asphalt path, the adjoining property 
owners will be required to clear it in the winter. 

 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  

The 2021 Capital Improvement Program budgeted $75,000 to install this sidewalk.  The owner of the 
commercial property at the corner of Business 151 and Water Street was required as part of his development 
approval to install sidewalk at the owner’s cost when directed by the Common Council.  It was estimated 
during the budget deliberations that this section of sidewalk would cost $15,000.  The remaining $60,000 was 
to be funded by the City and not assessed to the other adjoining property owners.  
 

Recommendation:   

Staff recommends awarding Contract 2-21, Business 151 Sidewalk to G-Pro Excavating at the bid price of 
$70,929.50. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
 “Move to award Contract 2-21, Business 151 Sidewalk, to G-Pro Excavating at the bid price of $70,929.50. 
 

Attachments:   

• Recommendation Letter from Delta 3 Engineering 

• Bid Tabulation 
 



 

 

          
 
       February 16, 2021 
 
Mr. Howard Crofoot, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
City of Platteville 
75 N. Bonson Street 
Platteville, Wisconsin 53818 
 
Re: Recommendation of Award of Bid 

Business Highway 151 Sidewalk Construction, Contract #2-21 
 City of Platteville 
 
Dear Howard, 
 
On Tuesday, February 16, 2021 bids were received for the Business Highway 151 Sidewalk 
Construction project, Contract #4-21.  A total of seven bids were received, opened, and publicly 
read aloud for the project, which consisted of a single base bid.  The “as-read” and confirmed low 
bidder for the project was G-Pro Excavating, LLC of Montfort, Wisconsin, with a bid of $70,929.50.  
Following is the bid tabulation for the project: 
 
 

Bidder: Bid Amount: 
G-Pro Excavating $ 70,929.50 
McGuire Inc. $ 72,400.50 
Temperley Excavating $ 74,649.25 
Owen’s Excavating and Trenching $ 74,995.00 
McDermott Excavating $ 86,916.50 
JI Construction $ 87,186.75 
Parisi Construction $ 96,039.70 

  
 
This project is the installation of sidewalk along the south side of Business Highway 151 from 
Water Street to Valley Road (Dunkin’ Donuts to Culver’s).  It also includes the installation of storm 
sewer and storm inlets since the sidewalk will be installed between the roadway and parking lots. 
 
This project is scheduled to begin on or after June 1, 2021 and be completed within 42 calendar 
days of when it was started, but by no later than August 27, 2021.  This schedule will minimize 
the amount of time the area is under construction as well as minimize disruption to any of the 
businesses adjacent to the project. 
 
G-Pro excavating has completed several projects for the City of Platteville, most recently the 2020 
Market Street Reconstruction project, which was completed ahead of schedule and below 
contract amount. Therefore, we are recommending that the City of Platteville award Contract #2-
21 to G-Pro Excavating, LLC in the amount of $70,929.50. 
 



February 16, 2021  Page | 2 

 
 

If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact myself or my assistant, 
Katlyn Churchill, at your convenience. 
 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
       DELTA 3 ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
 
 
       Daniel J. Dreessens, P.E. 
       Vice-President/Civil Engineer 
 
DD:dd 
Enclosures 
 
cc: Joe Foreman, G-Pro Excavating, LLC 
 
 
 



DELTA 3 ENGINEERING, INC      BUSINESS HIGHWAY 151 SIDEWALK PROJECT 
   D21-005  

City of Platteville 
Business Highway 151 Sidewalk 
Project  
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2021 
11:00 A.M. 
 

BID TABULATION  

PLATTEVILLE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
75 N. BONSON STREET, PLATTEVILLE, WI 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

CONTRACTOR: 

 
 

CONTRACT 
#2-21 

1. G-Pro Excavating 
 
Certified Check  

$ 70,929.50 

2. McGuire, Inc. 
 
Certified Check 

$ 72,400.50 

3. Temperley Excavating 
 
Certified Check 

$ 74,649.25 

4. Owen’s Excavating and Trenching 
 
Certified Check 

$ 74,995.00 

5.  McDermott Excavating 
 
Certified Check 

$ 86,916.50 

6.  JI Construction 
 
Certified Check 

$ 87,186.75 

7. Parisi Construction 
 
Certified Check 

$ 96,039.75 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
WORK SESSION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
IX. 

TITLE: 
PAA/Five Bugles Design Fire Department Comprehensive 
Analysis 
 

DATE: 
February 23, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
None 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

 

Description: 
PAA and Five Bugles Design will present the finalized version of the City of Platteville Fire Department 
Comprehensive Analysis.  
 
 



Platteville Fire Department 

Operational Overview



Agenda

 Project Team Introduction

 Department Overview

 Department Programming

 Existing Facility Conditions

 Contemporary Fire Stations

 Concept Review

 What’s Next? 

Public Administration Associates, LLC



Project Team: Public Administration Associates

Tim Franz Jim Austad 



Project Team: Five Bugles Design

Robert Krzyzanowski
Director of Emergency Services

Project Manager

22 Years Experience

Fire Station Experience 
Includes:

• Greenville Station No. 1

• Wausau Station No. 2

• La Pointe Station No. 1

• Monroe Township Station No. 1

• Eau Claire Station No. 10

• Chippewa Falls Station No. 1

Steve Gausman, 
AIA, NCARB

Principal-in-charge

Architect of Record

40 Years Experience

Fire Station Experience includes: 

• Greenville Station No. 1

• Wausau Station No. 2

• La Pointe Station No. 1

• Monroe Township Station No. 1

• Eau Claire Station No. 10

• Chippewa Falls Station No. 1

Laura Eysnogle, 
CID, AIA Assoc.

Lead Architectural Designer

14 Years Experience

Fire Station Experience 
Includes:

• Suamico Public Safety Bldg

• Riverside Fire District Station No. 1

• La Pointe Station No. 1

• Monroe Township Station No. 1

• La Crosse North Fire Station

• Chisholm Public Safety Building

James Schmidt
Sr. Emergency Services 
Specialist

40 Years Experience

Fire Station Experience 
Includes:

• Greenville Station No. 1

• Wausau Station No. 2 

• Suamico Public Safety Bldg

• Riverside Fire District Station No. 1

• Monroe Township Station No. 1

• Chippewa Falls Station No. 1



Department Overview

 Introduction

 Great Department (Traditional)

 Response Times

 Community Support

 Staffing/People

 Apparatus

 Training

Public Administration Associates, LLC



Key Performance Indicators

 Response Times

 Number of Personnel on Scene

 Recruitment & Retention

Public Administration Associates, LLC



Recommendations

Governance and Oversight

Chapter 181

Municipal Fire Department

Relationship with communities that you 

provide service



Recommendations

 Establish Department Safety Committee

 Policy and Guidelines for Operations

 Incident Response

 Training

 Fire Prevention

 Emergency Medical Response

 Promotional Process

 Future

Public Administration Associates, LLC



Programming: Space Needs Analysis

 Operational Programming

 Understand HOW you work

 Confirm space Needs Analysis

 Wants and Needs

 Planning for the Future



Programming: Space Needs Analysis

SPACE PROGRAMMED AREA

Apparatus Bays 13,022 SF

Apparatus Support 4,958 SF

Training 4,428 SF

Administration / Office 2,943 SF

Living Quarters & Support 2,389 SF

Mechanical / Electrical Spaces 4,161 SF

TOTAL NEW CONSTRUCTION 31,900 SF



Existing Facility Condition

 Envelope Repair due to age

 Tuckpointing, sealants, window replacements, 

etc. 

 Inadequate Parking

 Apparatus Bay is significantly undersized

 No room for growth 

 Entryway not welcoming for guests

 No vestibules to exterior doors for climate 

control

 Limited personal decontamination (Decon) 

area 

 No personal laundry

 No Decon showers

 No Gear Turnout locker room

 Desired Spaces:

 Study Space

 Gender equitable toilets / showers

 Gender equitable dorms

 Privacy/Mothers room

 Administration Suite

 Roof appears to be leaking



Existing Facility Condition
 Non-Code Compliant:

 No panic hardware on exterior doors

 Handrails to stairs

 Landing for stairs

 Exterior envelope would not meet todays energy code

 Fixture count on lower level

 Non-ADA Compliant:

 No elevator to second floor

 Clearances throughout apparatus bays

 Toilet rooms in general not compliant:

 Toilet heights, grab bars, knee clearances, turn radi, 

 Push/pull clearances not met at certain doors

 No ADA sink in kitchen

 No knee space in bathroom sinks

 No compliant parking stalls

 Materials have asbestos – fine if not touched. Would have to 
be abated if renovated



Recommendations

Positives

 Good Location

 Meeting Room

 Museum 

Negatives

 Apparatus Floor

 Cleaning/Decon

 Office Space

 Turnout Gear Storage

 Public Entrance

 Overnight Accommodations

Public Administration Associates, LLC

Facilities (New Station)



Fire Station Expertise

Success is in the DETAILS



Wellness: Decon

Gross Decon

Equipment 

Decon

Personal Decon

“Clean it! Then 

keep it clean!



Wellness Case Study
EAU CLAIRE FIRE STATION

EAU CLAIRE, WI



Training

 Access / Egress

 Stairwell Standpipe/Sprinkler

 Smoke Drills

 Confined Space Rescue

 Ladder (Roof & Windows)

 Rapid Intervention Team

 High Angle Rescue



Apparatus Bays

Clearance

In-Floor 
Heat

Centered 
Trench 
Drains

Natural 
Light

Small things that make a 

good station a great station. 

Vehicle 
Exhaust



Small things that make a 

good station a great station. 

Living Space

3 Bay 
Sink

Multiple 
Microwaves

Range Refrigerators 
and Pantries



Small things that make a 

good station a great station.

Living SpaceDirect 
Access to 
Apparatus

Dorm 
Rooms

Shower
/Toilet

Separate 
Tones

Secured 
Report 
Writing



Concept Development:

 Considered three sites in Platteville: 

 Current Location

 475 N. Water Street

 155 W. Lewis Street

 Consideration include:

 Response times through GIS Mapping

 General Site Concepts

 General Concept Plans

 Associated Budgets







Concept Development: Apparatus Bays

 6 Apparatus bays 

full with existing 

equipment

 Bays provide: 

 Proper 

clearances

 Drive-through 

(when not 

double stacked)

 Considering 8 

bays in concept 

designs



Concept Development: Current Site

 6 Apparatus nearly fills 

the site, 8 bays does

 No room for Apparatus 

Support

 No drive-through 

capabilities

 No on-site parking

 Structure would be 

several stories to 

accommodate  program 

needs





Concept Development: Water Street

 Pros:

 Good access to 

Water Street

 Room for training 

on-site

 Cons:

 6 Apparatus nearly 

fills the site, 8 bays 

does

 Three-Story Concept 

 Challenges with 

parking

 Challenges with 

pedestrian traffic



Concept Development: Water Street

 Pros:

 Good separation 

between departments 

per level

 Meets most program 

goals

 Cons:

 No room for future 

growth

 No room for tech 

college or additional 

training spaces





Concept Development: Lewis Street

 Pros:

 Meets parking 

requirements for 

Volunteers

 Will hold 8 bays

 Has room for growth

 Cons:

 Slope of site will need 

to be accounted for in 

design



Concept Development: Lewis Street

 Pros:

 Meets all 

program goals

 Has space for 

technical 

college

 Has space for 

additional 

training on-site

 Cons:

 Existing facility 

will need to be 

razed



Concept Sizes vs. Programming

Programmed W. Lewis Street N. Water Street

Total Building Size 31,900 SF 31,095 SF 28,690 SF

With Basement Alternate 38,900 SF



Tighten the Plan and the Budget

Suamico Fire Station

Programmed S.F. = 36,846 S.F.

Completed S.F. = 22,050 S.F.

Greenville Fire Station

Programmed S.F. = 30,000 S.F.

Completed S.F. = 24,680 S.F.

Wausau Fire Station

Programmed S.F. = 16,884 S.F.

Completed S.F. = 15,233 S.F.

Monroe (Ohio) Fire Station

Programmed S.F. = 24,388 S.F.

Completed S.F. = 20,100 S.F.

Concepts vs. Actual



Potential Costs: Lewis Street

Lewis Street Water Street

Low High Low High

Site Acquisition $100,000 $250,000 $0 $100,000

Building Construction Costs $6,996,375 $8,551,125 $6,455,250 $7,889,750

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

Communications and Technology $40,000 $55,000 $40,000 $55,000

Contingencies, Inflation, Other $699,638 $855,113 $645,525 $788,975

Professional Fees & Legal $628,746 $737,579 $590,868 $691,283

TOTAL $8,764,759 $10,748,816 $8,031,643 $9,825,008

Alternate Bid for Basement $2,282,963 $2,282,963

Total w/ Alternate $11,047,721 $13,031,779

Prices based on 2020 construction costs. Inflationary costs should 
be added for each year the project is delayed beyond that. 



What’s Next?

Programming

Conceptual and 

Schematic Designs

(Estimate)

1 Month

Design 

Development

(Estimate)

1 Months

Construction 

Documents

(Estimate)

2 Months

Bidding 

(1 Month)

Construction 

(10 Months)

Occupancy

We Are 

Here:



Public Engagement

 Attend community listening & 

informational sessions

 Design mailers & postcards to be sent to 

residents in the city

 Design fliers &  posters to be displayed 

around the community

 Create graphics for use on your 

community website & social media 

platforms



Questions?

Thank you!

Public Administration Associates, LLC



 

Facilities Study for 

  

City of Platteville 

Fire Department 

Platteville, WI  

 

 

February 19, 2021 
 

    

    

Public Administration 

Associates, LLC 



Table of Contents 

 

TITLE SECTION 
 

Executive Summary: Introduction  1 

 

 

 

Part A: Existing Facility Assessment 

 

Comprehensive Analysis  2  

     Demographic Trends 

     History 

     Governance and Oversight 

     Budget and Finance 

     Organizational Structure 

     Level of Service 

     Equipment and Vehicles 

     Facilities  

     Future 

     Stakeholder and Department Members 

     Recommendations  

 

 

Part B: Conceptual Design 

 

Existing Conditions  3 

 

Space Needs Analysis   4 

 

Conceptual Design   5 

     Existing Site 

     West Lewis street 

     North Water Street      

 

Probable Costs   6 

 

 

Appendices 

 

     Response Maps  Appendix A 

     Existing Building Plans  Appendix B 

     Space Needs Analysis  Appendix C 

     Conceptual Plans  Appendix D 

     Probable Cost Analysis  Appendix E 

     Photo Database of Existing Conditions       Appendix F 

      

  



Section 1 

 

 

Introduction 

 

  



Introduction 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 1 - 1 

This report is a comprehensive analysis of the City of Platteville Fire Department 

according to the specifications defined in the Request for Proposals (RFP) issued by the 

City.  On June 23, 2000 the Platteville Common Council selected the team of Public 

Administration Associates, LLC (PAA) and Five Bugles Design to conduct the study.  Public 

Administration Associates will address sections 1-5 of the RFP and Five Bugles Design will 

address sections 6-8 of the RFP.  The eight sections in the RFP are listed below.  

  

1. Future Service Delivery – The Study should review the current means by which service 

is provided by our Fire Department and project what the future entails for the delivery of 

service. This item should also address the format by which service is provided in order to 

consider various options such as full-time staffing, regional district creation, higher license 

threshold of emergency care, shared/joint department, etc. as applicable to the service 

listed. The Study should consider projects not fewer than 3 years nor more than 20 years 

into the future based upon the recommendation of the consultant.   

  

2. Operational Alternatives – This item should review current services to make 

suggestions on the current operational delivery of service alternatives. Essentially, what are 

possible changes that could be made to current operations that help streamline service 

delivery, align services with best practices, and make suggestions that help with Fire Safety 

delivery.   

  

3. Right Size – The Study should bring together necessary data and demographics to 

objectively demonstrate the facility needs to support Fire Safety Services. Types of data to 

be reviewed would include but not limited to personnel, equipment, consideration of 

adjacent communities, population, geographic growth, height of buildings, and our service 

responsibilities in relationship to other jurisdictions both municipal, county, and state.   

  

4. Operating Costs – Based on what the future may hold for these services, the study 

should review, and project operating costs based upon the future staffing projections 

considered.   

  

5. Location – This item would assist in trying to figure out what is the best and most ideal 

location in order to locate a Fire Safety Facility, regardless of current land uses and property 

ownership. The intent is to create a radius around this point based upon certain distances 

to assist in finding suitable sites to locate such a facility. The desire would be to consider 

response times, volunteer response ability, ISO minute coverage maps as available, and all 

other information as might be applicable. This should also review locations based on the 

idea that the Fire Safety facility would be a joint facility as well as a standalone fire station. 

This item should also account for the city’s growth pattern as it expands through new 

development and annexations.   

  

6. Fire Station Conversion – The current fire station was constructed in 1964 and due to 

updates in technology, equipment and truck modifications increased space needs have 

become more challenging. Numerous discussions have occurred regarding the potential for 

future expansion of the current facility. Given the needs of Fire Safety Services and their 

future projections, this item would review whether that idea remains feasible.  

 



Introduction 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 1 - 2 

7. Garage Space – This item would review the vehicle and equipment needs for fire 

services over the course of the next 50 years. This item should further study how these 

needs coincide with current space availability and possible options for expansion.   

 

8. Shared Facility – This item should review the feasibility of a shared Fire Safety Facility 

that houses Fire, Training Center, and potential retail/commercial space. Obviously, each of 

the three has different needs regarding their facilities and the study should consider whether 

it is realistic of the city to consider all three within one facility.  

  

To accomplish the goals of this analysis, PAA conducted interviews with the Fire Chief, Chief Officers 

(3), Captains (2), Lieutenants (2), Fire Fighters (6), Chapter 181 Officers, Police Chief, and Director of 

Southwest Health Emergency Medical Services. In addition, PAA reviewed and analyzed relevant 

information related to organizational structure, operations, work practices, ordinances, policies and 

guidelines, capital budgets, incident response data and comprehensive planning documents.   

 

PAA compared department operations to consensus standards, best practices, and state law. 

Neighboring departments also were surveyed for operation and staffing models.   

 

Our primary observations are as follows:   

 

(1) The demographics of the region are changing very slowly and will not be a factor driving change in 

the department.  

 

(2) The department is functioning at a high level of performance in meeting national standards.  

 

(3) The legal status of the department must be properly clarified.  

 

(4) Budgeting reporting and procedural rules need to be clarified. 

 

(5) The department clearly needs a new fire station. 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 1 

 PART A 
 

   Table of Contents    

 

I. Demographic Trends 

II. History 

III. Governance and Oversight 

IV. Budget and Finance 

V. Organizational Structure 

VI. Level of Service 

VII. Equipment and Vehicles 

VIII. Facilities 

IX. Future 

X. Stakeholder and Department Members 

XI. Recommendations 

XII. Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 2 

I. DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS  
 

The city of Platteville is in the southwest portion of Wisconsin in Grant County.  The current 

population of Platteville is 12,268.  Platteville is the largest city in the county and surrounded 

by mostly rural areas with a few small neighboring communities within a 2.5 to 3-mile range.  

The city is serviced by State Highways 80 and 81 and US Highway 151, as well as the 

Platteville Municipal Airport. The city is home to the University of Wisconsin-Platteville, the 

Mining and Rollo Jamison Museums, the Stone Cottage, and the historic downtown Main 

Street. UW-Platteville, known for its engineering, industrial technology and agricultural 

programs, is the region’s largest employer and has played a dominant role in shaping the 

community and region.  The City is approximately 75 miles from Madison and 20 miles 

northeast of Dubuque, Iowa.   

 

The fire department also provides service under contract to all or portions of the   Townships 

of Platteville, Smelser, Lima, Harrison, Ellenboro, Elk Grove, and Belmont.  With the exception 

of the Towns of Belmont and Elk Grove, which are in Lafayette County, all of the other 

communities are in Grant County.  These townships add approximately 130 square miles of 

coverage area for the department. This area is primarily rural with a low population density. 

The estimated population served in the area outside of the City is approximately 4,097.  

The geography of the city and surrounding townships consist of rolling hills with steep slopes 

and deep valleys as it is part of the “driftless” or unglaciated area that occupies much of 

southwestern Wisconsin. The Town of Platteville completely surrounds the City of Platteville.  

According to the 2000 Census, the Town of Platteville has a population of 1,343. 

 The city’s three largest employers are UW Platteville, the Platteville School District, and 

Southwest Health Systems. The top two employment categories which make of 54% of 

employment in the City are management/professional occupations and sales/office 

occupations. The industrial/manufacturing sector makes up a small percentage of 

occupations in the community and surrounding areas and there are no specific target fire 

and emergency hazards of concern in this category.  The surrounding townships are 

agricultural and residential in nature. The city, as a regional destination for the county, has 

well developed commercial and retail areas, especially for a community in this population 

range.   

The industry standard for fire risk looks at structures from two perspectives, the likelihood of 

a fire occurring and the consequences of loss in life and/or property if a fire were to occur. 

The greatest areas of fire risk identified in the community are the historic downtown area 

and the high-density residential structures on and near UW Platteville. These areas were 

identified as the highest risk areas (not to discount other individual structures in the 

community) based on probability, consequence, and Occupancy Risk. The downtown area is 

a high hazard risk area due to the age, density, and type of construction of the buildings and 

to the occupant density (life hazard). The residential area on and near the campus area was 

identified due to the probability of fire occurrence and occupant density. Both of these areas 

share a high consequence of loss potential of life and property. The City of Platteville also 

contains 75% of the assessed value of property improvements (buildings) in the service area 

of the department. U.S Highway 151 is the greatest non-structural risk for the department 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 3 

due to the volume and variety of vehicles and commodities that pass through the area on 

this route. [Note: the scope of this report did not include a complete fire risk analysis of the 

City and surrounding area.] 

Table 1 illustrates several key items in the department service area identified by 

municipality. They are population, area, assessed value of property improvements, and 

percentage of the total value service area by municipality. It should be noted that the Towns 

of Harrison, Ellenboro, Elk Grove and Belmont are estimates based on the number of 

sections covered as listed in the current contracts for service.  

The City and the Town of Platteville comprise 85% of the population and slightly over 81% of 

property value (improvement values in Table 1 does not include UW Platteville) in the area 

protected by the fire department.  They comprise about 26% of the total area protected.  In 

other words, most of the population and property value is concentrated in the urbanized area 

and its immediate outskirts. 

 

 

Table 1 Characteristics of Participating Municipalities 

  

Municipality 
Population 

Protected 

Percentage 

of 

Population 

Protected 

Square 

Miles 

Protected 

Value of Property 

Protected 

Percentage 

of Value of 

Property 

Protected 

City of 

Platteville  
12,268 75% 6.178 $ 605,992,400.00 68.85% 

Town of  

Platteville  
1,567 10% 29 $ 111,492,600.00 12.67% 

Town of Lima  804 5% 36 $    45,594,100.00 6.67% 

Town of 

Smelser  
810 5% 12 $    58,747,800.00 2.66% 

Town of 

Harrison  
305 2% 22 $    23,375,733.00 2.66% 

Town of 

Ellenboro  
197 1% 13 $    12,135,716.00 1.38% 

Town of Elk 

Grove  
145 1% 8 $      8,401,650.00 0.95% 

Town of 

Belmont  
269 2% 10 $    14,428,300.00 1.64% 

Total  

 
16,365 100% 136.178 $ 880,168,299.00 100% 

 

 

 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 4 

 

Table 2 Future Municipal Population Projections 

Municipality 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

City of 

Platteville 
12,300 12,800 13,180 13,470 13,810 

Town of 

Platteville 
1,620 1,685 1,725 1,765 1,805 

Town of Lima 825 835 845 850 855 

Town of 

Smelser 
790 790 785 775 770 

Town of 

Harrison 
485 480 470 460 450 

Town of 

Ellensboro 
515 505 495 480 470 

Town of Elk 

Grove 
590 610 630 650 570 

Town of 

Belmont 
830 860 885 915 940 

 

Source:  Wisconsin Department of Administration, Population Division 

During the next twenty years, all of the municipalities covered by the PFD are projected to 

grow approximately 9.9 percent.  This is just less than one-half percent per year.  The area 

has an exceptionally stable population.  In addition, none of the individual municipalities are 

projected to have substantial growth rates. 

As a consequence of this stable population, it should be noted that population growth will not 

be a driver of change in the department.  Change will be driven by higher external standards, 

space and equipment needs, and the declining availability of volunteers.  These factors will 

be dealt with later in the report. 

 

II. HISTORY  
 

The Fire Department has a long and proud history of serving the City of Platteville.  This 

history is extensive and detailed and the report will cover only the highlights that are 

germane to this study. The first organized fire protection was established in 1874 when 

Platteville was a village. After a disastrous fire on the night of April 15, 1874, a paper was 

circulated and signed by some 60 village businessmen to meet and form an organization to 

protect the village against fire. On May 6, 1874, a committee met in the town clerk’s office 

and drew up an application to the village board for the organization of the Hook & Ladder No. 

1. On November 6, 1874, another meeting took place to form an additional fire company. 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 5 

The engine company was organized as the Mound City Engine Company No. 1. Fire stations 

were constructed first as separate buildings and then as an addition to the City Hall in 1883. 

The City Hall and attached fire station were lost to fire in December, 1926. In 1927, a new 

City Hall was constructed with the north side of the building serving as Platteville’s third fire 

station. This building is still in use as the City Hall.  

 On June 13, 1944, the first merger attempts of the two fire companies lost in a meeting of 

the Village Board on a 19 to 11 vote. Also discussed at that meeting was pay for the 

firefighters. In 1951, the Hook and Ladder Company and the Mound City Engine Company 

consolidated to form the Platteville Fire Department. On November 1, 1951 the Platteville 

Fire Department, Incorporated was officially formed as a non-stock, not for profit corporation 

as allowed under State of Wisconsin laws for fire department organization.  The fire 

department remains established as a non-stock, not for profit corporation today and the 

original articles of incorporation remain in place.  

 

In 1964, the fourth fire station was built. This station, on the corner of East Main Street and 

Ellen Street, still is in use today as the fire department. This building has had a second-floor 

addition and modifications to accommodate apparatus to fit into the station.  There is 

currently only one fire station in use today.   

 

The fire department members in their view, remain as volunteers. From a legal standpoint, 

they are “employed” by the Platteville Fire Department, Incorporated. Total membership is 

authorized at sixty, and on average it falls in the range of the mid-fifties. The Department has 

two full time positions that are to be employees of the City of Platteville.  A full-time fire 

inspector/station custodian position was added to the department in 1999 due the 

increasing volume of fire inspections. The Fire Chief position was changed to full time status 

in 2018.  

 

III. GOVERNANCE AND OVERSIGHT: Legal Status 
 

Purpose and disclaimer    

The purpose of this section is to analyze the relationship between the City of Platteville 

(“City’) and Platteville Fire Department, Incorporated (“Corporation”) as well as the 

relationship of both entities with third-party municipalities. This analysis should not be 

construed as legal advice.  Should the City have questions, including but not limited to 

employment practices, liability, the drafting of new agreements and contracts or municipal 

actions to reorganize the Fire Department, it should seek the advice of its City Attorney.  

This analysis is based on a review of the following documents:  Platteville Fire Department 

Incorporated Articles of Incorporation (Articles of Incorporation), Platteville Code of 

Ordinances, posted online, current as of November 27, 2019, a Fire Services Agreement 

dated January 1, 2015 by and between the Town of Belmont (“Belmont”), the City and the 

Corporation (“Belmont Agreement”), as well as information included on the city’s official 

website.  If additional or more current documents exist, they may significantly change this 

analysis.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 6 

Background  

 In Wisconsin, municipal fire service can be organized as a municipal department or as an 

independent company organized under the authority of Chapter 213 of the Wisconsin 

Statutes. In general statutes provide clearer guidance for departments created by 

municipalities and staffed by municipal employees.  Many departments throughout the state, 

however, are organized as independent corporations or consist of hybrid models involving a 

municipal department and a corporation.  

Given the long history of volunteer fire service in Wisconsin, it is not uncommon for the 

relationship between the municipality and its volunteer firefighters to be unclear.  The service 

simply developed over time to fill an important need.  Unlike law enforcement, where paid 

municipal employees took on the policing role, a rich tradition of volunteerism flourished in 

the fire service.  While this provided a significant economic advantage to municipalities, it 

also created uncertainty over time.  Statutes, in some cases, do not clearly align or were not 

adequately developed to clarify the relationship between the municipality and the 

independent company serving its residents.  Volunteers, more interested fighting fires than 

drafting legal documents, sometimes failed to update bylaws or, in extreme cases, even 

incorporate.    Documents were lost over time. “Handshake deals” made over the years may 

never have been memorialized or, in other cases, important issues may never have been 

addressed.    

In many cases this absence of clarity can go unnoticed for years.  Elected officials and 

volunteers come and go over the years and the services continue without a problem until one 

arises.  When an issue does arise, however, it can be significant, straining the relationship 

between volunteers and the community they serve or creating significant liability or 

employment issues for the municipality.  

Three areas pertaining to volunteer fire companies that are clearly covered by the statutes 

include workers compensation coverage, liability and disbandment of volunteer companies.  

First, if the company does not procure workers compensation for its members, the political 

subdivision within which that company is organized is liable for that compensation. Sec 

102.07(7) Wis. Stats.  Second, liability for claims against volunteer companies is limited to 

$25,000 as opposed to the normal municipal limit of $50,000.  Sec. 893.80(3) Wis. Stats.  

Third, the common council of any city or the board of trustees of any village in which any fire 

company may be located shall have power to disband any fire company for misconduct or 

when they consider it proper. Sec. 213.04 Wis. Stats.  

  

Documents Reviewed  

 

Articles of Incorporation.  According to the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions 

(DFI), the Corporation is a Wisconsin non-stock corporation in good standing.  Its registered 

agent is Brian K. Kitelinger and its principal office is 275 E Main Street, Platteville, WI 53818 

(the current fire house).  It is in good standing.  There are two interesting footnotes to the 

Articles.  First, the name of the organization, pursuant to the original bylaws, is Platteville Fire  

Department, Inc.  It is listed on the DFI website, however, as Platteville Fire Department 

Incorporated.  Second, the Articles state that the organization was incorporated under 

Chapter 182 of the Wisconsin Statutes as a non-stock corporation on November 1, 1951.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 7 

This is no longer the current statute under which a non-stock corporation would be 

organized.  Chapter 181 is the current reference.  During the time that the Corporation was 

formed, however, Wisconsin was rewriting its corporate laws.  From 1951 until 1953 chapter 

181 was moved to chapter 182 to facilitate the re-write.  The reference, therefore, was 

appropriate at the time.  The Articles of Incorporation are set forth as A 

In addition to spelling out the broad powers of the corporation, the Articles establish and 

define duties of the following officers: Fire Chief, First Assistant Fire Chief, Second Assistant 

Fire Chief, Third Assistant Fire Chief, Secretary and Treasurer.  A five-person board of 

directors is established.  Selection of officers is not specified by the Articles nor are terms 

established for board members.  State law provides that in the absence of any specified 

method, appointment of officers is by the board.  Sec. 181.0840 Wis. Stats.  Membership is 

gained to the corporation by a three-fourths vote of members present.  Membership is limited 

to city residents, nineteen years or older.  Expulsion is by majority vote of all members 

present.  

Bylaws may provide additional details; however, none were provided to PAA for review.  

Code of Ordinances.  A municipal Fire Department is established by Platteville ordinances.    

Section 3.02 of the Code states, “The Fire Department of the City is hereby established, and 

shall consist of such members, officers and employees as shall be authorized from time to 

time by the Common Council, or by the rules and regulations or bylaws of the department 

approved by the Council.”  PAA was not provided with any rules, regulations or bylaws of the 

municipal department to provide further clarification.   

The office of Fire Chief is not explicitly created by the above-stated ordinance.  The Chief of 

Police (3.01) and Director of Public Works (3.08) by contrast, are specifically created.  

The “Fire Chief” is mentioned in various ordinances as are “fire officers,” the  

“fire department” and the “Platteville Volunteer Fire Department.”   

Official City Website  

Platteville has a Police and Fire Commission which, according to the City’s official website, “is 

responsible for the appointment, promotion, investigation of complaints, determining 

discipline, and, in some cases, termination of all sworn members of the police and fire 

departments. In addition, this commission oversees testing for the purposes of establishing 

eligibility pools of candidates for entry level positions, as well as promotion to the ranks 

above the entry level positions.”    

A charter ordinance, which addresses the powers of the Village [City] Manager, refers to the 

commission as the Fire and Police Commission which would normally suggest an “optional 

powers” commission, however, the commission is not mentioned in any other ordinance.  

The City’s webpage states that “Fire Service in Platteville is provided by the Platteville Fire 

Department, Inc. The Fire Department is a volunteer organization comprised of sixty 

firefighters. The Chief and three Assistant Chiefs are elected by the membership and ratified 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 8 

by the Platteville Police & Fire Commission. Only one member of the Fire Department, the 

Deputy Fire Inspector/Custodian, is a full-time City employee.”  

Belmont Agreement  

The Belmont Agreement is illustrative of fire agreements entered into by the City.  It obligates 

the City, “with its Fire Department,” to respond to all fire and rescue calls and provide 

inspection services in the Town.  The Corporation is obliged to provide personnel to respond 

to fire calls.  The Agreement provides financial terms for the purchase of “Township 

equipment,” “Equipment that is shared between the Township and the City,” and 

contributions for the “cost of building, remodeling and maintaining the fire station.”  The 

Town is charged a fee for each call for service, a percentage of the actual yearly budget 

deficit of the “City of Platteville Fire Department,” payment for major and unusual expenses, 

and inspection fees.  The Agreement that was reviewed has an expiration date of December 

31, 2019.   

Issues raised  

The first issue raised is a basic one: What is the Platteville Fire Department?  Is it a non-

stock, non-profit corporation or is it a municipal department?  While the answer to this 

question may be clear in the minds of those involved, documents reviewed by PAA paint a 

picture that is less than clear.  Having established a municipal fire department by ordinance, 

the personnel and physical assets that comprise that department are not defined.  Content 

on the official website states that the city’s fire service is provided by the Corporation.  

PAA has been provided with no agreement between the Corporation and the City.  This dual 

status and the lack of clarity are important for at least two reasons.   

Employment issues    

Wisconsin statutes vest police and fire commissions with the duty and authority to, 

“…appoint the chief of the fire department…who shall hold their offices during good behavior, 

subject to suspension or removal by the board for cause.”  Section 62.13(3) Wis. Stats.  The 

chief, in turn, “…shall appoint subordinates subject to approval by the board. Such 

appointments shall be made by promotion when this can be done with advantage, otherwise 

from an eligible list provided by examination and approval by the board and kept on file with 

the clerk.” 62.13(4)(a) Wis. Stats. The discharge of subordinates, appointed by a municipal 

chief, are subject to a seven-step just cause standard forth in section 62.13 (5) (em) Wis. 

Stats.   

The Corporation’s bylaws, on the other hand, provide for discharge of any member by a 

majority vote and vests in the directors the ability to appoint the chief and assistant chiefs. 

This is confirmed by the City’s website which states, as mentioned above, that, “the Chief 

and three Assistant Chiefs are elected by the membership and ratified by the Platteville 

Police & Fire Commission.”  

“Ratification” of company selected officers appears to be supported and even required by 

the statutes.  Section 213.02(1) Wis. Stats. empowers a fire company only after the election 

of officers have been confirmed by the governing body of the city or village.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 9 

Potential employment issues include:  

1. Discipline or discharge of the chief.  Is this accomplished by a vote of the Corporation or by the 

Police and Fire Commission for “just cause?”  

2. Selection of assistant chiefs;  

3. Hiring of firefighters;  

4. Discipline or discharge of firefighters.  

Liability  

Section 895.46 provides that the governmental unit must pay for judgments and damages 

rendered against officers and employees used in an individual or official capacity as long as 

the defendants were acting within the scope of their employment.  In addition, the 

governmental unit must provide legal counsel or pay reasonable attorney fees unless the 

officer or employee was found not to be acting within the scope of employment.  Liability 

under state law is capped for municipalities at $25,000 for fire companies and $50,000 for 

municipalities.    

Potential liability issues include:  

Is the City liable for the acts of Corporation members?  

Are Corporation members defended and indemnified by the City?  

Ownership of assets  

A common issue that arises in municipalities that rely upon private fire companies is a simple 

one; who owns the various fire assets; both equipment and real property?  The fire station of 

one Wisconsin municipality was owned by its volunteers.  Construction of a new facility, 

which both the village and current firefighters favored, was halted.  Bylaws of the company 

allowed disposition of the old station only upon the affirmative vote of retired “honorary 

members of the company.”  Honorary members of the organization were never recorded on a 

single roll and could not be located in time for a vote.  The old firehouse, too small for 

modern equipment remains to this day.    

Recommendations: Governance and Oversight 

Altering the relationship between those individuals who have selflessly served their 

community is always sensitive issue, even when it works to the advantage of both 

volunteers and their municipality.  Change is too often viewed as criticism.  It can, 

however, be a win-win proposition for both the volunteers and community which it 

serves.  As it stands now, there are too many grey areas in the relationship between 

the City and the Corporation.  PAA recommends that the City either:  

  

1. Clearly create a municipal fire department that includes current firefighters as 

employees and places hiring, discipline and discharge decisions under the authority 

of the Police & Fire Commission and operations under the authority of the Chief and 

Common Council.  Human resources and administrative support can be provided by 

professional City staff.  Position descriptions and hiring/promotional standards can 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 10 

be adopted.   An ordinance creating a Fire & Police Commission can be enacted, 

establishing the Commission as the Code establishes other committees and 

commissions in the City.  The current Corporation could continue to function as a 

benevolent and fund-raising association.     

  

2. Clearly separate the City from the Corporation.  This could take a number of different 

forms; however, the clearest separation would be for the City to remove references to 

a City Fire Department from its ordinances and simply contract with the Corporation 

for fire protection.  The Corporation would need to be prepared to take over the 

administrative functions currently provided by the City.   Officers and firefighters 

would be elected and removed from the Corporation by its membership as provided 

in the Articles of Incorporation. The contract should spell out who owns what assets 

and how they will be acquired in the future.   

  

IV. BUDGET AND FINANCE  
 

In general, the funding for Platteville Fire Department Inc. (PFD Inc.) is provided through the 

Platteville City Budget. As with other aspects of the department, the financing and budget of 

the department are somewhat gray in certain areas based on lack of clarity or absence of 

official agreements. The understanding of the arrangement between the City and PFD Inc. is 

that the City provides the Station, apparatus and maintenance and PFD Inc. provides the 

personnel. This is actually clearly defined in the contracts between the City and the 

contracted Townships.    

  

The primary focus of this review is based on the City of Platteville budget; however, Platteville 

Fire Department Inc. does fund certain areas of the “department”. These areas are funded 

through fund raising efforts and funds provided as “contract expenditures from the City 

Budget. Contract expenditures are an annual nominal stipend or “member appreciation” 

payment to firefighters. The administrative fees for the Length of Service Award program 

(LOSA) also are paid for by PFD Inc. Other regular expenses provided by PFD Inc. include the 

provision of food and refreshments for members attending meetings and training events. 

Outside of these regular operating expenses, PFD Inc. raises funds for equipment purchases 

and replacement and a portion of fire apparatus. PFD Inc. also has provided the matching 

fund portion of Assistance to Firefighters grants for equipment provided through the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency.  

  

Typically, a city or village contracting with a Chapter 181 department would show a single 

line item for contractual services for fire protection. A positive aspect to the City of 

Platteville’s practice is that the majority of fire protection expenditures are transparent to the 

community and contracted area.  Expenses listed in the budget are paid directly by the City 

to individual personnel, vendors or to PFD Inc. for contracted personnel expenses.  

  

For the purposes of brevity, we have condensed the budget to three expenditure areas, (1) 

wages and benefits of two full-time city employees, (2), contract personnel costs for the 

volunteer members of PFD Inc. and (3) operating expenditures, which include utilities, 

maintenance of buildings and equipment, equipment replacement, training and insurance. 

These expenditures over the past five years are displayed in the table below.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 11 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 2 City Budget Expenditure by Areas 

 

Year  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020  

Personnel 

Cost Full 

Time 

$ 97,752 $ 110,345 $ 132,868 $ 123,015 $ 174,572 

LOSA for 

*Volunteers. 
$ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 

PFD 

Member 

Appreciation 

$ 15,500 $ 15,500 $ 15,500 $ 15,500 $ 15,500 

Operations $ 113,375 $ 104,837 $   118,350 $ 129,020 $ 113,650 

Total City 

Budget 
$ 232,627 $ 236,682 $ 272,718 $ 273,535 $ 309,722 

  

On review, the greatest increase in the budget occurred in 2020, with the transition of the 

Fire Chief position to full time. This has stabilized with the 2021 budget with the overall 

increase to the budget being just over $10,000.00 or 3.2%. Generally, expenditures for 

operations are reasonable or even conservative, most likely due to PFD Inc. providing for 

some routine expenditures as well as equipment replacement. It should be noted that for 

2021 cost for full time personnel showed no increase and there was a small increase to the 

member appreciation fund and LOSA program, $3,615.00) the first increase for these funds 

in at least 5 years.  One area that appears to be underfunded is the travel and conference 

budget, which in essence for fire departments is the outside training budget. At $4,000.00 

this provides an average expenditure of approximately $72.00 per member annually.  

  

City revenue for funding the department comes from several sources. The greatest source of 

revenue is fees for fire inspections. This fee is not typical for most departments in the state.  

When Act 10 was passed in 2013, any fees established after its passage had to be deducted 

from the tax levy. Platteville’s fee, having been in place prior to passage of the Act was 

allowed to remain without triggering a tax levy reduction. The next largest revenue source for 

the City is “2% dues” from the State of Wisconsin.  In Wisconsin 2% of fire insurance 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 12 

premiums paid are primarily distributed back to fire departments to provide fire prevention 

and protection services as long as they are in substantial compliance state regulations 

pertaining to fire departments. The City of Platteville receives the fees for the City and 

townships or portions thereof served.  These fees along with the 2% dues money received for 

the city and surrounding townships are estimated to generate $119,150 in 2020, which is 

38% of the estimated total budget for the fire department.  

  

The City also charges the township a fee of $750 per fire call in the individual township 

covered. At the end of the year, the difference between revenues and expenditures is divided 

proportionally among the municipalities of the protection area. The methodology of this 

formula is described in the contracts with the individual Townships. This is referenced in the 

City of Platteville’s annual budget as Fire Department fixed cost revenue.   

 

Finally, insurance payments provide a small additional revenue source. Some insurance 

companies will make a payment for certain services provided by fire departments, such as 

vehicle fires and extrication of victims from vehicle accidents. 

 

 A revenue not directly represented within the fire department budget, is State aid received 

for providing services to the University of Wisconsin Platteville. In 2019 this was calculated 

at $38,817.41. For clarity, this revenue is subtracted from final net cost of the Fire 

Department Operations before the balance of the remaining cost is calculated for the 

Townships.  

  

The table below illustrates revenues for the fire department outside of property taxes for the 

past five years.  

 

Table 3 Fire Department Revenues by Source 

 

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Fire 

Inspection 

Fees 

$ 30,583 $ 34,000 $ 34,000 $ 34,250 $ 77,000 

2% Dues 

City 
$ 25,050 $ 30,500 $ 30,500 $ 30,500 $ 30,500 

2% Dues 

Towns 
$ 10,500 $ 11,196 $ 10,500 $ 10,750 $ 11,650 

Fire Dept 

Fixed cost 
$ 31,440 $ 32,726 $ 45,000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000 

Insurance 

Payments 
$ 2,855 $ 2,885 $ 0.00 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 

Fire Calls $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,450 $ 4,450 

Total $ 104,428 $ 115,307 $ 124,000 $ 122,950 $ 166,600 

  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 13 

The most significant increase in revenues was in the year 2020 based in an increase in the 

fee for fire inspections.  

  

We compared net per capita expenditures for fire and emergency medical services to other 

communities in Wisconsin of similar population and characteristics such as being a stand-

alone core with suburban and rural service areas, a primarily volunteer paid on call fire 

department and in two cases the presence of a state university.  Data used for this 

comparison is compiled by the Wisconsin Public Policy Forum (formerly known as the 

Wisconsin Taxpayers Alliance). It should be noted that the Cities of Ripon and Baraboo have 

full time municipal paramedic ambulance services.  

 

Table 3 Fire Service Costs Per Capita 

  

Ripon  $ 92.00  

Baraboo  $ 75.00  

River Falls  $ 38.00  

Monroe  $ 37.00  

Plymouth  $ 32.00  

Waupun  $ 31.00  

Whitewater  $ 30.00  

Platteville  $ 30.00  

Stoughton  $ 24.00  

  

Expenditures for the City of Platteville for fire protection are clearly within the range of similar 

cities in size and profile that provide similar types and levels of service.  

  

Recommendations: Budget and Finance 

 

1) When updating the contracts for service with townships, the City should move away 

from the fee for service and billing of services in arrears model. This is a somewhat 

unpredictable and difficult methodology for municipal budgeting. It should develop a 

formula for assigning cost to the contracted townships based on assessed value of 

property improvements, calls for service, and population protected.  

2) Funding for Conference and Travel should be increased to provide more opportunities 

for outside training opportunities for department members.  

3) Establish written budgetary rules with decision making and to include documentation.   



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 14 

 

VI. ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 

  
At the time of this study, the department has 53 personnel, two of which are full time and the 

remainder are on-call volunteers. The volunteer staff are truly volunteer and do not receive 

compensation for their labor on an hourly per event basis. Volunteer personnel receive an 

annual stipend as a member appreciation payment.  

  

The two full time personnel are the Fire Chief and the Deputy Chief of Prevention/Fire 

Inspection. They work approximately a 40 hour week covering their assigned administrative 

and non-emergency duties, as well as providing emergency response during their designated 

station hours and responding on call outside of this time. The Fire Chief position transitioned 

into full time status in 2020. This was done based on an increase in demand of 

representation at City Meetings and communication with the City as well as workload and 

expectations for this position. The current Chief was in the position of Fire Chief prior to this 

transition to full time status. The fire inspector position has been in place for over 20 years. 

The current inspector has the rank of Deputy Chief and has been in this position for the past 

three years.  

  

The Fire Chief, in addition to be being employed by the City, is the principal officer and Chief 

of PFD Inc. The board of directors of PFD Inc. includes the Chief, the First, Second and Third 

Assistant Chief, Secretary, Treasurer, and five additional directors. It should be noted that 

the organization of the department listed and described do not reflect the current known 

table of organization and titles used in the department. (Appendix B).  

  

The table of organization that is currently used by the department is well defined and 

understood.  It follows industry best practices for chain and unity of command from both 

operational and communication perspectives. While officers and chief officers have 

designated duties, the positions lack official and documented position descriptions.  

 

The overall number of personnel is very good and the department and community should be 

commended. Many communities, both large and small, struggle immensely with staffing 

volunteer and paid on call departments. Recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters is 

a concern across the nation and Wisconsin, even if not a crisis in many communities. The 

current makeup of the department in years of service is listed in Table 3 below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 15 

Table 3 Volunteer Longevity 

 

Less than 1 Year  9  

1-5 Years  14  

6-10 Years  4  

11-15 Years  5  

16-25 Years  11  

0ver 25 Years  10  

Total  53  

  

While this chart shows that the department has done very well in recruitment, there are 

some signs of concern in the area of retention. The department’s willingness to employ 

student members from UW Platteville should be commended.  Many departments are 

unwilling to look at possible recruits who do not appear to be potential “lifelong” members.  

Being an autonomous City on the region along with abundant employment opportunities 

within the City is also a positive situation for recruitment and retention.  

  

On the side of retention, there is a notable drop in membership in the range of 6-15 years, 

which appears to be more common in departments that PAA has studied. This not only has 

an impact on overall membership numbers, but in succession planning and in developing 

future officers of the department. This situation needs to be monitored closely in the 

immediate future and an exit interview system should be put into place to monitor factors 

contributing to the loss of personnel in this longevity bracket. This information then can be 

used to put practices in place to overcome the barriers of retaining membership beyond 5 

years. There are a variety of factors that are affecting this phenomenon in the fire service. 

These issues range from societal changes, increases in training and education required to be 

firefighters, increases in call volume, and employers reluctant to allow personnel to leave for 

calls. These issues are not unique to Platteville and will require a variety of responses.  

  

Recommendations: Organizational Structure 

1) Develop position descriptions for all positions within the department.  

2) If the department is going to continue as a Chapter 181 organization, update the 

articles of incorporation to reflect the current organizational practices and position 

titles used.  

3) Continue the successful recruitment efforts that are in place and continue to monitor 

for effectiveness.  

4) Put an exit interview program in place and monitor issues affecting retention of 

personnel and put mitigating efforts in place to retain personnel.  

  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 16 

VII. LEVEL OF SERVICE  
It is critical in this study to examine the level of service provided by the department.  This 

examination can be done best by using performance measures established by national rating 

organizations. The first source are the standards and research material produced by the 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), an independent agency that develops model 

codes and standards for the fire service. This agency also conducts research and publishes 

the data.  The other benchmark data used is from the Insurance Service Office (ISO), also a 

national rating organization.  Fire departments are evaluated routinely by the ISO which 

provides information to insurance companies to use in setting fire insurance rates. This 

rating system is known as the Public Protection Classification Program and the ratings range 

from Class 1 which is the best possible score to Class 10 which is essentially no fire 

protection. This evaluation is broken down into three areas: Emergency Communication 10% 

(911 system and radios), Fire Department 50% (all fire department operations including 

training), and Water Supply (Municipal Water system) 40%.   

 

The current ISO rating for Platteville is a Class 3, which is remarkable for an On 

Call/Volunteer Department. The rural area of the district protected by the Platteville fire 

department has a 6/10 rating. The primary reason for the lower rating is that there is not a 

municipal water supply in this area. The area with the Class 10 rating consists of the areas 

beyond five road miles of the fire station which are beyond the minimum rating standard of 

the ISO.  

  

In its last ISO review, the City of Platteville department received a score of 34.21 points out 

of a possible 50 points. The two areas receiving the least credit were  

personnel which scored 6.38 out of a possible 15 points. It should be noted that to achieve 

maximum credit all companies would need to be staffed with 4 or more full time personnel 

which is a high benchmark. The other area with a lower score was training, receiving 3.9 of a 

possible 9 points. This score was primarily due to the fact that the department does not have 

a fire training facility. For personnel and training, the department only received 5.95 of the 

possible 35 points for the training section.  

 

There are some areas that could be improved by the department that would raise the ISO 

score, but probably not enough to move the rating to the next classification level of 2.  

With regard to emergency response, the department operates primarily as a volunteer on-call 

department. Other than during weekday normal business hours when the two full time staff 

are available in the station or within the response area, staffing for response is by on-call 

members.  This categorizes the department in the category of “mostly volunteer” which is 

typical as noted by the data in the table 4 below which was also garnered form the 2018 

NFPA survey.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 17 

Table 4 Department Size by Fire Fighter type 

 

Population  All Career  
Mostly 

Career  

Mostly 

Volunteer  
All Volunteer  

10,000-24,999  26%  25%  36%  13%  

5,000-9,999  9%  12%  41%  39%  

 

Table 5 breaks down calls by municipality in the district over the past two years. As one would 

expect, the City of Platteville has the highest incidence of calls for service. This is expected with the 

combination of population, population density and number of structures protected.  The Town of 

Platteville is next highest in demand and includes the interface between the City and rural area. The 

townships fall within roughly the same demand range with no significant or distinguishing demand.   

 

 

 

Table 5 Call Location by Municipality 

 

Municipality 2019 % 2020 % Avg. 

City of Platteville 155 69% 128 64% 67% 

Belmont Township 7 3.10% 12 6.00% 5% 

Elk Gove Township 3 1% 1 0.50% 1% 

Ellenboro township 19 8% 8 4% 6% 

Harrison Township 6 3% 3 1% 2% 

Lima Township 9 4% 11 5% 5% 

Platteville Township 22 10% 32 16% 13% 

Smelser Township 5 2% 6 3% 3% 

 

One of the primary questions of this study is, does the department in its current form have 

the capacity to meet the demand for the service area.  Demand and response data were 

reviewed for the past five years. Data for emergency response demand is presented in Table 

6 below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 18 

 

Table 6 Calls for Service by General Category 

 

Call Type  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020*  

Fire:                 

Building Fire  16  11  13  13  10  

Cooking Fire  1  3  2  5  8  

Vehicle Fire  7  8  10  6  6  

Outdoor Fire  7  5  15  6  12  

Rescue:                 

Vehicle Accident  37  28  37  38  28  

Assist EMS  4  2  2  5  4  

Rescue Other  6  3  6  4  6  

Hazardous Condition:  

               

CO Alarm  14  9  16  43  32  

Gas Leak  14  4  14  10  20  

Wire Down  2  0  3  5  2  

Haz Mat Spill/Leak  4     4  4  4  

False Alarms:                 

Alarm, no fire, false  35  46  45  46  42  

Sprinkler malfunction  4  0  3  4  3  

Smoke Scare  8  5  5  6  8  

Service Call:                 

Cancelled Enroute  9  13  21  18  15  

Misc. Service Call  12  16  18  12  12  

Total Calls  180  153  214  225  212  

  

Call volume has varied from year to year but as in most communities and with growth of the 

community, call volume is likely to continue to increase. The average call volume for the last 

three years is .6% per day or slightly more than one call per two days.  This is well within the 

demand mean of an on-call department. The trend has been an increase of 3% per year 

averaged over five years. Using this trend data and assuming the same growth rates of the 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 19 

community, the demand is likely to grow to an average of one call per day within the 15 to 

20-year range. This level of demand could put a strain on a primarily on call/volunteer force.   

  

In addition to the volume of calls, the amount of time spent on calls is a consideration in all 

departments, but particularly with on call/volunteer departments. One must also consider 

that additional time is spent returning to the station and placing fire apparatus and 

equipment back into service which can easily add an extra 50% or more to the time 

commitment per call. Table 7 below shows the average time on call average commitment by 

the department over the last five years. The average time per call is roughly one hour, the 

time has gone down slightly, most likely by the increase in CO alarm calls and other minor 

incidents which increase volume but usually, take less time per incident.  

 

Table 7 Average Time on Calls 

  

Year  Time in minutes  

2016  64  

2017  58  

2018  50  

2019  52  

2020  49  

  

The call trend by time of day, outlined in Table 8 below are typical of most communities with 

the majority of demand occurring during daytime hours which is clearly the case in Platteville. 

Currently for minor non-emergent calls that are in the category of most increased demands 

such as CO alarms and smoke detector alarms, the Chief and Assistant Chief respond during 

daytime hours and handle these calls without a full response. The Department employs an 

on-call group schedule for hours outside of normal business hours to avoid the paging of all 

personnel for these small incidents. This is an excellent practice for several reasons. These 

incidents do not require a full response force and it is an inefficient use of resources to do 

so. Secondly, these lower urgency calls are growing and will continue to do so and could 

create demand burnout of on call members.   

 

Table 8 Calls by Time of Day  
 

Year  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020  

0700-1700  46%  37%  49%  45%  56%  

1700-2300  32%  35%  26%  35.1%  26.5%  

2300-0700  22%  28%  25%  29.9%  17.5%  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 20 

 

Response time is often used as a key performance measure of a fire department.  The data 

in the table is presented in “fractals” verses averages to be more specific as to performance.  

The 10-minute travel time is a benchmark performance measure in the national NFPA 1720 

Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression, Emergency Medical 

Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by Volunteer Fire Departments. This 

standard is based pm having 10 personnel on scene with a travel time of 10 minutes or less 

80% of the time. While travel times appear to be meeting the standard, the other part of the 

measurement of the time necessary to gather the effective response force of 10 people is 

not within the data currently collected.  While this specific data was not available, the 

available data did have a total response force or number of personnel that did respond to 

the incident. This data is displayed in the Table 9 below.  

  

Table 9 Time Enroute to Time of Arrival at Scene  
 

Response time  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020  

<5 minutes  66.9%  53.6%  65.6%  44.9%  26.4%  

<10  95.8%  97.1%  88.2%  87.6%  75.5%  

>10  4.2%  2.9%  11.8%  12.4%  24.5%  

 

There appears to be a trend that the response time is increasing.  This trend needs to be 

monitored and addressed in the future.   

 

A more analytic view of the travel time portion of response time was conducted using 

Geographic Information Software (GIS) to model travel distances and travel time. The 

Insurance Service Office (ISO), uses a travel time distance of 1.5 miles to receive maximum 

credit for “distribution of Engine companies” in areas served by a municipal water system. It 

is important to note that while this distance coverage would receive a 100% score, a 

percentage of coverage score would still receive some credit for areas over this distance. 

This is shown in Appendix C, Map 1 for the current fire station location. As can be seen by the 

map, the vast majority of property within the City limits and the developed areas in townships 

are covered using this travel distance.  It should also be noted that the GIS system only 

follows existing roads and not “area coverages”, so additional road development could show 

additional coverage of some areas.  Map 2 shows the response time estimates for a five, ten- 

and fifteen-minute travel times. This is calculated using an industry standard response time 

formula that was developed by the Rand Corporation and is proven to be quite accurate. The 

times reflected in the model also reflect the findings of the historic response travel time 

data.  

The historic and mapping data also shows that the current location of the fire station is 

serving the needs of the response area very well. It is centrally located to provide a high level 

of response to the highest risk area of the protection district and maximize ISO credit by 

covering the majority of the area with municipal water system within one- and one-half miles 

of the station.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 21 

  

Another key performance indicator reviewed is the number of personnel that turn out per 

incident. The data shows that the department has an excellent number of personnel per call 

average that exceeds the benchmark standards for a mostly volunteer department. This 

report breaks down these data into structure fire incidents and all other incidents. The 

primary reason for doing this is that structure fires present the greatest demand for 

personnel on scene. Another reason is that because averages were used, the data would 

have been skewed for structure fires if data also included limited responses for non-

structural events.  The data for turnout of personnel per incident are listed in the Table 10 

below.  

 

Table 10 Average Personnel on Calls  
 

Year 

All calls  Structure Fires  

2016 18  28  

2017 21  29  

2018 21  22  

2019 17  37  

2020 17  33  

  

The last ISO rating confirms this high-performance level, showing an average turnout of 30.6 

personnel on the first alarm for fires.  This is an excellent turnout of personnel for this time 

by any department much less an on-call volunteer department.  This turnout of personnel 

would be envied by not just other on call/volunteer departments but full time/career 

departments as well.  However, the ISO review of the Platteville Department only awarded 

6.38 out of 15 points. The reason for this rating is that ISO credits on-call personnel 

differently than personnel staffed in the station, essentially counting them at one third of the 

credit awarded to 24-hour station personnel. This reduction in points is done, according to 

ISO, to reflect the time of personnel responding to the station and to assemble as a team 

due to varying arrival times at the station.  

Mutual Aid, or service provided to another community as well as requested and received by 

PFD was also reviewed, see Table 11 below.  The data shows that is truly balanced and 

mutual and that PFD neither provides for or receives a significant volume of calls in either 

category.  A large number of mutual aid given calls would show other communities were 

relying of service from PFD or the invers would show that PFD was struggling to meet their 

demands and relying on other departments for assistance. 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 22 

Table 11 Mutual Aid Provided and Received 

 

Year Mutual Aid 

Provided 

Mutual Aid 

Received 

2016 4 3 

2017 4 4 

2018 6 2 

2019 1 2 

2020 4 6 

 

Safety and Professional Services 330 requires the creation of standard operating policies 

and guidelines to govern safety within the fire department.  This is a rather new requirement 

in the past few years.  Platteville Fire Department is currently working on creating Standard 

Operating Policies and Guidelines at the time of this study.  Appendix A has the areas that 

are needed to have Standard Operating Policies and Guidelines created for.   

One of the outcomes of this study was to determine the performance of the department in 

meeting the current and future demand as it is currently organized and determine if a 

change in organization is now or will be required.  

  

On a very positive note, the department is meeting current demand for service benchmarking 

data as established by national standards and practices. Some additional data and data sets 

need to be developed to make this picture even clearer for future continuous evaluation, but 

overall the data and anecdotal views are very positive. There are some improvements that 

can and need to be made, primarily policy and Standard Operating Guidelines development, 

which will drive improvements in training standards and operations.  

 

There are four organizational options to consider:   

1) The first option is essentially the current department with selected improvements.  The 

organization, as an on call/volunteer department with a paid Fire Chief and inspector, 

currently is adequate and should be for the next five to ten years. During this time 

period, the fire department should be reorganized as a municipal department and PFD 

INC should transition into a non-profit support association for the department.  The 

pride of volunteerism is still strong, but in time, compensation may need to be also 

considered for members’ time for response and training, both of which have and will 

continue to increase. The need for this will show in the key performance measure of 

recruitment and retention of personnel.  The other factors we recommend for moving 

toward a municipal based department are outlined in the detailed review of 

governance and organization.  

  

Rather than a set timeline, what should drive the next organization change for the 

department is to monitor Key Performance Indicators KPI’s) for the department and 

ensure that the proper data is collected to do so.    

The KPI’s that should be monitored and used in this decision making should be at 

minimum:  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 23 

1)  Time of dispatch to time first unit enroute  

a.  Benchmark 5 minutes or less 90% of the time  

2)  Continue to monitor time enroute to time on location  

a. 10 minutes or less 80% of the time  

3)  Time to gather an effective response force on scene (structure fires only)  

a. Minimum 10 personnel on scene in 10-minute time 80% of the time in the City  

b. Minimum 6 personnel on scene in 14 minutes 80% of the time in rural area of 

district  

4)  Retention of personnel  

a.   50% retention of members that remain in response area  

  

The next step organizational step for the department to meet demand increases 

would be a combination department. This could be accomplished in several different 

options.  

   

2) The second combination option would be to provide day time staffing for one engine 

company Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm.  All other times would be 

covered by on-call personnel. This configuration would accomplish two things. It would 

cover the times of highest demand and relieve pressure on-call members from 

frequently having to leave their regular employment. A single engine company can deal 

with the majority of incidents other than structure fires. In most communities protected 

by full time departments, calls such as building alarms, carbon monoxide calls, vehicle 

accidents on city streets, and EMS assistance are handled by a single engine company. 

It should be noted that the Incident Commander can upgrade the response to more 

units based on additional dispatch information or other circumstances. Calls involving 

fire and vehicle accidents on highways would still require a full response of personnel.  

 

The fire inspection program could be handled by the engine company crew and the 

current inspector position being merged into the crew staffing. Three additional full-

time staff would be required to ensure an effective and adequate fire company crew. 

The current cost for fire firefighters in Wisconsin is in the $45,000.00-$60,000.00 

range with an additional 30-40% cost for benefits. The total cost per firefighter would 

be in the $63,000.00 to $84,000 per year.  This would add an additional annual 

personnel cost to the department of $126,000.00 to $168,000 per year. The Fire 

Chief should not be considered for staffing of a fire company as State of Wisconsin 

2% dues requires a response of at least four personnel, one of which cannot be the 

Fire Chief.  The fire station also would need a locker room and a day/room lounge for 

breaks and an area for personnel while standing by but not actively engaged in 

routine work assignments.  

  

3) The third option, similar to option two, is to provide daytime coverage with full time 

personnel and provide the balance of coverage of days and weekends with paid on-

premise part-time staff.  Paid on premise staff can be drawn from the on-call 

membership or be simply part-time employees. They are paid hourly for their time in 

the station but are limited in weekly hours to less than benefit eligible status. Paid on-

call staffing for firefighters is generally in the $12.00 to $15.00 per hour range. Four 

paid on-premise personnel for remainder of time coverage, which is 118 hours per 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 24 

week, would be $294,000 to $368,000 per year. An option to supplementing or 

phasing in this concept would be to use fire interns.  In this option, students attending 

UW Platteville would be given dorm space in the station in return for providing night 

time and weekend coverage. While this option would not provide year around coverage, 

it certainly could reduce cost to the city and provide a cost savings and beneficial 

experience for the students.  

  

This option absolutely would require a new fire station with day room/lounge, dorm 

space, and locker facilities.  A configuration would need to allow separate and private 

access rooms similar to those in campus dormitories.  

  

4) The fourth option, and the costliest, would be to provide 24-hour staffing of one engine 

company supplemented by on-call personnel. This would require hiring at least twelve 

personnel to cover rotating 24-hour shifts. The additional total cost for the department 

would be in the range of $756,000 to $1,008,000 in today’s dollars. Most likely, on-

call personnel also would be compensated if this option were selected. As an option to 

limit the additional full-time staff at 12, on- call staff could be utilized as paid-on-

premise staff to fill in for paid leave of full-time personnel. If the use of paid on-call 

staff were not employed in this manner, at least one more additional full-time staff 

would be needed to cover paid leave along with the use of overtime back-fill for short 

notice situations such as emergency sick or injury leave.  

 

5) Utilize Appendix A to drive which areas of the organization that need Standard 

Operating Policies and Guidelines created for.   

 

Level of Service: Training 

 Fire Department training in Wisconsin is a requirement to meet Department of Safety 

and Professional Services Chapter SPS 330.07 Fire Department Safety and Health 

Standards.  There are also some federal mandates that require fire departments to provide 

annual training on nine topic areas.  The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) also has 

consensus standards that provide direction for training.  NFPA standards are not law, 

however, they are considered best practices or “standard of care”.   

Training is one of the most important components to a fire department for safety and 

security.  Platteville has a very complex emergency incident response responsibility.  Their 

incidents range from the house fires, barn fires, industrial fires, high rise fires, vehicle 

accidents and technical rescue to include high angle rescue and Haz-mat.  Training has also 

been noted to be the best recruitment and retention tool there is for an organization.  A 

robust training program will allow members to climb the ladder of all levels of Maslow’s 

hierarchy of needs.  As members become trained in fire ground operations this meets the 

needs of the Physiological and Safety needs.  As they progress in the organization, they start 

to meet the Love and Belonging and Esteem by being recognized as a member of the 

department and becoming a part of the team.  This is performed through social involvement 

with other members and being able to perform trained skills at a high level brings them to 

the esteem level.  When they have the opportunity to respond to an incident and perform at a 

high level the skills that have been provided to them with training, they have met the self-

actualization level.  A robust, validated and verified training program can assist members to 

reach the highest of Maslow’s ladder of success.   



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 25 

The Platteville Fire Department has a very robust training program.  They have done a very 

good job in meeting the requirements of SPS 330.08 Minimum training and education 

standards for new members and members advancing in the organization.  Platteville Fire 

Department has gone a level higher and requires, not only minimum training and education 

but to the level of certification.  The department has a training committee that yearly sets the 

training schedule for the coming year.  Topics are identified by creating a theme for the year.  

Multiple department members are certified fire instructors and work for the Southwest 

Technical College.  Training is performed on at least two nights a month.  This exceeds the 

two percent dues requirement of three hours per month.  There are other training 

opportunities to the membership outside the two nights a month, but these are held for 

special teams like extrication and high angle rescue.  Other department members that are 

not involved with special teams can also attend smaller training sessions for basic skills.   

The membership we interviewed felt very satisfied with the training provided by the 

department.  They felt the training was very organized and prepared them for different 

incidents they may encounter.  The department requires training to be provided at each level 

(entry level fire fighter, apparatus driver, and company officer) which complied with SPS 

330.08.  The department creates training lesson plans and has good records of attendance 

and topics covered.  The department has been doing multiple evolution training or scenario-

based training.  This training in the opinion of PAA, prepares an organization the best for an 

emergency scene.   

Recommendations: Level of Service Training  

1) This study has provided recommendations for operating guidelines in reference to 

emergency incident operations.  Currently the department has a seat assignment 

process that identifies which fire fighter in the apparatus does what job.  This is a great 

start to organization but need to be formalized in an operational guideline.  Once these 

guidelines have been created, training should be performed off of these guidelines.  

Operations should drive fire department training.   SPS 330.07 (2) Assure that the 

training and education provided under this section are based upon the fire department's 

written standard operation guidelines. 

2) A training committee is already in existence and has been doing a great job and 

identifying training needs and topics to train on.  As they move forward the committee 

should look at these items as they create there training programs.  A lot of these areas 

mentioned below are being implemented currently, these are just a guidance for future 

training program creation.   

a. SPS 330.07 (1) Establish and maintain a member training and education program 

that identifies specific goals and objectives for the prevention and elimination of 

occupational accidents, injuries, illnesses, exposures to communicable disease, 

and fatalities. 

b. SPS 330.07 (4) Provide training and education commensurate with the duties and 

functions the member is expected to perform. 

c. SPS 330.07 (6) Provide training and education to fire fighters about special 

hazards to which they may be exposed during a fire and other emergencies and 

advise of any changes that occur in relation to the special hazards. The procedures 

to address special hazards shall be maintained in written form. Training and 

education under this subsection shall be provided at least biannually. 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 26 

d. SPS 330.07 (7) Assure that the training and education are conducted frequently 

enough to ensure that each fire fighter is able to perform the assigned duties and 

functions satisfactorily and in a safe manner so as not to endanger other fire 

department members or employees. 

e. 330.07 (8) Assure that fire fighters whose duties include interior structural 

firefighting receive training and education consistent with established fire ground 

operating procedures. Training and education under this subsection shall be 

provided at least monthly. 

f. SPS 330.07 (10) Assure that a training and education program for any fire fighter 

engaged in fire ground operations includes procedures to perform a safe 

exit from a dangerous area in the event of equipment failure or sudden change in 

fire conditions. 

g. SPS 330.07 (11) Assure that fire fighters receive training and education on the 

incident management system in accordance with s. SPS 330.14 (1) (c). 

h. Federal training mandates for fire department also include on a annual basis to 

cover; Respiratory protection, Blood Borne Pathogens, Haz-Com (1910.1200), 

Lock-out/Tag-out, Haz-Mat (1910.120), Confined Space, NIMS, CPR and 

Ergometric.   

 

3) NFPA 1410 Minimum Company Standards is a good guidance in assisting with creation 

of the already in place scenario based training.   

 

4) NFPA 1401 Recommended Practice for Fire Service Training Reports and Records 

should also be to formulate their training record program.   

 

5) If Live Fire in an acquired structure is going to be performed, assure that training and 

education involving live firefighting exercises meet the standards specified 

in NFPA 1403.  This is found in SPS 330.07 (9).  The most difficult part of NPFA 1403 to 

follow is the need for certified instructors, however, Platteville Fire Department has 

multiple certified fire instructors.   

 

6) Strengthen the on boarding and training process of new fire fighters.   

 

Level of Service: Prevention  

 

The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention supervises fire prevention activities and for the greater 

part, carries out most of these duties. As required by State Administrative rule Safety and 

Professional Services 314 (SPS 314), all public buildings, places of employment and 

apartments of three family dwellings and more are inspected twice per year. There are some 

exceptions in the code for certain buildings, reducing the number of required inspections to 

once per calendar year in non-overlapping 15-month periods. When code violations are 

found on these routine inspections, they are followed up with re-inspections to assure that 

corrective action has been taken. There are approximately 588 properties identified for 

inspection in the department’s coverage area of which approximately 450 of them are in the 

category requiring two inspections per year. These routine inspections account for roughly 

1038 inspections with plus or minus 200 re-inspections.  

In addition to the routine inspections, the fire inspector is involved with new construction of 

buildings and renovations, which in turn require plan and development reviews.  While the 

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20330.14(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20330.14(1)(c)


Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 27 

inspector reports that more fire department involvement is occurring in inspections, there is 

not a formalized process or procedure for development review by the fire department.  While 

the fire department’s formal legal charge is enforcement of the fire code (which is a 

maintenance code rather than a building code), active participation in new construction and 

renovation reviews would do well to prevent fire related building code issues that might be 

discovered after the fact in the routine inspection process.  

  

As mentioned in the section on revenues, the City charges for fire prevention inspections. 

The charges include a fee of $70.00 for routine inspections that take less than one hour to 

conduct and if over one hour and additional $35.00 per hour. Re-inspection fees to follow up 

on corrected violations are not charged, but there is a progressive system if additional re-

inspection is required, starting at $150.00 (2nd), $200.00 (3rd) and finally $325.00 (4th and 

any further re-inspections). This type of system serves as a good incentive for fewer code 

violation corrections. These fees along with the 2% dues money received for the city and 

surrounding townships are estimated to generate $119,150 in 2020, which is 38% of the 

estimated total budget for the fire department.  

  

Public education programs on fire prevention also are conducted, including the usual 

activities of school visits, station tours, and appearances at public events.  

Fire extinguisher training also is provided on request to business and industry.   

The inspector is involved in the delivery of these programs. He reports that is getting more 

difficult to recruit volunteers to assist with these activities.  

 

The ISO also provides credit and evaluation of Fire Prevention activities, broken down into 

Code Enforcement/Inspection, Public Fire Safety Education, and Fire Investigation. The 

department received maximum credit, 2.2 out of 2.2 points for Code 

Enforcement/Inspection, which is excellent. Public Fire Safety Education received 1.5.1 out 

of 2.1 possible points. The shortcomings cited were lack of specific training for personnel in 

this area (certification) and evaluation of the programming provided. Fire Investigation is 

included in the category of prevention since the primary purpose of investigation is to identify 

the origin and cause of fires in order to develop preventative actions and codes. The 

department received 4.5 out of 5.5 possible points, with the loss of points due to not having 

a certified fire investigator.  

  

The State of Wisconsin has a provision in the Administrative Rule SPS 314 (Safety and 

Professional Services) that reduces the number of all required annual inspections from two 

per year in non-overlapping six-month periods to one per year in non-overlapping 15-month 

periods by developing a local ordinance. SPS 314.01(13) (7), entitled “Local ordinances for 

reducing the frequency of inspections” spells out that “Where authorized by a local 

ordinance, a city, village or town may reduce the inspections required under subd. 3. to at 

least once per calendar year, provided the interval between those inspections does not 

exceed 15 months.” There are several advantages for a municipality to do exercise this 

option. The first advantage is that it avoids the State 2% dues audit requirement of two 

inspections in non-overlapping six-month periods, which can be burdensome and difficult to 

meet. This option also allows the City to maintain a two inspection per year cycle if it chooses 

to, yet allows some flexibility if is not met that would have put 2% dues in jeopardy. As 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 28 

inspection volume grows or there is a change in how inspections are conducted, the City will 

have flexibility as well in choosing which buildings need to be inspected twice per year, 

therefore managing cost and workload.  

  

Recommendations: Level of Service Prevention 

1) Adopt a local ordinance per the provisions in SPS 314.01(13) 7, allowing for the reduction 

of inspection in all inspectable buildings to once per calendar year in non-overlapping 15-

month periods.  

 

2) Formally include the fire department in the development review and final occupancy 

inspection process.  

 

3) Seek additional training for personnel conducting Public Fire Education Programs.  

 

4) Seek training and certification for personnel assigned to fire investigation.  

 

Level of Service: Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 

Currently Emergency Medical Services (EMS) are being provided to the City of Platteville and 

the surrounding area by Southwest Health.  In recent years, EMS was provided by the City of 

Platteville, until Southwest Health took the service over.  This service was not part of the PFD.  

PFD does respond when requested by Southwest Health to EMS calls.  This number has been 

less than ten calls for service per year, over the past five years.  These types of calls 

generally are for lift assists and cardiac arrests.   

PFD does respond to vehicle accidents for extrication.  These range in the upper thirties for 

numbers over the past five years.  Whether PFD was in the EMS response or not, they would 

still respond to vehicle accidents and rescue calls because of their equipment and trained 

personnel.   

PFD to provide EMS could be in two types of services.  The first and easiest to implement 

would be a first response service.   This service is provided by members of the departments 

that would have Emergency Medical Responder Training and carry limited equipment in their 

personnel vehicle.  They would respond directly to the scene and provide patient care until 

the ambulance arrived and assisted the ambulance as needed until transport to the hospital.  

This would be an easy transition, however, there would be a cost associated with it and no 

added revenue stream to the department.  Members (20) would have to take training to 

provide this service.  The course is approximately 80 hours in length and cost approximately 

500 dollars. Equipment would need to be purchased for each responder which would be 

approximately $2,500 dollars each.  This would also have an impact on response numbers.  

Responding to EMS related calls would add approximately 600 more calls for service.  This 

would have a negative impact on the volunteers to the point that there would need to be 

considerations of having paid on premise personnel at peak times and possibly transitioning 

to full paid staff.   

Proving transport service with an ambulance is another level of EMS service that could be 

provided.  Currently Southwest Health is at the Critical Care Paramedic Level (Highest Level 

of EMS) to the Platteville area.  They have two staffed ambulances and a third when call 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 29 

volume increases.  The ambulances are staffed with personnel 24/7.  With this staffing 

model, they have good response times. If a first responder service would be started, 

essentially the ambulance would arrive prior to the first responders on most calls.    

To provide this level of service, there would need an extensive training program to bring 

personnel to the first level which is Emergency Medical Services – Basic.  This course is 

about 180 hours of training.  There is revenue that can be recuperated for transporting 

people to the hospital.  There would also be a capital outlay for purchase of at least one 

ambulance equipped and it would be recommended to purchase two for startup.    This cost 

would be close to a million dollars for two ambulances.  The new fire station would need to 

have dedicated space for storage of ambulance(s), disposable and non-disposable medical 

equipment.   

This would only be a small portion of the actual start up needed for an ambulance service at 

the EMT-Basic level.  By only providing the EMT-Basic level, the Platteville area would see a 

decrease in the level of care provided currently.   

To obtain the training and provider level, there would be a year plus of training for each 

member.  There will also be discussions on how they would fit in with Southwest Health.  Part 

of Southwest Health’s EMS responsibilities is not only to respond to 911 calls, they also 

transport patients to other area hospital for care that cannot be provided in Platteville.  There 

would not be enough revenue from all the EMS work to support two separate ambulance 

services.  There would need to be one service to take over all the EMS responsibility or each 

service would need to obtain a subsidy for operation from the hospital and the communities.  

The service would also have to meet the requirements for DHS 110.50 EMS Provider Staffing 

Levels.   

Recommendations: Level of Service EMS 

1) At this time of the report, it would not be recommended to increase to any level of EMS 

response whether it would be First Response or transport.   

2) Monitor community needs to assure level of service is being provided and possibly 

augment the EMS system with first response if call volume increases or there are peak 

times for demand that cannot be met.   The first response would only put medical 

trained personnel on scene until the arrival of an ambulance, not provide transport.  

VIII. EQUIPMENT/VEHICLES  
 

The apparatus fleet of the department is adequate and reasonably right sized for a 

community of this size and complexity. The vehicles are well maintained and equipped with 

the necessary hose and equipment for the needs and risks of the community. Apparatus and 

equipment are checked at the required intervals to be compliant with state regulations. The 

age of the fleet is within recommended standards with the exception of one engine. A 

replacement schedule has been established. The standard and industry practice for fire 

apparatus is a 20-year service life depending on call volume, use and maintenance. Although 

the 1995 engine is in fair condition. it is nearing the end of its service life and value. Any 

major service issues would not likely be worth the current value of the vehicle. Table 10 

below outlines the detail on the fleet of apparatus.  

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 10 Fleet of Apparatus 

 

City/Rural  Year  
Apparatus 

Type  

Purchase 

Date  

Estimated  

Replacement 

Date  

City  2007  Engine  2007  2037  

City  1995  Engine  1995  2025  

City  2017  Engine  2017  2047  

Rural  2019  Engine  2019  2049  

City  2001  Aerial  2001  2031  

City/Rural  2009  Rescue  2009  2039  

City/Rural  2018  
Quick 

Response  2018  2043  

Rural  2011  Tender  2011  2039  

Rural  1997  Tender  1997  2029  

Rural  2008  
6-Wheel ATV  

2008  2023  

  

Table 12 are from the most recent fire Deportment profile survey conducted by the National 

Fire Protection Association (NFPA) are presented for comparison purposes. We selected data 

from two population ranges as Platteville is near the lower threshold of its comparative data 

range.  

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 31 

 

 

Table 12 National Profile of Equipment 

 

                                      Pumpers per Department  

Population  1  2  3 to 4  
5 or  

More  

10,000-24,999  9%  34%  47%  10%  

5,000-9,999  15%  44%  36%  4%  

  

  

Aerials per Department  

Population  0  1  2  4-Mar  
5 or  

More  

10,000- 

24,999  49%  47%  4%  0%  0%  

5,000- 

9,999  73%  26%  1%  0%  0%  

  

Other Vehicles per Department  

Population  0  1  2  4-Mar  
5 or  

More  

10,000- 

24,999  24%  23%  20%  21%  12%  

5,000- 

9,999  17%  23%  25%  26%  10%  

  

Based on the comparative data and response area needs, the fleet of the department falls 

within the range of comparable protection areas. In regard to “other vehicles” the 

department is on the upper range of apparatus. Being that the rural area without a water 

system is part of the protection area, the department has a need for a minimum of two water 

tender apparatus and an ATV vehicle for fighting brush fires or assisting with recues in off 

road areas. The rapid response vehicle is not a typical apparatus in most fleets.  The 

department is above average on the number of pumpers in its fleet for a community of its 

size and profile.  

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 32 

ISO rating for apparatus is near maximum point value, indicating an adequate and 

appropriate fleet for the fire risk protected. The pump capacity of the fleet also received 

maximum credit. Platteville requires the maximum rated flow of 3,500 gallons per minute 

based on maximum for flows needed for the buildings protected. The department did not 

receive credit for a reserve ladder or service truck. It does not have a reserve ladder truck no 

do we believe there is a need for one. But the department does have a service truck, which is 

counts as the Rescue Company. Table 12 below outlines the department point value of ISO 

in comparison of what credit is possible.  

 

Table 13   ISO Rating for Platteville Apparatus  

 

Rating Schedule Item  
Earned 

Credit  

Credit 

Possible  

Engine Companies  5.96  6  

Reserve Pumpers  0.5  0.5  

Pump Capacity  3  3  

Ladder Companies  3.85  4  

Reserve Ladder or Service 

Truck  0  0.5  

 

 

Recommendation:  Equipment and Vehicles 

 

1) Reduce the apparatus fleet by one engine company to right size the fleet for the protection 

area and to avoid costly repairs and maintenance on the 1995 engine.    

 

2) Ensure on the next ISO evaluation that the Rescue Company is properly credited as a 

service company.  

 

IX. FACILITIES   

  

A complete analysis of the current facility was done in tandem between PAA and Five Bugles 

Design. Please refer to Part B, Section 3 for more information.  

 

Recommendations: Facilities 

 

A new fire station should be constructed to meet the operations, storage and safety needs of 

the department.  The Station should be located within the downtown area of Platteville as 

close to the existing location as possible to maintain response times to current levels.   

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 33 

In addition to accommodating the anticipated organizational changes just listed, the fire 

station has obvious issues affecting the safety and operations of the department. The more 

specific space and design needs is outlined above.  

  

Our research and modeling of response times from the current location show this station is 

an effective site for service delivery.  Benchmark criteria for ISO and NFPA standards for 

response time and distances for the City can be met from this location. In addition, this 

location is very centralized for the majority of on- call members of the department, 

contributing to good turnout times to the stations.  See Maps in Appendix C 

  

However, the current land space available along with storm water issues pose limits for this 

location.  The City has acquired a dwelling and land behind the current station on Ellen 

Street, although there is no vacant land within this block.  Because this location is very good 

for the listed reasons, it should be further evaluated to determine if with further land 

acquisition a station that would accommodate the needs of the department could be located 

within this block.  

 

The response modeling shows that to maintain the current response time and ISO travel 

distances, the fire station needs to be located in the center of the city in or near the edges of 

the downtown area.  Though interviews and discussions and reviewing this area, there are no 

significant vacant parcels of land available. However, two underutilized properties were 

brought to our attention: (1) the Armory building and property and (2) the current location of 

the Senior Services building, which is located in the site of a former elementary school.  

The Armory building once was home to the Army National Guard Detachment 1, 229th 

Engineer Company.  This unit has since relocated to Richland Center due to lack of space at 

this site. Currently, the Armory building is used as a recruiting office and a gym/auditorium 

space for City recreation activities.  The site also includes a large parking lot area, 

significantly adding to the foot print of this property. This building has been a point of 

discussion with the City in the past regarding possible acquisition. This site was mapped as a 

potential new location.  The response time model and ISO travel distance maps are located 

in Appendix C.  

  

The location of the former O.E. Gray Community Learning Center, owned by Platteville Public 

Schools and currently occupied by the Senior Center, also was discussed as a possible 

location. This location has significant open land space in the former playground and athletic 

field areas for the school. Potential sharing of facilities at this location will be explored as 

well in the second section of this report.  This site was mapped as a potential new location 

and the response time model and ISO travel distance maps are located in Appendix C.  

 

 

X. FUTURE REGIONALIZATION OF THE FIRE SERVICE 

The volunteer/ paid on call fire service in Wisconsin and throughout the nation is showing 

signs of struggling, as a quick internet search would quickly confirm.  While this study did not 

extensively examine the viability and performance of the surrounding departments, there is 

evidence revealed from our discussions and mutual aid history that indicate that this area is 

not immune from these issues. 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 34 

The authors believe that to meet the future needs of providing service, coupled with 

declining numbers in the ranks and longevity of volunteer/on call firefighters, fire 

department will need to resort to a more regional model for delivering fire response. This has 

already taken affect in the state with the organized response effort called the Mutual Aid Box 

Alarm System or MABAS. This system, rather than utilizing a “call as needed” type of mutual 

aid from neighboring departments, has pre-determined groups of resources or Box Alarm list, 

for designated geographic areas. This system mimics the response and dispatch procedures 

of large cities, but is applied over jurisdictional lines to obtain the proper resources. 

Admittedly, most volunteer/on call departments rely on this to system to provide sufficient 

resources to respond to a structure fire, particularly during the day time hours and 

weekends. Some departments that regularly rely on additional assistance will take this one 

step further by developing automatic aid agreements so that sufficient resources are 

dispatched on the initial call. With these two practices, in some respects one of the more 

important aspects of fire service, the area around Platteville already is somewhat 

regionalized, but the regionalization is not fully developed.  

In addition to mustering an effective response force for calls, there are the various 

prevention, administrative, and training needs of the department that must be performed.  

The Platteville fire department added a fire inspector some time ago and recently converted 

the fire chief position to full time, in recognition of its needs.  Regardless of the size and call 

volume, most of these needs and legal requirements are the same for all fire departments. It 

is around these support functions where we see the next steps in regionalization to occur.  

This is known in the fire service as functional consolidation. Administrative functions, such as 

planning, maintenance and preparedness, policy, and SOG development are provided by full 

time staff on a regional basis.  Individual “fire departments” keep their community identity, 

have local fire officers for supervision and direction, but fall under the administrative and 

leadership umbrella of the full-time staff of the regional department. This model already 

exists in some areas of the State such areas surrounding Washington DC including farther 

out into the more rural areas. What once were stand-alone fire departments are fire 

companies or stations as part of a regional or county fire department. 

Training is one of the consolidated areas and, in our opinion, probably one of the first and 

most important things that should be regionalized.   If fire departments rely on mutual aid as 

a regular practice, which they are doing, then it is imperative that they operate under the 

same Standard Operating Guidelines and train to those standards as a matter of safety. 

Fire prevention and inspection activities would be one of the easier areas to functionally 

consolidate. This often is one of the first areas where departments struggle to get its 

members to complete the work. Inspection activities mostly need to be done during normal 

business hours, which usually conflict the work schedules of volunteer /on call members. 

Some departments already sub-contract this work to private for contract providers, this is not 

a recommended practice in our opinion.  

How then do we see the role of the City of Platteville Fire Department in future regionalization 

activities.   Platteville is the largest City in the area.  It already has paid staff, the largest on 

call membership and apparatus fleet.  It is poised to be the central agency or hub of a 

regional effort.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 35 

How this is effort specifically is done as a regional or county-wide organization is difficult to 

predict. It will no doubt be met with some resistance with concerns about loss of control and 

community identity. As with our recommendations for Platteville, key performance indicators 

on an area-wide basis should begin to be collected and monitored to make this decision 

more objective than subjective. 

At this moment, the most important thing Platteville should consider is how functional 

regionalization would affect the construction of a new fire station. The new station should 

have adequate office space for administrative, training and prevention functions of a 

regional nature, with potential room to expand to accommodate additional full-time staff. 

Training facilities need to be designed to accommodate large groups and small groups 

simultaneously in a classroom setting. There also should be consideration for indoor 

practical training as part of the fire apparatus floor as well as an outdoor training space.  

 

 

XI. STAKEHOLDERS AND DEPARTMENT MEMBERS Information and opinions 

of members and Stakeholders  

As part of the study process, community stakeholders and members were interviewed and 

the following information summarizes, the information obtained in this process not 

necessarily specifically cited in previous sections of the report.  The following City Leaders 

were Interviewed:  

Common Council Members Barbara Daus (Council President), Eileen Nickels (President Pro-

Tem), Ken Kilian, Robin Cline, and Kathy Kopp  

Police and Fire Commission Members Vikki Peterson, Jane Peoples, Deborah Rice, Frank 

King and Kathy Kopp 

 City Manager Adam Ruechel  

The same following questions were asked of each city leader as part of the PAA/Five Bugles 

initial information gathering for the Platteville Fire Study project.  Here are the questions and 

a summary of the responses:  

What do you believe are the issues that prompted this study to take place?   

To a person, those interviewed indicated that what prompted this study is the realization that 

the current Fire Station is inadequate to meet not only current department needs but also 

future needs. The current facility was constructed in 1964 and fire operating standards, 

equipment and vehicles have changed significantly since then in the Platteville community.   

A community study group was formed in 2013 to look at the Fire Station but there has been 

little progress made since then in determining how either the existing facility can best be 

expanded or a new facility should be sited and designed. It was mentioned several times that 

community members Deborah Rice (a current Police and Fire Commissioner and retired UW-



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 36 

Platteville Criminal Justice Professor) and her husband Bill Kloster (UW-Platteville Foundation 

President) have been the driving forces to address the “Fire Station” issue.   

Selected Direct Quotes in Response to this Question are as follows: “We have a “state of the 

art” library, police station, and event center and we need one for the fire department” “As a 

long-time city resident, I have a lot of respect for the Platteville Fire Department and the 

department has been somewhat neglected and I’m an advocate for more resources, 

including updated facilities, for them to perform their jobs more effectively” “We have to 

modify equipment in order to fit into existing fire station and that’s not right…I like the 

current location but can it be efficiently expanded?” “Current facility is outdated and is not 

ADA compliant” “Very concerned about volunteer safety in existing fire station and we are 

dependent on them to provide this essential service…I can’t imagine anything worse for 

them than what we have now” “Fire facility is just inadequate to meet current as well as 

projected future needs…real key change is that the department itself is not so focused on 

staying at the existing location which opens up our options…we need you (consultants) to 

provide a game plan that will provide us with where the department needs to go for the next 

15,20,25 years”  

Do you believe that the current Platteville Fire facilities are sufficient to provide the services 

you are responsible for?  

As previously stated in response to Question 1, all community leaders interviewed were 

unequivocal in their belief that the current fire station is inadequate to meet both current 

and projected community and departmental needs. In their estimation, after many years of 

community discussion about either updating or replacing the current facility, there seems to 

be strong feeling that the timing is right to address the long-standing problems with the 

facility.   

Several City Council members were concerned about the many current “site challenges” to 

expanding at the current site including likely relocation of large sanitary sewer and water 

systems that greatly complicate the site.    

Selected Direct Quotes in Response to this Question: “Our Fire Department is well-liked in 

the community and is the ‘face’ of the community-they are our neighbors and we need to 

provide them a better place to do their jobs and to better store the equipment and vehicles 

they use” “The roof is leaking and there isn’t enough parking for the volunteers when they 

respond to calls and for training exercises”   

“General public is not that aware of the pressing space problems we have at the fire station 

so there will need to be public education on what a modern and efficient fire facility will bring 

to the community” “Current fire station is certainly not adequate but I like the location that 

it’s in…could it be expanded as part of a downtown redevelopment project? Mixed multi-use 

project?”  

Do you know of any issues or problems regarding the Fire Department that concern you?  

In response to this question, the community leaders invariably said that the Platteville Fire 

Department is highly respected in the community and they didn’t voice any concerns about 

current fire operations and personnel. The Police and Fire Commission members rarely have 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 37 

met to review any issues pertaining to the Fire Department and their focus is primarily on the 

Police Department. One person mentioned that she was concerned about future recruitment 

and retention of volunteers that the Fire Department is dependent on but that currently is 

not an issue for the department.   

Does the Platteville Fire Department have a response time goal and how do you measure the 

success of the Department (other performance indicators)?  

It was interesting that not a single community leader could articulate what the Fire 

Department’s response time goal was or what they regard as key department performance 

indicators. They responded to this question by generally stating that they never receive any 

complaints about response times to fire incidents and that complaints were their number 

one indicator of department performance.   

Notwithstanding the lack of clear response time goals, however, the community leaders 

interviewed indicated that they were very aware of the need to develop such goals in the 

context of any potential new fire facility siting and that they looked forward to the spatial 

analysis that will be provided as part of the Fire Study. They agreed that spatial analysis is 

critical to provided future optimal response times.   

Are you aware of any current recruitment and /or retention issues for the Platteville Fire 

Department?  

Interviewees were generally unaware of any significant recruitment and/or retention 

problems with Fire Department volunteers, although several remarked that they were 

concerned that this will be an issue for them going forward as training and certification 

requirements for firefighters increase. Several also stated that there should be a future 

emphasis on recruiting UW-Platteville or Southwest Technical School students as well as UW-

Platteville faculty and staff to become Platteville firefighters (currently there are 

approximately 4-5 UW-Platteville students and 6-7 UW-Platteville staff who are on the Fire 

Department). This could be a real plus in attracting new members of the Department and to 

promote the Firefighter profession in general.   

One interviewee said that the Department has a capacity of 60 members and that the 

current roster is 51, so there is room for additional personnel. That same individual 

expressed a concern that Platteville might need to provide fire services to the Belmont and 

Livingston areas in the future because of an increasing shortage of fire volunteers in those 

communities.    

Are there any unique barriers in the community that affect Department performance?  

The Platteville community leaders interviewed indicated that the City has many old historic 

structures and the downtown has some narrow one-way streets that could affect Fire 

Department performance.  

The University, of course, has a large concentration of buildings and other facilities, including 

several densely populated dormitories that need to be protected. There seems to be a very 

good working relationship between the City and the Fire Department.   



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 38 

What key stakeholders do you believe should be engaged in this study to ensure its ultimate 

success?   

The issue of who should be involved in the study prompted a good deal of discussion among 

the interviewees. In general, all thought that a meeting of all identified stakeholders at some 

time during the fire study process would be very important to its overall success in getting 

implemented. As one individual stated, “this needs to be an inclusive rather than exclusive 

process because we have not had a community consensus on what to do with the Fire 

Department in the past”.  

The key stakeholders that were identified included the following: UW-Platteville leadership 

including the chancellor and provost; seven surrounding communities that currently receive 

services from the Platteville Fire Department; Southwest Wisconsin Technical College 

leadership; Platteville Chamber of Commerce; Platteville School District; Platteville Main 

Street Program and Hospital. These stakeholders would be in addition to the Platteville 

firefighters and administrative leaders as well as the City Council, City Manager and City 

Management Team.   

What are other things that you want the consultants to know about Platteville and its Fire 

Department that we might not have covered in previous questions?  

 There were a number of items that city leaders wanted our consultant team to be aware of 

or that they wanted to have addressed in the Fire Study (these are presented in no priority 

order:  

• A general community input session was desired by several City Council members in order 

to capture what community members might want in a new or expanded fire facility.  

• There is an interest in exploring potential “mixed-use” fire facilities that could combine a 

traditional fire station with housing, retail, or other institutional uses. For example, it was 

suggested that the Southwest Wisconsin Technical College might desire a Platteville 

location for some of its training and education courses.   

• Parking for an expanded or new Platteville fire facility was a concern. A Council member 

mentioned that the need for a 100-car parking lot (for adequate volunteer parking and 

training events?) has been rumored around the community and that would be difficult to 

achieve in the current location.   

• The current Platteville Fire Station is located in a special Downtown Main Street Design 

District. Fire study consultants will need to review those special design standards to 

determine how they might affect an expanded Fire facility at its current location or at a 

potential new site within the same Design  

District.   

• The City’s Historic Preservation efforts were highlighted in the Downtown area. It was noted 

that any expansion of the existing fire station will need to be carefully done to blend in with 

the existing neighborhood and downtown. It was mentioned that a past Fire task force 

recommended that the future station site should be at the corner of Main and Water Street.  

We note, however, there have been considerable flooding and stormwater issues at that 

corner that need to be considered as well as other underground utility impacts.     



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 39 

• City leaders want the consultants to be “visionary” in projecting what fire service on a 

regional basis might be in the next 10 to 30 year time horizon. Specifically, what services 

could Platteville could expect to possibly provide to nearby communities such as Belmont, 

Cuba City, Dickeyville, Lancaster and Potosi?   

• Overall, there was a consensus that the timing was right to move forward with Fire 

Department facility and organizational plans…this has been building for the last 7-10 

years.    

 

Fire Department Members interviewed were: two fire fighters with 1-3 years of service, two 

fire fighters with 5 years of service, two senior fire fighters, two lieutenants, two captains, fire 

chief, three assistant chiefs, secretary/treasurer, and directors.   

What do you think the Dept. does well?   

 

This question was met quickly and positively by all persons interviewed. Performance on 

response and training receiving the most mention. The dedication of members, how well they 

work with each other was also a common theme.  I believe the answers to this question show 

that overall, the department has a positive culture and pride, which is very important to 

success. 

 

What areas if any, do you think the Dept. could improve?  

 

The answers to this question were a bit more diverse and somewhat dependent on years of 

service.  The Fire Station was unanimously the first comment with everyone interviewed. 

Training arose in this question overall some saying more is needed, some with the caveat of 

ensuring there is understanding of the amount of time that volunteers have available. This 

will be covered more under the training question. Retention of personnel was raised as an 

area that needs attention, again this will be covered in more depth under that question. 

 

What are the challenges for the department in the next five to ten years? 

 

 Maintaining the number of personnel on the department was the most common answer with 

this question lack of experience for a large number of members and followed by   the 

impending retirement and loss of senior members. (This is a very common situation and 

concern in most fire departments today) Coverage during daytime hours/weekdays is not as 

good other times of day, not anticipated to improve.  Time commitment for volunteers was 

also a common concern in this question, the need for change and more training is 

understood, but members expressed concern for change to take place at a slower pace and 

recognition of time commitment of volunteers. This time commitment concern not just with 

training, but also with other non-emergency duties including maintenance. In regard to 

maintenance for example, members cited it was getting more difficult to fit in response as 

incidents go up, adding vehicle and maintenance after calls puts added stress on this 

situation. 

 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 40 

Do you think the organizational structure of the department is effective?  

 

Generally, this question also received very quick and positive answers. Members feel the 

leadership and supervisory positions are adequate and there is good unity and chain of 

command. 

 

Do you think the Department should remain as a Chapter 181 non-stock corporation? Would 

changing this have a negative impact on the department?  

 

The answers to this were also varied by tenure.  The members with 5 years or less were not 

really even aware that this was the official governance model of the department and 

therefore did not have a major concern.  Of the more senior members there was some 

variance, but a common concern over losing authority and control with the department. This 

led to lengthy discussions and the explanation that the department was operating more as a 

municipal department form a financial standpoint than an independent corporation. This 

question also led to the discovery that a committee had been developed to create new by-

laws to more accurately reflect the current operation and more closely resemble a non-profit 

benevolent association of fore department members. This document was acquired, but there 

remains some question of it has been legally enacted and if so, further moves the 

department from the legal form and practice of a Chapter 181 department. 

 

Do you think the staffing and staffing model of the department is adequate to meet the 

community’s needs?  

 

This was answered as a unanimous yes, but with concerns for the future. 

 

Do you think that the current station is adequate for the Department’s needs?  

 

This was met with a resounding no from all members. The most pressing issue, the crowding 

of apparatus and access to Personal protective equipment a vehicle during turnout time with 

people having to move out each other’s way and having to move vehicles out to access 

others on some incidents. Not having an indoor and outdoor hands on training space was 

also commonly cited. Lack of decon, cleaning areas is also a concern along no adequate 

shower or personal locker facilities for members.  It was mentioned the current Station does 

not have entrance that is welcoming to the public when they visit.  

 

Do you think that the departments apparatus and equipment is adequate to meet the 

community’s needs?  

 

This was met very positively and with little concern other than ensuring replacement of 

apparatus is kept up to the current practice.  There was also the concern of the effect of the 

current station and having to customize apparatus to fit in the station. Members over all feel 

this is a strong suit of the department. 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 41 

Is the Departments training program adequate?  

 

All members believe the training program is also a strong suit of the department.  Newer 

members however expressed that they would like to see a more outlined and directed 

program for new members. They stated at times it is more of a wait and learn on the job from 

more senior members. Balancing demands and time commitments and being aware of that 

is a concern with training. 

 

Is there adequate communication and direction provided by the department leadership?  

 

This was generally met with favorable comments. There were some comments that indicated 

a lack of consistency at times and appearance of disagreement. This issue we believe is not 

an issue of leadership personnel but I indicative of our finding that there is significant work 

to be done on development of written policy and standard operating guidelines. 

 

Does the Department Policies and SOG’s provide you the direction needed for you to 

comfortably and safely do your job?   

 

Surprisingly this was met with a fairly positive initial response which shows that there is a 

high level of consistency and communication by the supervisors and leadership of the 

department in general and “understood” unwritten policy and guideline, which is very 

important. This just needs to be also converted to written documentation and further 

development. 

 

How do you think the Department is doing with recruitment and retention?  

 

The consensus was the department is doing fairly well on recruitment. Members interviewed 

constantly stated that they were recruited by another member. This is an excellent and 

probably the most effective recruitment practice as well as showing a very positive 

department culture! The department also actively recruits members from the student 

population at UW-Platteville very successfully. The issue of retention, was of greater concern. 

There was no internal issue with the department cited as having an effect on retention other 

than time commitment.  Competing interest in members time, employment and members 

moving on to other communities (not just UW students) being impacts outside of the 

department affecting this. This too is a common issue in the volunteer for service in the state 

and country. There were not many suggestions on dealing with these challenges. We did use 

this to explore the question of would compensating volunteer staff help in retaining 

members, this was met with it may help but was not looked at as that impacting from those 

interviewed. 

 

Do you think the current promotional process is meeting the leadership needs of the 

Department?  

This was met with generally positive views, but the majority of persons interviewed had 

achieved a rank in the department. Newer members, were not real informed as to the 

process or how it takes place, nor could they say how a member indicates their interest in 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 42 

being promoted. While an evaluation system is used by the Chief and Chief officers for 

promotion, it is not documented in policy form. 

 

XII. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS   

Governance and Oversight 

Altering the relationship between those individuals who have selflessly served their 

community is always sensitive issue, even when it works to the advantage of both volunteers 

and their municipality.  Change is too often viewed as criticism.  It can, however, be a win-win 

proposition for both the volunteers and community which it serves.  As it stands now, there 

are too many grey areas in the relationship between the City and the Corporation.  PAA 

recommends that the City either:  

  

1) Clearly create a municipal fire department that includes current firefighters as 

employees and places hiring, discipline and discharge decisions under the authority of 

the Police & Fire Commission and operations under the authority of the Chief and 

Common Council.  Human resources and administrative support can be provided by 

professional City staff.  Position descriptions and hiring/promotional standards can be 

adopted.   An ordinance creating a Fire & Police Commission can be enacted, 

establishing the Commission as the Code establishes other committees and 

commissions in the City.  The current Corporation could continue to function as a 

benevolent and fund-raising association.     

  

2) Clearly separate the City from the Corporation.  This could take a number of different 

forms; however, the clearest separation would be for the City to remove references to a 

City Fire Department from its ordinances and simply contract with the Corporation for 

fire protection.  The Corporation would need to be prepared to take over the 

administrative functions currently provided by the City.   Officers and firefighters would 

be elected and removed from the Corporation by its membership as provided in the 

Articles of Incorporation. The contract should spell out who owns what assets and how 

they will be acquired in the future.   

 

Budget and Finance 

1) When updating the contracts for service with townships, the City should move away 

from the fee for service and billing of services in arrears model. This is a somewhat 

unpredictable and difficult methodology for municipal budgeting. It should develop a 

formula for assigning cost to the contracted townships based on assessed value of 

property improvements, calls for service, and population protected.  

2) Funding for Conference and Travel should be increased to provide more opportunities 

for outside training opportunities for department members.  

3) Establish written budgetary rules with decision making and to include documentation.   

 

Organizational Structure 

1) Develop position descriptions for all positions within the department.  

2) If the department is going to continue as a Chapter 181 organization, update the articles 

of incorporation to reflect the current organizational practices and position titles used.  

3) Continue the successful recruitment efforts that are in place and continue to monitor for 

effectiveness.  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 43 

4) Put an exit interview program in place and monitor issues affecting retention of 

personnel and put mitigating efforts in place to retain personnel.  

 

Level of Service 

1) Monitor response time as there has been a slight increase. 

2) Monitor amount of personnel responding to incidents.  If there are times of the day that 

are consistently falling below recommended numbers, this would indicate a need for 

paid-on-premise personnel.   

Level of Service Training  

1) This study has provided recommendations for operating guidelines in reference to 

emergency incident operations.  Currently the department has a seat assignment 

process that identifies which fire fighter in the apparatus does what job.  This is a great 

start to organization but need to be formalized in an operational guideline.  Once these 

guidelines have been created, training should be performed off of these guidelines.  

Operations should drive fire department training.   SPS 330.07 (2) Assure that the 

training and education provided under this section are based upon the fire 

department's written standard operation guidelines. 

2) A training committee is already in existence and has been doing a great job and 

identifying training needs and topics to train on.  As they move forward the committee 

should look at these items as they create there training programs.  A lot of these areas 

mentioned below are being implemented currently, these are just a guidance for future 

training program creation.   

a. SPS 330.07 (1) Establish and maintain a 

member training and education program that identifies specific goals and 

objectives for the prevention and elimination of occupational accidents, injuries, 

illnesses, exposures to communicable disease, and fatalities. 

b. SPS 330.07 (4) Provide training and education commensurate with the duties and 

functions the member is expected to perform. 

c. SPS 330.07 (6) Provide training and education to fire fighters about special 

hazards to which they may be exposed during a fire and other emergencies and 

advise of any changes that occur in relation to the special hazards. 

The procedures to address special hazards shall be maintained in written form. 

Training and education under this subsection shall be provided at least biannually. 

d. SPS 330.07 (7) Assure that the training and education are conducted frequently 

enough to ensure that each fire fighter is able to perform the assigned duties and 

functions satisfactorily and in a safe manner so as not to endanger other fire 

department members or employees. 

e. 330.07 (8) Assure that fire fighters whose duties include interior structural 

firefighting receive training and education consistent with established fire ground 

operating procedures. Training and education under this subsection shall be 

provided at least monthly. 

f. SPS 330.07 (10) Assure that a training and education program for any fire fighter 

engaged in fire ground operations includes procedures to perform a safe 

exit from a dangerous area in the event of equipment failure or sudden change in 

fire conditions. 

g. SPS 330.07 (11) Assure that fire fighters receive training and education on the 

incident management system in accordance with s. SPS 330.14 (1) (c). 

h. Federal training mandates for fire department also include on a annual basis to 

cover; Respiratory protection, Blood Borne Pathogens, Haz-Com (1910.1200), 

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20330.14(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/SPS%20330.14(1)(c)


Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 44 

Lock-out/Tag-out, Haz-Mat (1910.120), Confined Space, NIMS, CPR and 

Ergometrics.   

3) NFPA 1410 Minimum Company Standards is a good guidance in assisting with 

creation of the already in place scenario based training.   

4) NFPA 1401 Recommended Practice for Fire Service Training Reports and Records 

should also be to formulate their training record program.   

5) If Live Fire in an acquired structure is going to be performed, assure that training and 

education involving live firefighting exercises meet the standards specified 

in NFPA 1403.  This is found in SPS 330.07 (9).  The most difficult part of NPFA 1403 

to follow is the need for certified instructors, however, Platteville Fire Department has 

multiple certified fire instructors.   

Level of Service Prevention 

1) Adopt a local ordinance per the provisions in SPS 314.01(13) 7, allowing for the 

reduction of inspection in all inspectable buildings to once per calendar year in non-

overlapping 15-month periods.  

2) Formally include the fire department in the development review and final occupancy 

inspection process.  

3) Seek additional training for personnel conducting Public Fire Education Programs.  

4) Seek training and certification for personnel assigned to fire investigation.  

Level of Service EMS 

1) At this time of the report, it would not be recommended to increase to any level of EMS 

response whether it would be First Response or transport.   

2) Monitor community needs to assure level of service is being provided and possibly 

augment the EMS system with first response if call volume increases or there are peak 

times for demand that cannot be met.   The first response would only put medical 

trained personnel on scene until the arrival of an ambulance, not provide transport.  

 

Equipment and Vehicles 

1) Reduce the apparatus fleet by one engine company to right size the fleet for the 

protection area and to avoid costly repairs and maintenance on the 1995 engine.    

2) Ensure on the next ISO evaluation that the Rescue Company is properly credited as a 

service company.  

 

 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 45 

Appendix A   

WISCONSIN SPS 330 AUDIT CHECKLIST  

SPS 330.03 Fire Department Safety Position  

Policy: Yes  

a) Assignment: Captain Position, two others underneath  

b) Qualifications: No  

c) Authority: Yes  

d) Functions: Research any items issue, perform annual report for State  

Recommendations: Add safety to Captain job description  

SPS 330.05 Occupational Safety and Health Committee  

Policy:   

a) Established Occupational Safety and Health Committee: Yes  

b) Meet at Least biannually: Quarterly  

c) Written record of its meetings available to all firefighters in the department: 

Assure record of meeting  

Recommendations: Add some more people of different levels to the committee and 

assure written records are kept of the meetings.    

SPS 330.07 Training and Education  

1) Policy: No policy, have check list for competency    

a) Subject matter: Division Chief in Charge of Training  

b) Based on SOG’s: Training off the current guidelines.    

c) Attendance: Attendance records  

d) Records: Records of competencies  

SPS 330.08 Employment Standards   

Policy: Policy on each position  

a) Fire Fighter  

b) Pump Operator  

c) Aerial Operator  

d) Officer  

Recommendations: To have qualifications and expectations of each position.  List 

competencies from NFPA 1582.  

  

 

 



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 46 

 SPS 330.09 Vehicles  

Policies: Working on it  

a) Vehicle maintenance, inspection and repair _______  

b) Pump testing  

c) Aerial testing  

1. Records and checklist  

d) Vehicle Operations  

1. Valid Driver’s license  

2. Seat belts  

3. Safe and Prudent Operations Defined  

4. Hose loading  

Recommendations: Create a policy for items 1-4 and accordance of NFPA 1911 for 

inspections practices and frequency.    

SPS 330.10 Portable Equipment  

Policies: Working on policy and Target Solutions   

a) Maintenance, inspection and repair  

b) Maintain inventory records for equipment carried on each fire apparatus  

c) Maintain inventory records of equipment designed for training  

d) Inspect and service test all ladders  

e) Inspect and service test all fire hose  

f) Inspect and test all fire extinguishers  

Recommendations: Create a policy to identify inspection practices and frequency to 

align with practice.    

SPS 330.11 Protective Clothing and Equipment  

Policies: No policies  

a) Issued Equipment  

b) Required use  

c) Training in the care, use, inspection, maintenance and limitations  

d) Maintenance and Repair  

Recommendations:  Create a policy for items 1-4 above in accordance to NFPA??  

SPS 330.12 Self-contained breathing apparatus and PASS device   

Policies: No policy  

1. Issued equipment  

2. Required use  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 47 

a) Confined Space  

3. Respiratory protection program   

4. Training in care, use, inspection, maintenance and limitations  

5. Inspection maintenance and repair  

6. Air quality testing  

7. Cylinder testing  

8. Annual fit testing  

9. Annual flow testing  

10. A firefighter may not wear a beard or facial hair that comes in contact with a 

facepiece seal if the fire fighter’s duties require him/her to use a self-contained 

breathing apparatus.  If a fire fighter wears eyeglass, the fire fighter shall use 

frames that do not pass through the seal area of the facepiece.   

Recommendations: Policies should be reviewed to assure they meet the requirements 

of 1-10.  

SPS 330.13 Life safety ropes, harnesses and hardware; eye, face, and hearing 

protection Policies: Create a policy  

1. Use of life safety ropes, harnesses and hardware  

2. Use of class 1 life safety harnesses for fire fighter attachment to aerial devices  

3. Use of class 2 and class 3 life safety harnesses for fall arrest and rappelling 

operations   

4. Eye, face and hearing protection  

Recommendations: Create a policy for 1-4 above  

330.14 Emergency Operations  

1) Incident Management SOG’s   

a) Incident specific SOG’s that identify fire fighter roles and responsibilities 

relating to the safe of operations  

1. Structure fire, dwellings, apartments, commercial and industrial  

2. Vehicle fires  

3. Vehicle accidents  

4. CO incidents  

5. Gas Leaks  

6. Fuel Spills  

7. Haz-Mat  

8. Tech Rescue, confined space, water/ice, and trench 9. Downed wires  

10. EMS  

Recommendations: Create guidelines for 1-10  



Section 2 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Station Section 2 - 48 

1) Incident safety requirements  

a) Minimum personnel needed for operations (2 in two out)  

b) Operations with potential contact with motor vehicle traffic  

c) Back-Up Crew  

d) Back up line(s)  

e) Rapid Intervention Team/Crew  

f) Ambulance stand by  

Recommendations: Create guidelines for the Incident Safety Requirements.   

SPS 330.145 Facility Safety  

Policy: Create policy  

SPS 330.15 Physical and medical capabilities  

Policy: Policy  

a) Entry level physical  

b) Responsibility to report change in health  

SPS 330.16 Member assistance change in health  

a) Policy statement for fire fighter’s assistance referral program that identifies and 

assists fire fighters with alcohol or substance abuse, stress, and personnel 

problems adversely affecting their job performance.    

  

   

 



Section 3 

 

Existing Conditions  



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 1 

Architectural Existing Conditions 

General Observations 

The Platteville Fire Station was constructed in 

1963 with additions and alterations in 1985, 

1994, and 2015. Platteville boasts dynamic 

grade changes throughout the downtown 

area, yet this station is located on a relatively 

flat parcel of land at the corner of E. Main 

Street and Ellen Street. The remainder of the 

somewhat trapezoid-shaped city block has 

significant grade changes. The station was 

initially designed to support a volunteer staff.   

 

The facility is currently comprised of an 

apparatus bay, with bay doors on the north 

and eastern sides of the facility, with limited 

associated apparatus support spaces; a 

large training room, a day room, two offices, 

a small conference room, storage, and a 

kitchen.  

 

Site 

Located at the intersection of E. Main Street 

and Ellen Street, the site is landlocked and 

limited in size and accessibility (figure 2). The 

existing station is located along the northern 

and eastern most edges of the property with 

limited sized front apparatus apron exiting 

onto E. Main Street, and onto Ellen Street, 

driving over public sidewalks. A one-way 

parking lot wraps around the facility with 

limited parking available to the department.  

 

Due to space constraints in the apparatus 

bay, the department is required to house 

several vehicles in the already limited 

parking area. When volunteer members of 

the department arrive on-site for calls or for 

other events, many of the 50+ volunteers are 

required to park on nearby streets. During 

non-emergency events, off-site parking is not 

as much of a concern. However, during an 

emergency incident, having volunteers 

responding to the facility from multiple 

directions and distances is dangerous and 

negatively affects response times.   

 

In addition to the fire station, the small site 

also accommodates a small residential-

grade detached garage. This garage serves 

as storage for the department.  

 

Figure 1 

Figure 2 

Figure 3 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 2 

The site is comprised of concrete for the 

apparatus aprons and asphalt for the 

remaining parking areas. With the grade 

change from the apparatus bay floor to the 

adjacent Ellen Street, the eastern apparatus 

apron slopes down away from the facility for 

about 8’ to a trench drain, and then slopes 

back up to the sidewalk level, and down 

again to the roadway (figure 3). These grade 

changes are hard on both the apparatus and 

the concrete, with visible deterioration at the 

high points.  

 

The north concrete apron appears to 

primarily be in moderate condition with 

deterioration along saw cuts and minor 

scuffing from apparatus bottoming out.  

 

The remaining area of the parking lot is asphalt and is in poor condition, needing replacement.  

 

Exterior Envelope 

The exterior envelope of the Platteville Fire 

Station is a mixture of materials, depending on 

when it was constructed. The original facility was 

primarily built of CMU block walls with a brick 

veneer on the exterior (figure 5). Above the main 

door, plate glass was covered with redwood 

louvers and accent stone was installed next to 

the front entry and above the apparatus bay 

doors on Main Street.  

 

Serving as an awning over the front apparatus 

bay doors, the hollow core pre-cast floor system 

from the second level extends outside.  

 

In 1985, the second story was extended over the 

existing rear apparatus bay area, with CMU block 

walls wrapped in steel siding. At the same time, 

a new sloped metal roof was constructed to not 

only cover this new addition, but to also cover the 

existing roof which was originally constructed as 

a 4-ply built-up roof with rigid insulation below.  

Rain is directed off the roof through gutters on 

the north and south sides of the facility, with 

downspouts on the western side. Two 

downspouts are placed side-by-side to 

accommodate the load and are directed into 

underwater storm sewer connections.  

 

Also, in the 1985 addition, a metal staircase was 

installed to serve as a secondary exist out of the 

second floor of the facility.  

 

Figure 4 

Figure 5 

Figure 6 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 3 

Overall, the exterior of the facility is in average condition, being in need of general maintenance due 

to the age of the structure (figure 6). These items include:  

• Several brick needs replacing 

• Grout needs tuckpointing in certain locations 

• Sealants of the precast planks needs replacing 

• Exterior service doors show a significant amount of rusting and should be replaced 

• Steel lentils for overhead doors are rusting and should be investigated for structural integrity 

• Many of the overhead doors have damage to the bottom panels, which should be replaced 

• Metal panels are prone to leaking. Due to the age of their construction, all seals and gaskets 

should be replaced.  

• There is some settlement cracking that appears to be superficial, but further investigation 

should be considered. 

• The exterior stairwell has large amounts of rust, which should be investigated for structural 

integrity.  

 

Interior Conditions:  

Building Code and ADA Guidelines 

When evaluating facilities, we need to consider code/ADA, function, and physical condition.  

 

In general, this facility is not ADA compliant. Noncompliant issues include, but are not limited to: 

• It does not have an elevator 

• No compliant parking stalls 

• Approach to the front entryway is not compliant 

• Toilets are not proper height, do not have grab bars, do not have necessary clearance in stalls, 

or circulation 

• Bathroom sinks do not meet height, clearance and knee protection requirements 

• Many doors do not have required push-pull clearances 

• Kitchen serving counter, worksurfaces, and sink heights and clearances  

 

Additionally, building and energy codes have changed significantly since this facility was constructed. 

If this same facility were constructed as-is today, it would not meet standard building codes. Some 

examples are: 

• Non-complaint hand rails and landings on primary stair case 

• Fixture count on lower level 

• Exterior envelope construction, in terms of energy  

• There are no vestibules from exterior of facility into interior to help with climate control and 

energy usage. 

• Door hardware 

 

Due to the age of the facility, if renovated asbestos testing should be performed. Areas that could 

contain asbestos or mastic fibers include, but are not limited to: 

• Asbestos tile flooring 

• Insulation around piping and ductwork 

• Acoustic “popcorn” applied to ceilings 

• Glue behind mirrors 

• Grout in tile 

 

The facility does not meet current code requirements and ADA guidelines. The remainder of this 

section will focus on function and condition.  

  



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 4 

 

Interior Conditions:  

First Floor: Apparatus Bays and Support 

The apparatus bay features four sectional 

overhead doors on the front (north) side of 

the facility and two sectional overhead door 

on the eastern facade. The four apparatus 

doors on the front of the facility were 

originally all 12’-0” W x 10’-0” H. However, in 

1994 the fourth apparatus bay underwent a 

renovation which lowered/sloped the 

apparatus bay floor gaining 8” in order to 

accommodate the height of the ladder truck. 

With just 2’-0” between overhead doors, this 

height transition is ramped, however, this 

ramp is neither code or ADA compliant and is 

considered a hazard, especially in an 

emergency response situation.   

 

The eastern façade originally had two 

apparatus bay doors (10’Wx10’H) allowing 

access to Ellen Street and in 1985, a third 

(11-0’Wx10’-8”H) apparatus bay door was 

added. In 2015, two of these doors were 

removed and replaced with one large 22’- 0”Wx10’ - 

6”H door (figure 8). With the apparatus bay doors 

opening to the east and north, and a row of columns 

dividing the apparatus bay, the first floor of the 

station is primarily comprised of two apparatus bays, 

with back-in-only capabilities.  

  

In 1960, the minimum for vertical clearance for 

vehicles on interstate roadways was changed from 

14’-0” (which was instated in 1956) to be 16’-0”. 

This station being designed and constructed as that 

new federal rule was being updated, was designed 

for the smaller vehicles of the day, making the 10’-0” 

high doors acceptable. However, since the 1960’s, 

the heights of fire and EMS apparatus has grown, 

with many apparatuses now more than 11’-6” high.  

 

With the floor-to-floor height of 13’-0” between first 

and second floors and ceiling height in the apparatus 

bay on 12’-0” with beams dipping below that height, 

the facility cannot be renovated to accommodate an 

overhead door of more than 10’-6” high. Due to the 

height restrictions, the Platteville Fire Department is 

now required to have their apparatus made with 

custom designs to accommodate these limited 

overhead doors. Additionally, there is not enough room above each apparatus to provide staff the 

ability to clean and maintain items on the top of the apparatus or to lift the cab to allow for 

maintenance. Both of these opportunities are standard features in station design today.  

 

Figure 7 

Figure 8 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 5 

In addition to the floor-to-ceiling height deficiency, the 

overall size of the apparatus bay is inadequate. Currently 

nine apparatus are positioned like a jigsaw puzzle in the 

facility (figure 9). The space restrictions are to the point 

that arrows were placed on the floors to indicate the 

necessary tire locations so that the apparatus won’t hit 

another apparatus, and to allow the overhead doors to 

close without hitting the front apparatus. With many 

vehicles sitting two-deep in the apparatus bay, the staff 

often have to shuffle apparatus around prior to respond to 

emergencies. All of this creates hazardous conditions and 

extends response times.  

 

Dividing the apparatus bay is one single trench drain, to 

which all the floors slope. Best practice would have a 

trench drain running down the center of each apparatus 

bay allowing the moisture dripping off the apparatus to flow 

beneath the apparatus. In addition to reducing the slip 

hazard of people walking on wet surfaces, it also allows the 

apparatus to be on a more level surface. In the case of this 

sloping floor, all the apparatus that exit onto Ellen street 

are constantly leaning toward the drain, causing long-term 

stress on the vehicles chassis and tires.  

 

The apparatus bay is not equipped with a vehicle exhaust 

system. Vehicle exhaust systems can either be systems 

that are flexible ducting that attaches onto the tail pipes 

when vehicles enter into the bay, venting the contaminates 

directly outside, or systems that are mounted onto each 

apparatus, cleaning the air before entering the bay. These 

systems go above and beyond the building code required 

for air exchange ventilation systems and comply with NFPA 

standards.  

 

Along the south/back wall of the apparatus bays are three 

small rooms. Located next to a service door opening to the 

west parking area, is a small watch office and radio room. 

Traditionally this room is where volunteers will report when 

arriving at the station to learn about the incident, wait for 

deployment orders and review maps prior to departing 

(figure 10).  

 

Directly to the east is the station’s boiler room, followed by 

a room that was originally designed as the stations’ locker 

room (rm. 103, see appendix B for exiting plan), with a 

toilet room (rm. 104), and shower (rm. 105). Since the 

Figure 9 

Figure 10 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 6 

1960’s, personal protective equipment (PPE) 

and the personal decontamination (decon) 

recommendations have changed 

dramatically, resulting in an increased space 

requirement. The locker room is no longer 

large enough to store the departments PPE, 

and serves now as storage. The toilet room is 

used by all genders and the shower now 

stores the PPE extractor, making todays best 

practices for personal decon impossible. 

Directly outside this space, the department 

has a PPE dryer. Best practice after returning 

to the station allows a firefighter to clean 

their PPE, shower, and put their clothing into 

a residential washer within the “shower 

within an hour” recommendation.   

 

With the PPE displaced from the locker room, 

the PPE lockers line the perimeter of the apparatus bay (figure 11). Their location causes them to be 

exposed to harmful UV light which deteriorates PPE at an accelerated pace; they’re exposed and stored 

in a room with harmful carcinogens caused by the diesel trucks; and can lead to extended response 

times since individuals have to move through a very crowed apparatus bay to get to their PPE. Best 

practice would allow a department to clean their PPE, keep it clean (off the apparatus bay floor), and 

have limited exposure to UV light. Finally, this room should be sized so people can “dress out” while 

arriving at staggered intervals.  In a volunteer department, having this space near the primary 

volunteer entry and near the PPE storage will help minimize response times. 

 

 

The bay closest to the Watch Room generally houses the apparatus that is most often utilized, allowing 

the fastest response times.  For safety reasons, the Watch Room is also typically located at the front 

of the apparatus bay to have direct line of sight while apparatus are leaving the station. The location 

of the Watch Room in the Platteville Fire Station is at the back of the station. Though this is as centrally 

located as is possible due to the split nature of the apparatus bay, the amount of apparatus housed 

in this restricted facility forces staff to weave through and around apparatus to arrive at their apparatus 

assignment. This not only increases response time but is also increases risk of injury or death.  

 

A work room (rm. 108) was built adjacent to 

the stairs at some point after initial 

construction. It is undersized for the 

departments needs.  

 

The self-contained breathing apparatus 

(SCBA) clean/fill station is located on the bay 

floor, with contaminated air (figure 12). Since 

this station is used to clean and fill the SCBA 

equipment, its exposure to the carcinogens is 

not best practice and increases the safety 

risk to firefighters.  

 

Current best practice for fire stations divide 

the facility into what are referred to as hot 

and cold zones of contamination, with a 

transition/warm zone in between. These 

Figure 11 

Figure 12 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 7 

zones are compartmentalized and have 

mechanical systems with positive and 

negative pressured systems (air being forced 

from positively pressured spaces into 

negatively pressurized spaces) to keep the 

carcinogens and contaminates contained to 

specific open areas. Hot zones are thos e 

with a high level of contamination potential, 

including the apparatus bay, workshop, and 

any potential mezzanines. These spaces are 

negatively pressurized and are designed to 

have higher levels of fresh air intake into 

their mechanical systems. The 

transition/warm zone and all cold zones are 

positively pressurized. Transition zones 

include gear laundry, gear turnout, decon 

hallway(s), decon toilet/showers, SCBA 

cleaning, and clean/residential laundry. The 

cold zones are all the living and administration areas. The 

mechanical systems, in addition to the overall design and 

layout of this facility does not allow for the hot, cold and 

transition/warm zones (figure 13). 

 

Finally, the facility’s main entry is located just off the 

apparatus bay floor on the corner of Main and Ellen. To 

enter the station, visitors must ring the doorbell and wait 

outside to be permitted in. Since the occupiable spaces are 

upstairs, visitors must wait in the elements. Today, best 

practice is to allow visitors into a vestibule where a call box 

is located, so they are able to wait inside the facility. This 

vestibule can also serve as a safe-zone in urban areas 

where someone can retreat if threatened.  

 

The lobby is a simple room with access to the apparatus 

bays, a small historical apparatus, and the stairs to the 

second floor. Visitors have commented that this is an 

unwelcoming entryway. (figure 14) 

  

Figure 13 

Figure 14 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 8 

Interior Conditions 

Second Floor: Training and Administration 

The second floor of the facility provides the 

occupiable spaces for the department. They 

include the training room, a day/activity 

room, two small offices, a conference room, 

kitchen, toilet rooms, and storage areas. 

(figure 15) 

 

Located at the top of the primary staircase is 

the departments’ training room (rm. 204) 

(figure 16). This room is of adequate size and 

has good access to technology. However, 

being located directly off the primary entry, 

people accessing any other area of the 

second floor must pass through this room to 

reach their destination, including the toilet 

rooms. These items, as well as the ADA 

concerns render this training room 

unavailable to members of the community. 

Utilization of the training room by the 

community offers opportunities that are 

fiscally and personally beneficial for the 

department and the tax payers.  

 

A small mechanical room (rm. 202) is located 

just off the Training Room, housing the 

stations air conditioning unit. The door to this 

room is often left open to increase air 

circulation in the room since it does not 

appear to be adequately vented. The small 

room also holds a large refrigerator and 

serves as pantry storage. Ideally, these 

functions would take place in two separate 

rooms. The primary source of heat for this 

floor comes from hot water radiant heat 

piping, which runs below the floor on the 

ceiling of the apparatus bay. Though this 

equipment allows the apparatus bay to be 

heated, it often causes the second floor to be 

overheated, forcing occupants to open 

windows even in cold months.  

 

Adjacent to the mechanical room, the Fire Investigators (rm. 203) office is located just off the training 

room. This room has new carpet tile flooring and a fresh coat of paint. However, the room is undersized 

for this position, which requires review of full sets of building plans.  

 

Two multi-user toilet rooms (rm. 206 and 207) and the kitchen (rm. 205) are on the other side of the 

training room. The toilet rooms have vents that vent directly from the interior to the exterior. However, 

these vents stopped working years ago. Since that time, the toilet rooms are not vented, which is 

another code violation.  

 

Figure 15 

Figure 16 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 9 

The kitchen was recently updated and houses a large three-compartment sink and an eight-burner 

commercial stove. The kitchen is open to the training room and there is no way to separate each space. 

Many department members feel that a larger kitchen with a food prep area and buffet window to the 

training room would make the space more functional and efficient.  

 

The back half of the second floor includes the 

day/activity room (rm.208) (figure 17) 

Figure 18 

, storage (rm. 209), the chiefs office 

(rm.212), and the conference room (rm. 

211).  Typically, a day/activity room is often 

utilized as a gathering location in between 

training opportunities and before or after 

incidents.  While viewed occasionally as non-

essential by some, a day/recreational room 

for volunteer departments is critical for the 

opportunity to overcome the constant 

challenge of recruiting and retaining 

volunteers. In addition, this room (similar to a 

fitness room) provides an incentive for volunteers to be at the station to respond immediately to 

emergencies directly from the station. Thereby, reducing response times similarly to the way career 

departments respond without the community having to pay for additional career staff wages and 

benefits. The current day/recreational room is of adequate size but does not have the separation of 

space or furniture/equipment typically seen in a conventional day/recreational room.   

Cracks in the polished concrete floor were detected. They appear to be superficial, but further 

investigation should be considered if the station were to undergo a major renovation.  

 

The exercise room, being co-located in the open day room, is limited in size and equipment. 

A more robust exercise room would allow volunteers to be on-site more often and potentially provide 

the opportunity for use by City employees.  

 

The chief’s office is located in this section of 

the station (figure 19). Though it is right-

sized, it is not near the other full-time staff 

member (the fire investigator), is far away 

from the front entry, and is adjacent to a 

potentially loud day room. Directly next to the 

fire chief’s office is a conference room with 

seating for eight, with walls lined with 

storage.  

 

Lastly, two storage rooms are located in this 

section of the station; one for dress uniforms, 

and one for all other storage. These rooms 

are neatly organized but severely undersized 

for the departments current needs. In the 

larger storage room (rm. 209) a section of the 

room has been somewhat walled off with 

Figure 17 

Figure 19 



Platteville Fire Department 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN |  Platteville Fire Department Section 3 - 10 

furniture to create a second room. The smaller of the two (rm. 209A) holds the exhaust fan for the 

cooking range hood, a mop side, janitorial supplies, and the departments freezers.  

 

 



Section 4 

 

Space Needs Analysis



Space Needs Analysis 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 4 - 1 

FBD was hired to review the Platteville in terms of facility conditions, facility function and space needs 

of the department.  The space needs of the department will allow us to determine what size facility 

would be necessary if a new station were constructed.  

 

Care was taken during the programming session to determine the appropriate amount of square 

footage, while addressing all the needs and concerns of the various entities. FBD then prepared the 

following program statements, of which greater detail can be found in the appendix of this report.  

 

 

Platteville Fire Station– Space Needs Analysis 

 

Space Recommended 20-

Year Need 

Apparatus Bays 13,022 SF 

Apparatus Support 4,958 SF 

Training 4,428 SF 

Administration / Office 2,943 SF 

Living Quarters & Support 2,389 SF 

Infrastructure 4,161 SF 

Total New Construction 31,900 SF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These numbers indicate the maximum amount of square footage FBD feels the 

department needs based on the programming and discussion with the department. 

Following the conceptual plan phase, design would move into schematic plans, which 

would be refined after meetings with end users. The schematic design plans more 

closely align with the final square footage, which more often than not, decrease 

during that process.  

 

 

 



Section 5 

 

Conceptual Design 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 1 

Apparatus Needs: 

Prior to considering the existing location as a 

potential location for a new facility, it is 

important to understand the size 

requirements of a contemporary station. 

Figure 1 is a potential layout of an apparatus 

bay featuring the departments current 

apparatus with proper clearances around 

each vehicle. With the number of apparatus 

currently housed, PFD would be required to 

have a minimum of six apparatus bays. Even 

with these six bays, they will still be required 

to have several bays with two or three 

apparatus in each. In order to plan for the 

future, our concepts were created with eight 

apparatus bays.  

 

Contemporary bays typically have 14’ wide 

doors and 3’ to 4’ between each door to allow 

for proper controls and notification systems. 

This space allows for ample room between apparatus for staff to open doors, perform general 

maintenance, and move through the space without any issues. The last bay has at least 5’ from the 

bay door to the exterior wall, which allows space for the exterior wall to be used for storage needs; still 

allowing the ability to access the apparatus.  

 

Ideally, directly in front of and behind the apparatus bays, concrete aprons are provided that extend 

70’ to 80’ from the facility. This allows departments to park their apparatus on the aprons without 

impeding pedestrian traffic and allows for turn radius requirements for many of the apparatus, when 

drive-through bays are not available.  

 

 

Current Location: 

The current location for the PFD Station in 

downtown Platteville is limited in size. In 

order to accommodate a right-sized station 

for the department, the new apparatus 

would consume nearly the entire lot. The 

front apron would only be able to be 45’ in 

length, and the station would not have drive-

through capabilities. Figure 2 shows the 

eight apparatus bays in blue with concrete 

areas in gray. In addition to the apparatus 

bays, the ground level would need to have 

space for a Watch Room, Gear Locker Room 

(PPE), SCBA clean/fill station, a workshop, 

personal decon zone, stairs to the upper 

levels, and an elevator. These areas are not 

shown on this plan at this time. However, if 

these spaces are added, they would 

consume the entire site, requiring additional 

Figure 1 

Figure 2 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 2 

property to accommodate drive-through bays, on-site parking, and stormwater management. All 

other occupiable space would be provided on additional stories, creating a three- or four-story 

facility.  

 

Additionally, if a new station were to be constructed here, the existing structure would have to be 

razed prior to construction of the new facility, forcing temporary relocation. This renovation would 

take between ten months and a year to complete.  

 

Due to all of these challenges, further development of this concept was not pursued.  

  



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 3 

Lewis Street: 

In an effort to provide the best response 

times, two entrances were created for this 

concept; one for volunteers responding to a 

call, and one open to the public. Located on 

the north side, firefighters would respond and 

park in a dedicated parking lot. They would 

then enter the facility through a vestibule 

leading directly into the Watch Room. Once at 

the station firefighters have immediate 

access to the Gear Lockers (PPE) where they 

will don their PPE, and head to their assigned 

apparatus. The response apron would be 

approximately 75’ long, existing onto Lewis 

Street.  

 

When returning from a call, firefighters would 

proceed down the hallway off the apparatus 

bay to begin personal decon in the Gear 

Laundry Room, transition through the Decon 

Hall to Showers, and finally through the 

Residential Laundry and back to the entryway 

(decon area shown in red). From this 

location, firefighters can either exit the facility 

to return to their vehicles, or head upstairs to 

the staff support areas.  

 

Located off the apparatus bays, are 

additional support services including a work 

room and the SCBA clean and fill station.  

 

On the south side of the station, a return 

apparatus apron would be provided as well 

as the main public parking and entry. After 

entering through a vestibule, visitors would 

enter a “community area” space with a large 

and welcoming lobby.  

 

Off the lobby will be access to the administration zone, the training 

room (with associated kitchen and storage), two toilet rooms, the 

training/hose tower and the apparatus bay. Visitor entry to these 

spaces would be controlled with a keycard access system.  

 

The administration area (shown in yellow) features offices for the Fire 

Chief, the Fire Investigator, and an administrative assistant,  and 

spaces for captains. There is also storage, a large and a small 

conference room, and a workroom.  

 

The living quarters (shown in green) are located on the second level 

of the facility providing a clear distinction between the two. (figure 5) 

A day room is sized to accommodate recreational and living room 

furniture. Additional spaces on the second floor include, a kitchen; 

dining room; three individual, all-gender toilet-shower rooms; eight 

Figure 3 

Figure 4 

Figure 5 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 4 

private dorm rooms; an exercise room; and a mechanical mezzanine.  The location of the kitchen, 

dining, exercise room, and dorms have all been configured to share a straight hallway, leading to the 

volunteer stairs and fire pole which both enter into the Watch Room. This layout minimizes turns and 

maximizes direct access to response vehicles.  

 

The stair near the visitor’s entry would be a multi-use space. This stair will allow the department to 

hang dry their hose after an incident; serve as a training tool with rappelling stations, a functionable 

standpipe, confined space training; and will provide the code required second access to the second 

floor. The location of this training/hose tower is just off the main entry and the return apron. Being on 

the return apron will provide a convenient training area if a call were to come in during a training 

session. Additionally, the public will be able to observe the department training as they access the 

facility.  

 

A basement would be considered as an alternate bid to accommodate 

additional program areas (figure 6). These spaces would include additional 

classroom space for the local technical college, storage for their additional 

uniforms and PPE, scenario training spaces, and toilet rooms. This space 

could also be designed as a storm shelter for the department and local 

community members.  

 

The mechanical system throughout is configured with positive ventilation 

pressure in all cold and transition zones of the facility, with the apparatus bays 

having negative pressure. Coupling this with the vehicle exhaust capture 

system and additional exhaust/fresh air exchange system utilized in the bay, 

contaminated air from the bays is prevented from entering and being 

recirculated throughout the remainder of the facility.  

 

In order to construct this facility, the existing structure on the property would 

have to razed and consideration will be given to the overall layout to 

accommodate the grade transitions. This site however, provides area for additional future bays to 

the west; has room to accommodate potential training props; has ample parking area for visitors and 

volunteers; and creates safe pedestrian and vehicular circulation throughout the site. 

 

  

Figure 6 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 5 

Water Street: 

Similar to the concept for Lewis Street, two 

entrances were created for this concept; one 

for volunteers responding to a call, and one 

open to the public. Located on the southeast 

side, firefighters would respond and park in a 

dedicated parking lot located just across the 

return apparatus apron. They would then 

enter the facility through a vestibule leading 

directly into the Watch Room. After receiving 

their orders, firefighters have immediate 

access to the Gear Lockers (PPE) where they 

will don their PPE, and head to their assigned 

apparatus. The response apron would be 

approximately 45’ long, exiting onto Water 

Street, near the Lewis Street intersection. 

This site would only allow the department to 

have six apparatus bays.  

 

When returning from a call, firefighters would 

proceed down the hallway off the apparatus 

bay to begin personal decon in the Gear 

Laundry Room, transition through the Decon 

Hall to Showers, and finally through the 

Residential Laundry and back to the entryway 

(decon area shown in red). From this 

location, firefighters can either exit the 

facility to return to their vehicles, or head 

upstairs to the staff support areas.  

 

Located off the apparatus bay are additional 

support services including a work room and 

the SCBA clean and fill station.  

 

On the south side of the station is the return 

apparatus apron.  

 

Due to the configuration of this site, visitors 

would likely park on the nearby streets, 

entering into the main entrance on the 

southwest side of the facility. After entering 

through a vestibule, visitors would enter a 

“community area” space with a large and 

welcoming lobby.  

 

Off the lobby will be access to the 

administration area, stairs, an elevator and 

the apparatus bay. Visitor entry to these 

spaces would be controlled with a keycard 

access system. 

 

Figure 7 

Figure 8 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 6 

The administration area (shown in yellow) features offices for the Fire Chief, the Fire Investegator, an 

administrative assistant, and space for captains. There is also storage, a large and a small conference 

room, and a workroom.  

 

 

The second level would be a continuation of 

the community area (shown in purple) with 

access to the training room, with associated 

kitchen and storage, exercise room, and two 

toilet rooms (figure 9). A mezzanine space 

will open up to the apparatus bay to provide 

additional storage. The remaining space on 

this floor could be used for storage, or future 

program use.  

 

The living quarters (shown in green) are 

located on the third level of the facility 

providing a clear distinction between the 

community, administration, and living areas 

(figure 10). A day room is sized to 

accommodate recreational and living room 

furniture. Additional spaces on the second 

floor include, a kitchen; dining room; three 

individual, all-gender toilet-shower rooms; 

eight private dorm rooms; an exercise room; 

and a mechanical space.  The location of the 

kitchen, dining, exercise room, and dorms 

have all been configured to share a hallway, 

leading to the volunteer stairs accessing the 

Watch Room or the primary stairs accessing 

the apparatus bays. This layout minimizes 

turns and maximizes direct access to 

response vehicles.  

 

The stair near the volunteer’s entry would be a multi-use space. This stair will allow the department to 

hang dry their hose after an incident; serve as a training tool with rappelling stations, a functionable 

standpipe, confined space training; and will provide the code required second access to the second 

floor. The location of this tower is not ideal but does provide adequate access and utilization. Its 

location does allow the public to observe the training as they walk or drive by the station.  

 

The mechanical system throughout is configured with positive ventilation pressure in all cold and 

transition zones of the facility, with the apparatus bays having negative pressure. Coupling this with 

the vehicle exhaust capture system and additional exhaust/fresh air exchange system utilized in the 

bay, contaminated air from the bays is prevented from entering and being recirculated throughout the 

remainder of the facility.  

 

In order to construct this facility, the existing structure on the property would have to be razed and 

consideration will need to be given to the overall layout to accommodate the grade transitions 

further to the east. With the current site as is, future expansion is not possible and the response 

apron would only be 45’ long. Additionally, though the site is large, it’s complex shape will make for 

challenging and limited parking opportunities. Any parking on the site will force pedestrians to walk 

across the return apron.  

 

Figure 9 

Figure 10 



Conceptual Design 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 5 - 7 

If the city were able to purchase additional adjoining sites, the overall concept for this plan would be 

reconsidered and be more desirable. Ideally, aligning the response apron with the Water and Lewis 

street intersection and installing new traffic signals would allow for a safe and expeditious response 

to emergencies. Additional space could also allow for on-site parking for visitors and safer on-site 

parking for volunteers.  



Section 6 

 

Probable Costs



Probable Costs 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Platteville Fire Department Section 6 - 1 

Probable cost for each concept is developed by calculating square foot cost. Low and high ranges are 

established due to the various building materials that the new structure could be. The range is 

established using costs from Engineering New Record (a national construction cost source) and Five 

Bugles Designs historical cost data base. It should be assumed that the final construction cost will fall 

between the low and high range. Once a concept is selected and building material expectations are 

defined, a final budget will be provided before moving forward. It should be noted that with the various 

options; base plan, alternate plans, unknown site conditions, material costs, inflation, potential 

demolition costs, etc., estimates will fluctuate.  

 

 

Lewis Street Concept 

 

 Low  High Alternate 
New Construction $6,996,375 $8,551,125 $1,951,250 

Other Costs (FF&E, Technology, Contingencies, Soft Costs) $1,768,384 $2,197,691 $331,713 

Total  $8,764,759 $10,748,816 $2,282,963 

Total w Alternate $11,047,721 $13,031,779  

 

Water Street Concept* 

 

 Low  High 
New Construction $6,455,250 $7,889,750 

Other Costs (FF&E, Technology, Contingencies, Soft Costs) $1,476,393 $2,035,258 

Total $8,031,643 $9,825,008 

 

 

*Site will only allow for six apparatus bays.  

 

Notes: 

 

1. Due to the plans being on a conceptual level at this point, with many open-ended questions, it 

is important to note that the estimate includes 10% of contingency. When it is decided to move 

forward, estimates will be refined at the schematic level and a final budget will be set.  

2. Estimates of probable cost are based on 2020 construction costs. Inflationary costs should be 

added for each year the project is delayed beyond that.  

3. Many departments see an average square footage reduction of 20% between conceptual and 

final design.  



Appendix A 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Response Maps 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Platteville Fire Department Command Structure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Fire Chief
Ryan Simmons

Deputy Chief
Casey Pickel

Division Chief     
Training

Tom Covert

Captain Training
Jason Fiedler

Lieutenant     
Training

Ed Averkamp

Lieutenant     
Training

Mike Chase

Lieutenant 
Training

Chris Boigenzahn

Division Chief 
Apparatus

Kurt Tuescher

Captain Apparatus
Al Woolford

Lieutenant 
Apparatus

Mike Bartelme

Lieutenant 
Apparatus
Andy Barth

Lieutenant 
Apparatus

Chris Hintze

PIO
Captain Safety
Wayne Abing



Lima

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

WILDCAT RD

SA
N

D
H

IL
L 

R
D

BR
O

M
LE

Y 
R

D

TURNBULL RD

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
D PENIEL RD

G

X

B

XX

151

IP
SW

IT
C

H
 R

D

W MOUND RD

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

COLLEGE FARM RD

JERICHO RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

HICKORY DRIVE RD

FI
EL

D
 D

R
IV

E 
R

D

SU
N

N
YD

AL
E 

R
D

MOUND VIEW RD

SA
ND H

ILL
 R

D

TU
R

N
BU

LL
 R

D

BO
NNER

 RD

AB
IN

G
 L

N

BO
C

KH
O

P 
LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

FLOGEL LN

151

W
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

C
TY

 D

HWY 81

H
W

Y 
80

CTY B

HWY 151

REXS

WATERFALL

MAIN

HWY 80/81

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

CTY O

COLLEGE FARM

CONDRY

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

C
R

O
SS

C
U

T

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

CTY XX

PI
N

E

BAKER FORD

BU
ZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

C
AN

N
O

N

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

M
O

C
KI

N
G

BI
R

D

WALNUT DELL

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

RICHTER

R
U

N
D

E

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

N
O

R
TH

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

UNION CHURCH

BUCKWHEAT RIDGE

STUB

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

UNION

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION

MAPLE GLEN

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

BU
N

KE
R

 H
IL

L

GRANT

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

TRAVIS

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

FA
W

N

H
AT

H
AW

AY

EL
M

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

RIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

HARLEY

CTY B

SHORT

HW
Y 

15
1

EVERGREEN

C
TY

 D

CT
Y 

O

Fire Station

Membership

Township

Road

 Section (Area of Interest)

Membership

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
11/23/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

HWY 81

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

C
TY

 D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

REXS

AIRPORT

MAIN

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

STAN
TO

N

BA
N

N
ER

PATCH

COLLEGE FARM

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

CLIFF

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N
BAKER FORD

CTY XX

PI
N

E

C
H

U
R

C
H

BUZZ

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

NORTH

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

BLUFF

RAM
P

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

DEBUHR

UNION

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN
VISION

MAPLE GLEN R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

BU
N

KE
R

 H
IL

L

GRANT

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

GREENWOOD

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

JEWETT
C

ED
AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

KA
BE

LE

SN
O

W
Y

DEER RIDGE

FA
W

N

EL
M

ALDEN

KNOLLWOOD

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

FOX RIDGERIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

MASON

ENTERPRISE

JACKSON

BI
G

 J
AC

K

VO
IG

H
TS

BRITISH

EVERGREEN

N
O

R
TH

HW
Y 

15
1

CTY D

RAMP

SHORT

CTY B

FireStation

1.5 miles

5 miles

1.5 miles

5 miles

ROADS

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Distance-Based Fire Response

±

0 1 2
Miles By Public Administration Associates LLC 

11/10/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

HWY 81

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

C
TY

 D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

REXS

AIRPORT

MAIN

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

STAN
TO

N

BA
N

N
ER

PATCH

COLLEGE FARM

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

CLIFF

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N
BAKER FORD

CTY XX

PI
N

E

C
H

U
R

C
H

BUZZ

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

NORTH

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

BLUFF

RAM
P

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

DEBUHR

UNION

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN
VISION

MAPLE GLEN R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

BU
N

KE
R

 H
IL

L

GRANT

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

GREENWOOD

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

JEWETT
C

ED
AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

KA
BE

LE

SN
O

W
Y

DEER RIDGE

FA
W

N

EL
M

ALDEN

KNOLLWOOD

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

FOX RIDGERIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

MASON

ENTERPRISE

JACKSON

BI
G

 J
AC

K

VO
IG

H
TS

BRITISH

EVERGREEN

N
O

R
TH

HW
Y 

15
1

CTY D

RAMP

SHORT

CTY B

FireStation

1.5 miles

5 miles

1.5 miles

5 miles

ROADS

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Distance-Based Fire Response

±

0 1 2
Miles By Public Administration Associates LLC 

11/10/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont
Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

C
TY

 D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

ST
AN

TO
N

REXS

AIRPORT

PATCH

MAIN

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

COLLEGE FARM

CLIFF

BAKER FORD

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

HWY 81

C
H

U
R

C
H

CTY XX

PI
N

E

BUZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

WILLOW BRANCH

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

M
AJ

O
R

CROSSCUT

NORTH

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

BLUFF

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

CANNON

DEBUHR

UNION

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

KROENING

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION

MAPLE GLEN

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

TRAVIS

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

GRANT

PLATTE

SE
VE

N
TH

WALNUT

BAKER

QUARRY

PI
O

N
EE

R

BLOCKHOUSE

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

DEER RIDGE

FA
W

N

H
AT

H
AW

AY

EL
M

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE
RIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

ENTERPRISE

HWY 81

SHORT

CTY D

CTY B

STAN
TO

N

HW
Y 15

1

N
O

R
TH

AIRPORT

CT
H

 X

C
TH

 G

STH 81

CTH XX

CTH B

W MOUND RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

CENTER DRIVE RD

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

JERICHO RD

COLLEGE FARM RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

USH 151

HICKORY DRIVE RD

FI
EL

D
 D

R
IV

E 
R

D

MUD LN

EVERGREEN RD

BE
N

TL
EY

 L
N

SC
H

R
O

ED
ER

 L
N

JENKINS LN

BO
C

KH
O

P 
LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

FLOGEL LNW
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

Fire Station

1.5 miles

5 miles

1.5 miles

5 miles

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

1.5 and 5-Mile Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station at 155 West Lewis St

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
12/13/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

HWY 81

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

CTY D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

REXS

AIRPORT

MAIN

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

PATCH

COLLEGE FARM

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

CLIFF

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

CTY XX

PI
N

E

BAKER FORD

BUZZ

C
H

U
R

C
H

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW
SA

N
D

 H
IL

L

OLD LANCASTER

NORTH

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

CROSSCUT

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

BLUFF

RAMP

BADLAND

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

DEBUHR

UNION

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION

MAPLE GLEN

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

KROENING

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

TRAVIS

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

GRANT

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

GREENWOOD

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

JEWETT

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

DEER RIDGE

FA
W

N

EL
M

KNOLLWOOD

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE
RIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

MASON

ENTERPRISE

HARLEY

BI
G

 J
AC

K

EVERGREEN

HW
Y 

15
1

N
O

R
TH

RAMP

SHORT

CTY B

C
TY D

CT
H

 X

C
TH

 G

CTH XX

CTH B

W MOUND RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

CENTER DRIVE RD

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

IP
SW

IT
C

H
 R

D

STH 81

JERICHO RD

COLLEGE FARM RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

USH 151

FI
EL

D
 D

R
IV

E 
R

D

SU
N

N
YD

AL
E 

R
D

MUD LN

BE
N

TL
EY

 L
N

SC
H

R
O

ED
ER

 L
N

JENKINS LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

FLOGEL LNW
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

Fire Station

1.5 miles

5 miles

1.5 miles

5 miles

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Distance-Based Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station (475 North Water St)

±

0 1 2
Miles By Public Administration Associates LLC 

12/13/2020



Lima

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

BR
O

M
LE

Y 
R

D

SA
N

D
H

IL
L 

R
D

TURNBULL RD

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
D

G

X

B

XX

151

IP
SW

IT
C

H
 R

D

W MOUND RD

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

COLLEGE FARM RD

JERICHO RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

HICKORY DRIVE RD

FI
EL

D
 D

R
IV

E 
R

D

SU
N

N
YD

AL
E 

R
D

MOUND VIEW RD

SA
ND H

ILL
 R

D

TU
R

N
BU

LL
 R

D

AB
IN

G
 L

N

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

FLOGEL LN

151

W
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

HWY 81

H
W

Y 
80

CTY B

HWY 151

REXS

C
TY

 D

WATERFALL

MAIN

HWY 80/81

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

C
TY

 O

STAN
TO

N

BA
N

N
ER

COLLEGE FARM

CONDRY

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

C
R

O
SS

C
U

T

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

BAKER FORD

CTY XX

PI
N

E

BU
ZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

C
AN

N
O

N

WALNUT DELL

BUTSON

M
O

C
KI

N
G

BI
R

D

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

RICHTER

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

N
O

R
TH

RAWSON

MEANS

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUCKWHEAT RIDGE

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

UNION CHURCH

STUB

UNION

R
U

N
D

E

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

KROENING

VISION

MAPLE GLEN

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

GRANT

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

FA
W

N

H
AT

H
AW

AY

EL
M

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

RIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

C
TY

 D

SHORT

HW
Y 

15
1

EVERGREEN

CTY B

CTY O

Fire Station

Membership

Township

1.5 miles

5 miles

1.5 miles

5 miles

Road

 Section (Area of Interest)

Membership
on 

Distance-Based Response

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
11/23/2020



Platteville

HWY 151

CTY BHW
Y 81

MAIN

COLLEGE FARM

HWY 80/81

H
W

Y 
80

WALNUT DELL

CTY XX

W
AT

ER

STUMPTOWN
BUSINESS HWY 151

PINE

C
TY

 D

MINERAL

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

OLD LANCASTER

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

SE
C

O
N

D

FO
U

RT
H

EVERGREEN

MITCHELL HOLLOW

RIDGE

SH
AD

Y

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

MEANS

BROADWAY

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

UNION DEWEY

M
AJ

O
R

MAPLE RIDGE

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

VALLEY

PITT

C
O

U
R

T

PINE GROVE

VISION

LEWIS

M
AP

LE
 G

LE
N

R
ED

D
Y

C
O

D
Y

GRANT

EL
LE

N

SE
VE

N
TH

LANCASTER

EI
G

H
TH

FURNACE

PI
O

N
EE

R

IP
SW

IT
CH

ADAMS

BA
N

N
ER

KEYSTONE

KASE
ELMER

GREENWOOD

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

M
AY

JEWETT

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

PY
R

IT
E

R
O

U
N

TR
EE

FA
W

N
LI

LL
Y

EA
ST

M
AN

EL
M

N
O

R
TH

 S
EC

O
N

D

G
O

LF

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

IN
SI

G
H

T

CAMP

SI
EM

ER
S

LO
N

G
H

O
R

N

IO
KA

 R
ID

G
E

ST
AL

EY

FO
X 

RI
DG

E

WOODLAND

M
AR

KE
E

FI
FT

H

PERRY
PH

ILLIPS

HEATHER

H
O

LL
M

AN

ENTERPRISE

SYLVIA

KA
R

LA

HARLEY

AN
N EILA

IRENE

FAIRFIELD

AM
AR

SI
C

KL
E

BI
G

 J
AC

K

ST
R

AW

BRITISH

MAPLE

M
O

O
NL

IG
HT

C
EN

TE
R

RIVER VALLEY

H
IL

LS
ID

E

HEER

BIARRITZ

STANS

KA
M

LA

JO
H

N
D

EL

RAMP

C
TY

 D

HWY 151

CAMP

VISIO
N

W
AT

ER

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BLO
C

KH
O

U
SE

MADISON

CTY B

Fire Station

5 minutes

5 minutes

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Five-Minute Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station at 155 West Lewis St

±

0 0.5 1
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
12/13/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont
Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

C
TY

 D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

AIRPORT

ST
AN

TO
N

REXS

O
AK

PATCH

MAIN

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

CLIFF

BAKER FORD

CANNON

COLLEGE FARM

PRAIRIEROCK

C
H

U
R

C
H

CONDRY

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

C
R

O
SS

C
U

T

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

STUMPTOWN

HWY 81

WILLOW BRANCH

CTY XX

PI
N

E
BUZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

PLATTE

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

M
AJ

O
R

QUARRY

NORTH

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

M
O

C
KI

N
G

BI
R

D

BLUFF

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

RAWSON

MEANS

SCHUSTER

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

DEBUHR

UNION

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

KROENING

CL
AS

SI
C

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION
R

ED
D

Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

LO
EF

FE
LH

O
LZ

TRAVIS

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

GRANT

SE
VE

N
TH

WALNUT

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

ELLEN
BO

R
O

AN
G

EL

BLOCKHOUSE

GREENWOOD

JE
W

EL
L

RYAN

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

PROGRESSIVE

DEER RIDGE

BELL

FA
W

N

EL
M

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

RIDGE

FI
FT

H

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

EL
M

ER
S

HWY 81
N

O
R

TH

CTY B

PLATTE

H
W

Y 
80

HW
Y 15

1

C
TY

 D

RAMP

SHADY

ST
AN

TO
N

C
TH

 G

CT
H

 X

STH 81

CTH XX

CTH B

W MOUND RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

CENTER DRIVE RD

JERICHO RD

USH 151

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

MINE RD

COLLEGE FARM RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

CT
H

 H

HICKORY DRIVE RD

E MOUND RD

TU
R

N
BU

LL
 R

D

MUD LN

SA
ND H

ILL
 R

D

JENKINS LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

S 
M

O
U

N
D

 A
V

W
AL

N
U

T 
ST

FLOGEL LNW
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

USH 151

Fire Station

10 minute

10 minute

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Ten-Minute Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station at 155 West Lewis St

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
12/13/2020



Platteville

CTY BHW
Y 81

MAIN

COLLEGE FARM

H
W

Y 
80

CTY XX

C
TY D

WALNUT DELL

W
AT

ER

BUSINESS HWY 151

SH
AD

Y

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

STUMPTOWN

PINE MINERAL

HWY 151

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D

FO
U

RT
H

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

RIDGE

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

MEANS

BROADWAY
C

H
ES

TN
U

T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

UNION DEWEY

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

VALLEY

HWY 80/81

PITT

C
O

U
R

T

MAPLE RIDGE

EVERGREEN

BA
N

N
ER

VISION

LEWIS

M
AP

LE
 G

LE
N

R
ED

D
Y

M
AJ

O
R

C
O

D
Y

PINE GROVE

GRANT

EL
LE

N

SE
VE

N
TH

LANCASTER

IP
SW

IT
C

H

EI
G

H
TH

FURNACE

PI
O

N
EE

R

ADAMS

KEYSTONE

KASE
ELMER

GREENWOOD

M
AY

JEWETT

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

PY
R

IT
E

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

R
O

U
N

TR
EE

FA
W

N
LI

LL
Y

EA
ST

M
AN

EL
M

N
O

R
TH

 S
EC

O
N

D

G
O

LF

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

IN
SI

G
H

T

CAMP

SI
EM

ER
S

LO
N

G
H

O
R

N

IO
KA

 R
ID

G
E

ST
AL

EY

FO
X 

RI
DG

E

WOODLAND

PERRY
PH

ILLIPS

H
O

LL
M

AN SYLVIA

KA
R

LA

AN
N

BLO
C

KH
O

U
SE

EILA
IRENE

FAIRFIELD

HARLEY

AM
AR

MONROE

BI
G

 J
AC

K

BRITISH

MAPLE

M
O

O
NL

IG
HT

C
EN

TE
R

RIVER VALLEY

NORTH LINE

HEER

BIARRITZ

KA
M

LA

JO
H

N
D

EL

C
TY

 D

HWY 151

CTY B

RAMP

CAMP

C
O

U
R

T

EVERGREEN

W
AT

ER

VISIO
N

MADISON

W
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

IP
SW

IT
C

H
 R

D

C
TH

 B

Fire Station

5 minutes

5 minutes

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Five-Minute Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station at 475 North Water St

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
12/13/2020



Lima

Smelser

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

Elk Grove

CTY O

H
W

Y 
80

C
TY

 D

CTY B

HWY 151

H
W

Y 
80

/8
1

AIRPORT

REXS

O
AK

PATCH

MAIN

ST
AN

TO
N

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

CLIFF

COLLEGE FARM

BAKER FORD

C
H

U
R

C
H

ROCK

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

CONDRY

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

C
R

O
SS

C
U

T

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

HWY 81

CANNON

CTY XX

WILLOW BRANCH

PI
N

E

BUZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

WALNUT DELL

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

M
AJ

O
R

NORTH

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D

CENTER DRIVE

RICHTER

BLUFF

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

M
O

C
KI

N
G

BI
R

D

RAWSON

MEANS

PLATTE

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

DEBUHR

QUARRY

UNION

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

KROENING

CL
AS

SI
C

SCHUSTER

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

TRAVIS

TIMBER

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

VETERANS MEMORIAL

GRANT

LO
EF

FE
LH

O
LZ

SE
VE

N
TH

WALNUT

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

AN
G

EL

BLOCKHOUSE

GREENWOOD

RYAN

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

DEER RIDGE

FA
W

N

EL
M

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE
RIDGE

FI
FT

H

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

EL
M

ER
S

CANNON

HWY 81

HWY 151

RAMP

CTY B

N
O

R
TH

C
TY

 D

ST
AN

TO
N

EVERGREEN

C
TH

 G

CT
H

 X

STH 81

CTH XX

CTH B

W MOUND RD

CENTER DRIVE RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

JERICHO RD

USH 151
MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

COLLEGE FARM RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

MINE RD

HICKORY DRIVE RD

CT
H

 H

E MOUND RD

TU
R

N
BU

LL
 R

D

MUD LN

SA
ND H

ILL
 R

D

JENKINS LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

S 
M

O
U

N
D

 A
V

W
AL

N
U

T 
ST

FLOGEL LN

USH 151

W
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

Fire Station

10 minutes

10 minute

Road

Township

 Section (Area of Interest)

Ten-Minute Fire Response for Alternative Fire Station at 475 North Water St

±

0 2 4
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
12/13/2020



Lima

Belmont

Harrison

Ellenboro

Platteville

WILDCAT RD

SA
N

D
H

IL
L 

R
D

BR
O

M
LE

Y 
R

D

TURNBULL RD

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
D PENIEL RD

G

X

B

XX

151

IP
SW

IT
C

H
 R

D

W MOUND RD

MITCHELL HOLLOW RD

SA
LE

 B
AR

N
 R

D

COLLEGE FARM RD

JERICHO RD

H
EI

N
S 

R
D

PINE TREE RD

HICKORY DRIVE RD

FI
EL

D
 D

R
IV

E 
R

D

SU
N

N
YD

AL
E 

R
D

MOUND VIEW RD

SA
ND H

ILL
 R

D

TU
R

N
BU

LL
 R

D

BO
NNER

 RD

AB
IN

G
 L

N

BO
C

KH
O

P 
LN

LUDLUM LN

STONEY LN

FLOGEL LN

151

W
 M

O
U

N
D

 R
D

C
TY

 D

HWY 81

H
W

Y 
80

CTY B

HWY 151

REXS

WATERFALL

MAIN

HWY 80/81

MAPLE RIDGE

W
H

IG

BA
N

N
ER

CTY O

COLLEGE FARM

CONDRY

H
AR

R
IS

O
N

C
R

O
SS

C
U

T

SA
N

D
 H

IL
L

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L

ST
U

M
PT

O
W

N

CTY XX

PI
N

E

BAKER FORD

BU
ZZ

BU
N

KE
R

 R
ID

G
E

C
AN

N
O

N

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T

BADLAND

M
O

C
KI

N
G

BI
R

D

WALNUT DELL

BUTSON

W
AT

ER

SH
AD

Y

IP
SW

IT
CH

M
O

U
N

D
 V

IE
W

M
O

R
R

IS

BUSINESS HWY 151

WILLOW BRANCH

M
AJ

O
R

MINERAL

MITCHELL HOLLOW

OLD LANCASTER

SE
C

O
N

D
FO

U
R

TH

RICHTER

R
U

N
D

E

RAMP

MADISON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

N
O

R
TH

RAWSON

MEANS

PINE GROVE

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

EA
ST

 S
ID

E

UNION CHURCH

BUCKWHEAT RIDGE

STUB

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

UNION

JENTZ BAKER

H
AZ

EL
 D

EL
L

CL
AS

SI
C

PITT

EVERGREEN

DUTCHES

VISION

MAPLE GLEN

R
ED

D
Y

PI
C

KE
L

SAM AND DAN

C
O

D
Y

SHORT

SPLINTER

BEAG
LE

BU
N

KE
R

 H
IL

L

GRANT

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

TRAVIS

SE
VE

N
TH

BAKER

PI
O

N
EE

R

BL
O

C
KH

O
U

SE

H
AR

R
ISO

N
 N

O
R

TH

C
ED

AR

JA
Y

PROGRESSIVE

FA
W

N

H
AT

H
AW

AY

EL
M

KNOLLWOOD

C
O

LL
EG

E

CAMP

IO
KA

 R
ID

GE

RIDGE

HIDDEN

PLEASANT HILL

HARLEY

CTY B

SHORT

HW
Y 

15
1

EVERGREEN

C
TY

 D

CT
Y 

O

Fire Station

Membership

Township

5 minutes

10 minutes

15 minutes

5 minutes

10 minutes

15 minutes

Road

 Section (Area of Interest)

Membership
on 

Time-Based Response

±

0 1 2
Miles

By Public Administration Associates LLC 
11/23/2020



Appendix B 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Existing Building Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



4
3

' 
- 

0
"

3
9

' 
- 

0
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

6
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

1
6

' 
- 

4
"

6
"

7
' 
- 

8
"

6
"

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

4' - 0" 6' - 0" 50' - 8" 3' - 8" 5' - 8" 6' - 0" 4' - 0"

1' - 0" 13' - 6" 15' - 3" 6' - 0" 8' - 0" 6' - 0" 8' - 0" 6' - 0" 15' - 3" 1' - 0"

12' - 6"

52' - 6" 6" 12' - 0"

3
7

' 
- 

0
"

45' - 8 1/4"

2
7

' 
- 

2
"

8
2

' 
- 

0
"

2' - 0" 3' - 8" 28' - 0" 16' - 0" 7' - 8" 3' - 8" 19' - 0"

9
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

8
"

6
6

' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

1' - 0" 5' - 0" 8' - 6" 5' - 3" 12' - 0" 2' - 0" 12' - 0" 2' - 0" 12' - 0" 2' - 0" 12' - 0" 5' - 3"

12' - 6" 1' - 0" 64' - 6"

26' - 8" 6" 4' - 0" 6" 9' - 0" 6" 8' - 6" 6" 4' - 6" 8" 12' - 0" 8" 10' - 0"
3

' 
- 

0
"

6
"

6
' 
- 

6
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

2
1

' 
- 

4
"

4
4

' 
- 

8
"

8
2

' 
- 

0
"

80' - 0"

4
' 
- 

0
"

5
5

' 
- 

2
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

1
5

' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-17-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"2
SECOND FLOOR

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR



LOCKERS

103

BOILER

106

WATCH / COMM

107

APPARATUS BAY

102

TOILET

104

WORK / SCBA

108

SHOWER

105

LOBBY

101

344 SF

- E1

226 SF

TENDER - T2

341 SF

ENGINE - E3

238 SF

TENDER - T4

222 SF

T5 -BRUSH

320 SF

RESCUE
SQUAD - S6

91 SF

7 - UTV

321 SF

PUMPER - E8
344 SF

PUMPER - E9

193 SF

SUPPPORT -
10

136 SF

SUPPORT - 11

196 SF

TRL1

486 SF

TOWER - T1

FIRE INVEST.
OFFICE

203

MECH

202

TRAINING ROOM

204

KITCHEN

205

MENS

206

WOMENS

207

STORAGE

209

MECH./STORAGE

209A

DAY ROOM

208

UNIFORM
STORAGE

210

CONFERENCE

211

CHIEF OFFICE

212

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-17-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"2
SECOND FLOOR



Appendix C 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Space Needs Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Date:  

Spaces Existing Length x Width = Ft
2

Quantity Total Ft
2

Proposed 

Bay

Engines /Pumpers

Engine(s) 45 x 18 = 810 4 3240

Rescue Pumper - Mini-Pumper 45 x 18 = 810 1 810

Quint 90 x 18 = 1620 0 0

Aerial Apparatus

Ladder/Snorkel 90 x 18 = 1620 0 0

Aerial Platform 90 x 18 = 1620 1 1620

Telesquirt 90 x 18 = 1620 0 0

Heavy Rescue Units

Rescue Squad 45 x 18 = 810 1 810

Tender 45 x 18 = 810 2 1620

Light Trucks/SUV's/Pickups

Medium or Light Rescue 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

Command Vehicle 25 x 18 = 450 1 450

Utility/Pickup 25 x 18 = 450 1 450

Arson Unit 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

Inspections Vehicle(s) 25 x 18 = 450 1 450

Wildland Unit 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

RIT Unit 20 x 20 = 400 0 0

Trailers

Haz Mat 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

UTV Trailer 22 x 18 = 396 1 396

UTV 22 x 18 = 396 1 396

Mass Casualty Unit 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Boat 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Snowmobile/ATV 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Technical Rescue 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Portable Pump 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Firefighter Rehab Unit 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

SCBA Clean and Fill 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Portable lights 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Other Equipment/Space

Parade Vehicle/Trailer 25 x 18 = 450 3 1350

Vehicle Maintenance Bay 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

Wash Bay 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

Building Maintenance Equip 20 x 20 = 400 0 0

EMS

Ambulance 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

First Responder - EMR 45 x 18 = 810 1 810

EMS Command Vehicle 45 x 18 = 810 0 0

Mass Casualty Trailer 22 x 18 = 396 0 0

Staff Support Unit 25 x 18 = 450 0 0

Other Space Need 0 x 0 = 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 18 12,402

620

13,022

= Existing Equipment

= Future Equipment

See also Training for other Apparatus and Large Equipment

3 4 5 6 7 8

60 80 100 120 140 160

60 3600 4800 6000 7200 8400 9600

80 4800 6400 8000 9600 11200 12800

90 5400 7200 9000 10800 12600 14400

100 6000 8000 10000 12000 14000 16000

Might have one in future? Currnelty County Owned

Stored at hospital

Truck 10

SUV - Truck 11

SUV - C1

D
e

p
th

 

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Subtotal (Ft
2
)

Efficiency Ratio of 5%

Apparatus Floor Total (Ft
2
)

Number of Bays

Length

Apparatus Bay Sizing Table (Ft
2
)

Have 2 antique 1912 engine & 1912 ladder & hose cart. Display or garage - needs to be stored

Need the ability for washing but do not need a dedicated wash bay. DO want underbody washing abilities 

Do some in-house maintenance, want to be able to tip the trucks to do some . 

EMS is provided by local hospital. Long-term commitment. Might do first responders on staff in future

FUTURE

Tower 1

Squad 6

Future? County Owned

Space Needs Analysis

Mini-pumper: truck 5

Project:  Fire Department

Location:  

Notes

Apparatus Bays

14-Dec-17



Date:  14-Dec-17

Spaces Existing Length x Width = Ft
2

Quantity Total Ft
2

Hose/Training Tower 30 x 20 = 600 1 600

Hose/Gear Dryer 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Protective Gear Lockers 5 x 2 = 10 60 600

Decon Spaces

Equipment Decon 5 x 6 = 30 1 30

Gear Dryer 5 x 6 = 30 1 30

Gear Laundry 10 x 10 = 100 1 100

Decon Shower 8 x 10 = 80 3 240

Residential Laundry Equip. 8 x 10 = 80 1 80

SCBA Equipment

Compressor Room 8 x 8 = 64 1 64

SCBA Clean and Fill Room 8 x 15 = 120 1 120

Workshop 10 x 12 = 120 1 120

Storage 4 x 4 = 16 1 16

Hazardous Material Storage 4 x 4 = 16 0 0

Hazmat Equipment Storage 10 x 10 = 100 1 100

General Storage 10 x 10 = 100 1 100

Dirty Toilet 10 x 10 = 100 0 0

Mezzanine 80 x 20 = 1600 1 1600

Watch/Comm Office - Radio Room 18 x 14 = 252 1 252

POC Staging Area 8 x 12 = 96 0 0

Medical Related Spaces

EMS Report Writing 8 x 12 = 96 0 0

EMS Storage 8 x 10 = 80 1 80

Regulated Storage 6 x 6 = 36 0 0

Bio Hazard Control 6 x 6 = 36 0 0

Janitors Closet 8 x 4 = 32 0 0

TOTAL 0 4,132

826

4,958

Cleaning backboards, etc.

See also Living Quarters

Project:  Fire Department

Notes

Location:  

Hang their hoses. 

Ladders, Could have burn prop accessbile, but does not need to be. 

If they go full-time it would be 4 full time staff memebers. On-call will still be in use if they have full time folks

One set of PPE. 60 people is fully staffed. Start with 30" lockers to begin with> have structural and wildland gear in lockers

Commercial extractor and dryer

Apparatus Support

Would want one cabinet type dryer

Apparatus Support Total (Ft
2
)

In decon area

Efficiency Ratio of 20%

Space Needs Analysis

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Compressor and SCBA fill are one unit. Have 5 training SCBA units they'd  like to store there. 

Have a compressor for their apparatus, too

Hand tools. Currently a catch all right now. Would want it a bit bigger than what they have now. Center work bench/work table for larger items

Subtotal (Ft
2
)



Date:  

Spaces Existing Length x Width = Ft
2

Quantity Total Ft
2

Training Room/Community Room 35 x 50 = 1750 1 1750

Training Storage 12 x 12 = 144 0 0

Table and Chair Storage 10 x 12 = 120 1 120

General Storage 10 x 12 = 120 1 120

General Storage - Training in Basement? 10 x 12 = 120 1 120

Kitchen/Kitchenette 16 X 12 = 192 1 192

Physical Fitness

Exercise Room 30 x 35 = 1050 1 1050

Wellness space 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Locker Room(s) 3 x 10 = 30 1 30

Shower/Toilets 8 x 10 = 80 2 160

Large Training Props 20 x 24 = 480 0 0

Sub Total

Proposed

Tempered Storage Bay

Building Maintenance Equipment 20 x 20 = 400 0 0

Training Props 10 x 20 = 200 0 0

General Storage 10 x 20 = 200 0 0

Mobile Live Burn Trlr (MLFTU) 60 x 16 = 960 0 0

Mobile Training Tower (MTT) 60 x 16 = 960 0 0

Ventilation Trlr (Vent) 40 x 16 = 640 0 0

Driving Simulator (Driving) 40 x 16 = 640 0 0

Tractor Trailer (semi) 30 x 16 = 480 0 0

Survive Alive Trailer 40 x 16 = 640 0 0

Portable lighting 24 x 16 = 384 0 0

Boat and Trailer 35 x 16 = 560 0 0

Snowmobile/ATV/Trailer 16 x 16 = 256 0 0

Other

Sub Total

TOTAL 0

3,542

886

4,428

Steam or other decontamination space

Commercial - sim to w hat they have now . Only needs to be accessible from one side - w ould w ant roller w indow s. Could have w arming countertop outside of that space for community room

Space Needs Analysis

Project:  Fire Department

Location:  

Notes

Training

14-Dec-17

Would want agility space in addition to equipment space. Might be open to city emplooyees in future

A dividable space w ould be good. Consider a basement to allow  physical training and then have a formal training room that can be divided. Like the size of their current training romo

If we have a physical training room, having a space for matts and props will useful

4427.5

Includes efficiency ratio

If they have internal space, they will use it, if not they will have small storage needs: grill for fundraisers, snow blowers

Cubbie space or small lockers

One can be toilet and one toilet shower

0

Includes efficiency ratio

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Subtotal (Ft
2
)

Efficiency Ratio of 25%

Training Total (Ft
2
)



Date:  14-Dec-17

Spaces Existing Length x Width = Ft
2

Quantity Total Ft
2

Fire Chief 20 x 12 = 240 1 240

Deputy Chief 16 x 12 = 192 1 192

Small Conf off Inspectors Office 12 x 14 = 168 1 168

Fire Marshal/Investigator 16 x 12 = 192 0 0

Evidence Storage 6 x 8 = 48 0 0

Plan/Equip Storage 8 x 8 = 64 1 64

Deputy/Battalion Chiefs 30 x 10 = 300 0 0

Sleeping Room 10 x 13 = 130 0 0

Toilet/Shower 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Captain/Lieutenant/Training Office 8 x 8 = 64 4 256

Pub Ed Office 14 x 12 = 168 0 0

Pub Ed Storage 6 x 8 = 48 1 48

Inspections Unit

Inspectors Office 14 x 12 = 168 0 0

Plan Review 18 x 12 = 216 0 0

Conference Room 18 x 14 = 252 0 0

Resource Library 2 x 10 = 20 0 0

Record Storage 14 x 12 = 168 0 0

Future Office 16 x 10 = 160 1 160

Administrative Assist. Office 16 x 12 = 192 1 192

Fax/Work/Copy 8 x 10 = 80 1 80

Record Storage 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Misc. Office Supplies 4 x 6 = 24 0 0

Conference Room 20 x 20 = 400 1 400

Staff Toilets 8 x 8 = 64 0 0

Study/Work Area 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Resource Library 2 x 10 = 20 0 0

New Gear and Uniform Storage 8 x 16 = 128 0 0

General Storage 8 x 10 = 80 0 0

Communications/ IT 10 x 10 = 100 0 0

Public/Support Spaces

Entrance Vestibule 10 x 10 = 100 1 100

Lobby - Museum 10 x 15 = 150 1 150

Walk-in Med Check/Ed Space 6 x 8 = 48 0 0

Public Toilets 10 x 14 = 140 2 280

Elevator 10 x 20 = 200 0 0

Stairs 24 x 10 = 240 0 0

Janitors Closet 6 x 4 = 24 1 24

TOTAL 0 2,354

589

2,943

NOTES:

Fire Chief's office is sized for an executive desk/credenza with separate table with seating for up to 6.

Battalion Chief Suite consists of the following: Open office space with 3 work stations, single-bed sleeping room, toilet room with shower.

14-16 people

Future

Shared office. 8 people, but can share 4 work spaces

Officer in charge does this

Do small amount of plan review. 

Shelf in the admin area

Fire Inspector will do this

Could be off a training room - hoteling office

Space Needs Analysis

Location:  

Notes

Project:  Fire Department

Casey - Deputy / Fire Inspector

Could utilize the small conference room

Administration/Office Spaces

Could be in inspectors office? Plan review, meeting with developers

LOT of memorabilia

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Administration/Office Spaces Total (Ft
2
)

Efficiency Ratio of 25%

Subtotal (Ft
2
)



Date:  14-Dec-17

Spaces Existing Length x Width = Ft
2

Quantity Total Ft
2

Day Room / Rec Room 20 x 20 = 400 1 400

Kitchen 20 x 20 = 400 0 0

Pantry 3 x 3 = 9 3 27

Dining 20 x 15 = 300 1 300

Dorm Room 10 x 13 = 130 8 1040

Restrooms/Showers 8 x 8 = 64 1 64

Linen Closet 6 x 8 = 48 0 0

Supply Closet 4 x 5 = 20 0 0

Residential Laundry / Linen / Supply / Janitor 8 x 10 = 80 1 80

Janitor's Closet 6 x 6 = 36 0 0

TOTAL 0

1,911

478

2,389

Space Needs Analysis

Project:  Fire Department

Location:  

Notes

Staff Support

8-10 people

Pool table, ping pong, recliners, TVs

Will use the kitchen from the training room.

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Subtotal (Ft
2
)

Efficiency Ratio of 25%

Living Quarters Spaces Total (Ft
2
)



Location:  14-Dec-17

Spaces Existing Quantity

Parking

Fire Staff Parking 50

EMS Staff Parking 0

Public Parking 30

Other Parking 0

Total Parking 80

Fire Apparatus Apron 1

EMS Apparatus Apron 0

Outdoor Training 1

Outdoor Patio 1

Enclosed Dumpster 1

External Generator 1

Storm Water Treatment 1

Heliport Pad 0

Extrication pavement 1

Detatched storage building 0

Other 0

Other 0

Other 0

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Site

Project:  Fire Department

Notes

Space Needs Analysis

desired for lawn maintenance. Could have a truck with plow in the future? 



Date:  14-Dec-17

Totals Existing Areas

13,022 0

4,958 0

4,428 0

2,943 0

2,389 0

0 0

27,739 Station Footprint (Ft
2
) Sub Total 0

4,161 Infrastructure (M & E) Space Factor 15%

31,900 TOTAL PROGRAM SPACE REQUIRMENT

NOTES:

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Staff Support

Apparatus Support

Training

Administration/Office 

Tempered Spaces

Space Needs Analysis

Project:  Fire Department

Apparatus Bays

Location:  



Appendix D 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Conceptual Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



RESPONSE APRON

VOLUNTEER PARKING

18 STALLS

RETURN APRON

34 STALLS

1
5
 S

T
A

L
L

S

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

00 - SITE PLAN  - W. LEWIS STREET



344 SF

- E1

226 SF

TENDER - T2

341 SF

ENGINE - E3

238 SF

TENDER - T4222 SF

T5 -BRUSH

320 SF

RESCUE
SQUAD - S6

91 SF

7 - UTV

321 SF

PUMPER - E8

344 SF

PUMPER - E9

193 SF

SUPPPORT -
10

136 SF

SUPPORT - 11

196 SF

TRL1

486 SF

TOWER - T1

264 SF

HOSE /
TRAINING
TOWER

240 SF

FIRE CHIEF

980 SF

GEAR
LOCKERS (60)

238 SF

GEAR
LAUNDRY

76 SF

DECON
SHOWER

60 SF

RESIDENTAL
LAUNDRY

EQUIP.

120 SF

SCBA CLEAN
AND FILL

ROOM

120 SF

WORKSHOP

20 SF

HAZMAT
EQUIP.

STORAGE

301 SF

WATCH /
COMM.
OFFICE
(RADIO
ROOM)

2300 SF

TRAINING /
COMMUNITY

ROOM

215 SF

KITCHEN

192 SF

DEPUTY
CHIEF / FIRE
INSPECTOR

2300 SF

TRAINING /
COMMUNITY

ROOM

192 SF

DEPUTY
CHIEF / FIRE
INSPECTOR

168 SF

SMALL
CONFERENCE

55 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

55 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

55 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

55 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

72 SF

PUB. ED.,
PLAN &
EQUIP

STORAGE

128 SF

FUTURE
ADMIN.
ASSIST.
OFFICE

33 SF

WORK / COPY

283 SF

CONFERENCE
ROOM

100 SF

ENTRANCE
VESTIBULE

64 SF

TOILET

LOBBY

STAIR, 

VESTIBULE, 
PASSAGE

79 SF

DECON
SHOWER

75 SF

DECON
SHOWER

76 SF

ELEVATOR

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE 

APPARATUS BAYS = 13,080 SF

APPARATUS SUPPORT = 3,690 SF

ADMIN = 3,460 SF

TRAINING = 3,960 SF

STAFF SUPPORT = 2,795 SF

CIRCULATION = 1,880 SF

FIRST FLOOR TOTAL =    23,950 SF

SECOND FLOOR TOTAL =      7,145 SF

TOTAL BUILDING =    31,095 SF

BASEMENT ALTERNATE = 7,805 SF

TOTAL INCLUDING ALTERNATE = 38,900 SF

64 SF

TOILET

64 SF

TOILET

64 SF

TOILET

136 SF

COMMAND 36 SF

POLE

166 SF

STORAGE

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"2
W. LEWIS STREET - 1ST FLOOR



751 SF

MEZZANINE /

MECHANICAL

62 SF

TRAINING RM

LOCKERS

110 SF

TOILET /

SHOWER

110 SF

TOILET /

SHOWER 130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

300 SF

DINING

234 SF

KITCHEN

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

110 SF

TOILET /

SHOWER

DAY ROOM / REC ROOM

921 SF

EXERCISE ROOM

1,000 SF

STAIR, 

VESTIBULE, 

PASSAGE

36 SF

POLE

264 SF

HOSE /

TRAINING

TOWER

OPEN TO 

APPARATUS 

BAY BELOW

76 SF

ELEVATOR

110 SF

TOILET /

SHOWER

STAIR, 

VESTIBULE, 

PASSAGE

76 SF

ELEVATOR

ALTERNATE:

CLASSROOMS,

TRAINING,  UNIFORM & 

PPE STORAGE, TOILETS, 

STAIRS, ELEVATOR

264 SF

HOSE /

TRAINING

TOWER

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

W. LEWIS STREET - 2ND FLOOR

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

W LEWIS STREET - BASEMENT



344 SF

- E1

226 SF

TENDER - T2

341 SF

ENGINE - E3

238 SF

TENDER - T4

222 SF

T5 -BRUSH

320 SF

RESCUE

SQUAD - S6

91 SF

7 - UTV

321 SF

PUMPER - E8

344 SF

PUMPER - E9

193 SF

SUPPPORT -

10

136 SF

SUPPORT - 11

196 SF

TRL1

486 SF

TOWER - T1

110' - 8"

9
0

' 
- 

0
"

136 SF

COMMAND

VEHICLE

344 SF

- E1

226 SF

TENDER - T2

341 SF

ENGINE - E3

238 SF

TENDER - T4222 SF

T5 -BRUSH

320 SF

RESCUE

SQUAD - S6

91 SF

7 - UTV

321 SF

PUMPER - E8

344 SF

PUMPER - E9

193 SF

SUPPPORT -

10

136 SF

SUPPORT - 11

196 SF

TRL1

486 SF

TOWER - T1

136 SF

COMMAND

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

00 - APPARATUS BAY LAYOUT - 6 BAYS

3
00 - APPARATUS BAY LAYOUT - 8 BAYS
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

JUST APPARATUS BAYS

DISPATCH APRON

RETURN APRON

SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"
1

00 - EXISTING LOCATION - SITE



RESPONSE APRON 

RETURN APRON 

PARKING 

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

00 - SITE PLAN - WATER STREET



344 SF

- E1

226 SF

TENDER - T2

341 SF

ENGINE - E3

238 SF

TENDER - T4

222 SF

T5 -BRUSH

320 SF

RESCUE
SQUAD - S6

91 SF

7 - UTV

321 SF

PUMPER - E8

344 SF

PUMPER - E9

486 SF

TOWER - T1

193 SF

SUPPPORT -
10

136 SF

SUPPORT - 11

196 SF

TRL1

120 SF

SCBA CLEAN
AND FILL

ROOM

90 SF

HALL120 SF

WORKSHOP

72 SF

HALL

308 SF

HOSE /
TRAINING
TOWER

100 SF

ENTRANCE
VESTIBULE

240 SF

FIRE CHIEF

168 SF

SMALL
CONFERENCE

168 SF

DEPUTY
CHIEF / FIRE
INSPECTOR

33 SF

WORK / COPY

56 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

56 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

64 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

64 SF

CAPTAIN,
LIEUTENANT,

TRAINING
OFFICE

283 SF

CONFERENCE
ROOM

110 SF

RESIDENTAL
LAUNDRY

EQUIP.

80 SF

DECON
SHOWER

150 SF

DECON HALL

80 SF

DECON
SHOWER

80 SF

DECON
SHOWER

238 SF

GEAR
LAUNDRY

71 SF

PUB. ED.,
PLAN &
EQUIP

STORAGE

114 SF

FUTURE
ADMIN.
ASSIST.
OFFICE

64 SF

TOILETS

20 SF

HAZMAT
EQUIP.

STORAGE 301 SF

WATCH /
COMM.
OFFICE
(RADIO
ROOM)

36 SF

POLE

980 SF

GEAR
LOCKERS (60)

216 SF

STAIR

80 SF

ELEVATOR
341 SF

LOBBY

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE 

APPARATUS BAYS = 9,960 SF

APPARATUS SUPPORT = 5,025 SF

ADMIN = 2,370 SF

TRAINING = 2,940 SF

STAFF SUPPORT = 3,230 SF

CIRCULATION = 2,810 SF

FIRST FLOOR TOTAL =    16,520 SF

SECOND FLOOR TOTAL =      6,170 SF

THIRD FLOOR TOTAL = 6,000 SF

TOTAL BUILDING =    28,690 SF

216 SF

STAIR

270 SF

KITCHEN

80 SF

ELEVATOR

308 SF

HOSE /
TRAINING
TOWER

36 SF

POLE

689 SF

MEZZANINE

200 SF

STORAGE

64 SF

TOILET /
SHOWER

TRAINING RM

1,420 SF

52 SF

TOILET /
SHOWER

EXERCISE 

906 SF

STORAGE 

595 SF

OPEN TO 

APPARATUS 
BAYS

110 SF

TOILET /
SHOWER

110 SF

TOILET /
SHOWER

126 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM

130 SF

DORM110 SF

TOILET /
SHOWER

DAY ROOM / REC ROOM

1,073 SF

216 SF

STAIR

80 SF

ELEVATOR

957 SF

MECHANICALKITCHEN / DINING

717 SF

308 SF

HOSE /
TRAINING
TOWER

-

PROJECT NUMBER:

Platteville, WI

PLATTEVILLE FIRE STATION
02-19-2021STUDY

908901

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"1
01 - FLOOR PLAN - N WATER STREET - 1ST FLOOR

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"2
02 - FLOOR PLAN - N WATER STREET - 2ND FLOOR

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"3
03 - FLOOR PLAN - N WATER STREET - 3RD



Appendix E 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Probable Cost Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Project: Paltteville Fire Department

Location: Platteville, WI Date:  23-Feb-21

Potential Costs for Cthe Lewis Street Concept 
LOW END COSTS HIGH END COSTS Alternate

I.  Site Acquisition

Preferred Site $100,000 $250,000 $0

Sub Total $100,000 $250,000 $0

II.  Building Construction Costs Size (sf) Cost/SF

New Construction 31,095 $225.00 $6,996,375 $275 $8,551,125 $0

Basement Alternate 7,805 $250 $1,951,250

Sub Total $6,996,375 $8,551,125 $1,951,250

III.  Furniture Fixtures and Equipment

FF&E (estimated) $300,000 $300,000 $0 Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment, etc.

Specific Equipment by Owner $0 $0 $0

Others $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $300,000 $300,000 $0

IV.  Communications and Technology

Communications $25,000 $40,000 $0

Audio Visual Equipment Allowance $15,000 $15,000 $0

Sub Total $40,000 $55,000 $0

V.  Contingencies, Inflation and Other Costs

Design/Inflation Contingency 5% total construction cost $349,819 $427,556 $97,563 Design Changes, Inflation, Etc.

Construction Contingency 5% of total construction costs $349,819 $427,556 $97,563 Unforeseen Conditions, Owner Changes, E&O

Sub Total $699,638 $855,113 $195,125

VI.  Professional Fees and Legal

Architectural/Engineering 7.0% of Construction Costs $489,746 $598,579 $136,588

Geotechnical Studies $7,000 $7,000 $0

Site Survey $7,000 $7,000 $0

Unsuitable Soils Contingency $100,000 $100,000 $0

Power to Site $0 $0 $0

Fiber to Site $0 $0 $0

LEED/Sustainability $0 $0 $0

Hazardous Materials /Asbestos $0 $0 $0

Testing and Inspections $25,000 $25,000 $0

Sub-Total $628,746 $737,579 $136,588

TOTAL BASE BID $8,764,759 $10,748,816

TOTAL  ALTERNATE $2,282,963

TOTAL  w ALTERNATE

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Remarks

$11,047,721 $13,031,779



Project: Paltteville Fire Department

Location: Platteville, WI Date:  23-Feb-21

Potential Costs for the Water Street Concept
LOW END COSTS HIGH END COSTS

I.  Site Acquisition

Preferred Site $0 $100,000

Sub Total $0 $100,000

II.  Building Construction Costs Size (sf) Cost/SF

New Construction 28,690 $225.00 $6,455,250 $275 $7,889,750

Sub Total $6,455,250 $7,889,750

III.  Furniture Fixtures and Equipment

FF&E (estimated) $300,000 $300,000 Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment, etc.

Specific Equipment by Owner $0 $0

Others $0 $0

Sub Total $300,000 $300,000

IV.  Communications and Technology

Communications $25,000 $40,000

Audio Visual Equipment Allowance $15,000 $15,000

Sub Total $40,000 $55,000

V.  Contingencies, Inflation and Other Costs

Design/Inflation Contingency 5% total construction cost $322,763 $394,488 Design Changes, Inflation, Etc.

Construction Contingency 5% of total construction costs $322,763 $394,488 Unforeseen Conditions, Owner Changes, E&O

Sub Total $645,525 $788,975

VI.  Professional Fees and Legal

Architectural/Engineering 7.0% of Construction Costs $451,868 $552,283

Geotechnical Studies $7,000 $7,000

Site Survey $7,000 $7,000

Unsuitable Soils Contingency $100,000 $100,000

Power to Site $0 $0

Fiber to Site $0 $0

LEED/Sustainability $0 $0

Hazardous Materials /Asbestos $0 $0

Testing and Inspections $25,000 $25,000

Sub-Total $590,868 $691,283

TOTAL BASE BID $8,031,643 $9,825,008

Building D04, Suite 202| 800 Wisconsin St, Mailbox 2 | Eau Claire, WI 54703 | 715.832.4848 | fivebuglesdesign.com 

Remarks



Appendix F 

 

PAA + FIVE BUGLES DESIGN| Plateville Fire Station  

Photo Database of Existing Conditions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  




























	Agenda 2-23-21
	III. Presentation - Annual Tourism Report
	IV.  CONSENT
	IV.A. Minutes
	IV.B. Payment of Bills
	IV.C. B&C
	IV.D. Proposed License 1-26-21
	VI.A.  REPORTS-Minutes
	VI.A.a. 09-21-2020 Community Safe Routes Committee
	VI.A.b. 01-18-2021 Community Sale Routes Committee
	VI.A.c. 01-25-2021 Community Safe Routes Committee
	VI.A.d. 12-09-2020 Water and Sewer Commission
	VI.A.e. 12-16-20 Museum Board
	VI.A.e. 12-21-2020 Parks, Forestry, & Recreation Committee
	VI.A.f. 01-06-21 Library Board
	VI.A.g. 01-11-2020 Airport Commission
	VII.A. Sidewalk Policy Summary Sheet February 2021 (1)
	VIII.A. Contract 2-21 Bus 151 SIdewalk
	VIII.A.a. Recommendation of Bid Award - Business 151 Sidewalk.pdf
	February 16, 2021
	Dear Howard,
	On Tuesday, February 16, 2021 bids were received for the Business Highway 151 Sidewalk Construction project, Contract #4-21.  A total of seven bids were received, opened, and publicly read aloud for the project, which consisted of a single base bid.  ...
	This project is the installation of sidewalk along the south side of Business Highway 151 from Water Street to Valley Road (Dunkin’ Donuts to Culver’s).  It also includes the installation of storm sewer and storm inlets since the sidewalk will be inst...
	This project is scheduled to begin on or after June 1, 2021 and be completed within 42 calendar days of when it was started, but by no later than August 27, 2021.  This schedule will minimize the amount of time the area is under construction as well a...
	G-Pro excavating has completed several projects for the City of Platteville, most recently the 2020 Market Street Reconstruction project, which was completed ahead of schedule and below contract amount. Therefore, we are recommending that the City of ...
	If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact myself or my assistant, Katlyn Churchill, at your convenience.
	Sincerely,
	Delta 3 Engineering, Inc.
	Daniel J. Dreessens, P.E.
	Vice-President/Civil Engineer
	DD:dd
	Enclosures
	cc: Joe Foreman, G-Pro Excavating, LLC


	VIIII. WORK SESSION-PAA & Five Bugles
	VIIII.b. Report for the Platteville Fire Department (with appendix).pdf
	Report for the Platteville Fire Department (wo appendix)
	ReportCovers
	Section 1 - Executive Summary - TOC & Intro
	Part A - Section 2 - Comprehensive Analysis
	Part B - Section 3 - Existing Conditions
	Part B - Section 4 - Space Needs Analysis
	Part B - Section 5 - Conceptual Design
	Part B - Section 6 - Probable Costs

	Appendix
	Appendix - Cover - A
	1 Department Organizational Chart 2020

	Appendix A - PAA Appendix
	2 Membership
	3 DistanceBasedMap1.5&5milesCombined
	4 DistanceBasedMap1.5&5milesCombined (1)
	5 DistanceBasedMap 1.5 and 5 miles For 155 West Lewis St
	6 DistaneBasedMapFor 475 North Water St
	7 MembershipOnDistanceBased
	8 TmeBasedMap 5 Minutes For 155 West Lewis St
	9 TmeBasedMap10 Minutes For 155 West Lewis St
	10 TmeBasedMap 5 Minutes For 475 North Water St
	11 TmeBasedMap10 Minutes For 475 North Water St
	12 MembershipOnTimeBased

	Appendix - Cover - B
	Appendix B - Existing Plans
	Appendix - Cover - C
	Appendix C - Space Needs Analysis
	Appendix - Cover - D
	Appendix D - CONCEPT PLANS
	Appendix - Cover - E
	Appendix E - Probable Cost Anaylisis
	Appendix - Cover - F
	Appendix F - Existing Station Photos



	Button1: 


